Public Document Pack

Agenda Reports & Other Papers
Presented to the
Meeting of the
Pensions Committee
on
Friday, 12 July 2019

1.

Agenda

1 - 216

Agenda

AGENDA for a meeting of the PENSIONS COMMITTEE to be held in
COMMITTEE ROOM B, County Hall, Hertford on FRIDAY, 12 JULY 2019 at
10:00AM
MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE (10) - QUORUM 3
S J Boulton, R C Deering, D S Drury, M A Eames-Petersen, J M Graham, T R
Hutchings, A J S Mitchell (Vice-Chairman), R G Parker, S Quilty, R Sangster
(Chairman)
REPRESENTATIVES OF HERTFORDSHIRE DISTRICT / BOROUGH COUNCILS (3)
(NON-VOTING)
K Ayling, M Casey, J Lloyd
Invitees:
Meetings of the Committee are open to the public (this includes the press) and
attendance is welcomed. However, there may be occasions when the public are
excluded from the meeting for particular items of business. Any such items would be
taken at the end of the public part of the meeting and listed under “Part Two (‘closed’)
agenda”.
Committee Room B is fitted with an audio system to assist those with hearing
impairment. Anyone who wishes to use this should contact main (front) reception.
Members are reminded that all equalities implications and equalities
impact assessments undertaken in relation to any matter on this agenda must
be rigorously considered prior to any decision being reached on that matter.
Members are reminded that:
(1)
if they consider that they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any
matter to be considered at the meeting they must declare that interest and must
not participate in or vote on that matter unless a dispensation has been granted
by the Standards Committee;
(2)
if they consider that they have a Declarable Interest (as defined in
paragraph 5.3 of the Code of Conduct for Members) in any matter to be
considered at the meeting they must declare the existence and nature of that
interest. If a member has a Declarable Interest they should consider whether
they should participate in consideration and vote on the matter.

Agenda Pack Page 1

1

PART I (PUBLIC) AGENDA
1.

MINUTES
To confirm the minutes (Parts I) of the Pensions Committee meeting
held on 22 March 2019.

2.

PENSION FUND AUDIT RESULTS REPORT
Report of the Director of Resources

3.

RESPONSE TO THE AUDIT RESULTS REPORT 2018/19 – PENSION
FUND
Report of the Assistant Director of Finance

4.

PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT AND STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS
2018/19
Report of the Director of Resources

5.

VOLUNTARY SCHEME PAYS POLICY FOR FIREFIGHTERS PENSION
SCHEME
Report of the Director of Resources

6.

ADMISSION AGREEMENTS POLICY
Report of the Director of Resources

7.

ACCESS UPDATE
Report of the Director of Resources

8.

RISK AND PERFORMANCE (PART I REPORT)
Report of the Director of Resources

PART II (‘CLOSED’) AGENDA
EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
The Chairman will move:“That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public
be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it
involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1
of Schedule 12A to the said Act and the public interest in maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.”

Agenda Pack Page 2

2

PART II (‘CLOSED’) AGENDA
To confirm the minutes (Part II) of the Pensions Committee meeting
held on 22 March 2019.
1.

RISK & PERFORMANCE (PART II REPORT)
Report of the Director of Resources

2.

TRIENNIAL VALUATION – ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
Report of the Director of Resources

3.

INVESTMENT STRATEGY REVIEW
Report of the Director of Resources

4.

PENSION FUND – FUNDING AND INVESTMENT REPORT (Formerly
PERFORMANCE REPORT) AS AT 31 MARCH 2019
Report of the Director of Resources

5.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) BELIEFS
SESSION
Report of the Director of Resources

If you require further information about this agenda please contact Elaine Manzi,
Democratic Services Officer, on telephone no (01992) 588062 or e-mail
elaine.manzi@hertfordshire.gov.uk
Agenda documents are also available on the internet at:
https://democracy.hertfordshire.gov.uk/mgCalendarMonthView.aspx
For further information about the issues covered in these reports please contact Patrick Towey
on 01992 555148.
QUENTIN BAKER
CHIEF LEGAL OFFICER

Agenda Pack Page 3

3

This page is intentionally left blank

Minutes

To: All Members of the Pensions
Committee

From:
Legal, Democratic & Statutory Services
Ask for: Stephanie Tarrant
Ext:
25481

PENSIONS COMMITTEE
22 MARCH 2019
ATTENDANCE
MEMBERS OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE
S J Boulton, R C Deering, M A Eames-Petersen, T R Hutchings, A J S Mitchell (ViceChairman), R G Parker, R Sangster (Chairman)
MEMBERS OF HERTFORDSHIRE DISTRICT/BOROUGH COUNCILS (NON-VOTING)
K Ayling, J Lloyd
Upon consideration of the agenda for the Pensions Committee meeting 22 March 2019
as circulated, copy annexed, conclusions were reached and are recorded below:
Note: No conflicts of interest were declared by any member of the Committee in
relation to the matters on which conclusions were reached at this meeting.
PART I (‘OPEN’) BUSINESS
ACTION
1.

MINUTES

1.1

Minutes (Part I and II) of the meeting of the Pensions Committee held
on 28 February 2019 were confirmed as a correct record and signed
by the Chairman.
EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
The Committee agreed to move into Part II (‘closed’ session’).
That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items
of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of
exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule
12A to the said Act and the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

Agenda Pack Page 5

1

PART II (‘CLOSED’) AGENDA
1.

CBRE IMPLEMENTATION PROPOSAL
Decision

1.1

The Minute for this item of business is set out in the separate Part II
Minutes.

KATHRYN PETTITT
CHIEF LEGAL OFFICER

CHAIRMAN

2
CHAIRMAN’S
INITIALS
…………….

Agenda Pack Page 6

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Agenda Item No:

PENSIONS COMMITTEE
FRIDAY 12 JULY 2019 AT 10:00AM

2

PENSION FUND AUDIT RESULTS REPORT
Report of the Director of Resources
Author of: Suresh Patel, Associate Partner- for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

1.

Purpose of the Report

1.1 To present the results of the 2018/19 audit.
2.

Recommendations

2.1 That committee notes the Audit Results report.

Agenda Pack Page 7

1

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 2 Appendix 1

Hertfordshire Pension Fund
Audit results report
Year ended 31 March 2019

Agenda Pack Page 9

01 July 2019

01 July 2019

Dear Audit Committee Members

Agenda Pack Page 10

We are pleased to attach our audit results report for the forthcoming meeting of the Audit Committee. This report summarises our
preliminary audit conclusion in relation to the audit of Hertfordshire Pension Fund for 2018/19.
We have substantially completed our audit of Hertfordshire Pension Fund for the year ended 31 March 2019.
Subject to concluding the outstanding matters listed in our report (page 5), we confirm that we expect to issue an unqualified audit
opinion on the financial statements before the end of July.
This report is intended solely for the use of the Audit Committee, other members of the Authority, and senior management. It
should not be used for any other purpose or given to any other party without obtaining our written consent.
We would like to thank your staff for their help during the engagement.
We welcome the opportunity to discuss the contents of this report with you at the Audit Committee meeting on 19 July 2019.
Yours faithfully

Suresh Patel

Associate Partner
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP
Encl

2

Contents
01 Executive
02
Summary

Area of Audit
Focus

03 Audit Report 04

Agenda Pack Page 11

of
Data
06 Assessment
07
Control
Analytics

Audit
Differences

05

Other
reporting
issues

08 Independence 09 Appendices

Environment
Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) have issued a ‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies’. It is available from the Chief Executive of each audited body and via the PSAA
website (www.psaa.co.uk). This Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities
of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas. The ‘Terms of Appointment (updated April 2018)’ issued by PSAA sets out additional
requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and statute, and covers matters of practice and procedure which
are of a recurring nature.
This report is prepared in the context of the Statement of responsibilities. It is addressed to the Members of the audited body, and is prepared for their sole use. We, as appointed auditor, take no
responsibility to any third party.
Our Complaints Procedure – If at any time you would like to discuss with us how our service to you could be improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the service you are receiving, you may take the issue up
with your usual partner or director contact. If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Steve Varley, our Managing Partner, 1 More London Place, London SE1 2AF. We undertake to look into any
complaint carefully and promptly and to do all we can to explain the position to you. Should you remain dissatisfied with any aspect of our service, you may of course take matters up with our professional
institute. We can provide further information on how you may contact our professional institute.

3

Agenda Pack Page 12

01 Executive Summary
4

Executive Summary
Scope update

In our Audit Plan tabled at the 29 March 2019 Audit Committee meeting, we provided you with an overview of our audit scope and approach for the
audit of the pension fund financial statements. We carried out our audit in accordance with this plan.
• Changes in materiality: In our Audit Plan, we communicated that our audit procedures would be performed using a materiality of £45m. We have
increased this to £48m based on the increase in Net Assets from the prior year. As a result we have increased the threshold for reporting
misstatements that have an effect on the primary statements (fund account and net asset statement) to £2.4m.
• Changes in risks: We have identified no new audit risks to those included in the Audit Plan.

Agenda Pack Page 13

Status of the audit

We have substantially completed our audit of Hertfordshire Pension Fund’s financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 and have performed
the procedures outlined in our Audit Plan. Subject to satisfactory completion of the following outstanding items we expect to issue an unqualified opinion
on the Pension Fund’s financial statements in the form which appears at Section 3. However until work is complete, further amendments may arise:

• Valuations testing of level 3 investments – investment managers have been slower than the previous year in providing relevant information.
• Review of the final version of the Annual Report – final version of the Fund’s Annual Report provided on 27/06/19.
• Review of the final version of the financial statements – subject to completing of audit testing.
• Completion of subsequent events review – we will complete these procedures close to the date that the Council approves its final statements of
account.
• Receipt of the signed management representation letter – officers will provide this after the July Audit Committee meeting.
In addition to the above, there is an ongoing national issue which may require a late change to the pension fund accounts and IAS26 fund liability
disclosure. It relates to legal rulings regarding age discrimination arising from public sector pension scheme transitional arrangements, commonly
described as the McCloud ruling. The draft pension fund accounts have recognised this matter as a contingent liability (note 20, page 158). However,
since the year-end there have been increasing indications that this may not be the correct treatment, and may need to be incorporated into the
assessment of the scheme liabilities depending on the materiality of the issue. We will continue to liaise with officers on the outcome of this matter.

5

Executive Summary
Audit differences

To date there are no unadjusted differences arising from our audit.
We have identified a small number of audit differences in relation to disclosures which have been adjusted by management. We have not felt it necessary
to provide the details of these amendments.

Agenda Pack Page 14

There are no matters, apart from those reported by management or disclosed in this report, which we believe should be brought to the attention of the
Audit Committee.

Control observations

We have not identified any significant deficiencies in the design or operation of an internal control that might result in a material misstatement in your
financial statements and which is unknown to you.
We have adopted a fully substantive approach, so have not tested the operation of controls.

Independence
We include in Section 8 an update on our independence where we have no matters to report.

6

Agenda Pack Page 15

02 Areas of Audit Focus
7

Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk

Agenda Pack Page 16

Risk of Management
Override: Misstatements
due to fraud or error

What is the risk?
As identified in ISA (UK and Ireland) 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because
of its ability to manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial
statements by overriding controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively. We identify and
respond to this fraud risk on every audit engagement.

What judgements are we focused on?

What are our conclusions?

We focussed our testing on key areas of the accounts that are susceptible to
management bias.

We have not identified any material weaknesses in controls
or evidence of material management override.

What did we do?

 Inquired of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in place to address
those risks.
 Gained an understanding of the oversight given by those charged with governance of
management’s processes over fraud.
 Considered the effectiveness of management’s controls designed to address the risk
of fraud.
Performed mandatory procedures regardless of specifically identified fraud risks,
including:
 Tested the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the general ledger and other
adjustments made in the preparation of the financial statements
 Assessed accounting estimates for evidence of management bias, and
 Evaluated the business rationale for significant unusual transactions.

Our journal entry testing did not identify any issues.
We have not identified any instances of management bias
being applied to accounting estimates.
We did not identify any other transactions during our audit
which appeared unusual or outside the Fund‘s normal
course of business.

8

Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk
Risk of Management
Override: Year end
investment journals

What is the risk?
The Pension Fund posts year end manual journals in relation to the valuation of it’s investments and the
recognition of investment income. There is a risk that management will override controls to fraudulently
misreport the position and performance of the fund.

Agenda Pack Page 17

What judgements are we focused on?

What are our conclusions?

We focused on year end manual investment journals.

We found that year end investment journals were raised
appropriately based on information that the Pension Fund
receives from its Custodian and Investment Managers.

What did we do?

 Confirmed investment valuations as of 31/03/19 to Custodian and Investment
Manager reports.

We have not identified any instances of management
override of controls in relation to year end investment
journals.

 Confirmed investment income recognised during 2018/19 to Custodian and
Investment Manager reports.
 Reviewed investment valuation and investment income balances for unusual items.

9

Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk
Valuation of Complex
Investments

What is the risk?

Agenda Pack Page 18

Valuation of Complex Investments
The Fund’s investments include unquoted pooled investment vehicles such as private equity, global
alternative funds and infrastructure debt (Level 3 Investments under IFRS 13).
Judgements are taken by the Investment Managers to value those investments whose prices are not
publicly available. The material nature of Investments means that any error in judgement could result in a
material valuation error.

What judgements are we focused on?

What are our conclusions?

The valuation of level 3 investments as determined by Investment Managers as there is
no publicly available information to corroborate valuations for these investments.

We have not identified any material weaknesses in controls
of the Investment Managers which would impact
Hertfordshire Pension Fund.

What did we do?
 Reviewed control reports for all Investment Managers to identify material weaknesses
of controls which would impact on the Pension Fund’s financial reporting.
 Reviewed the basis of valuation of investments through consideration of their
classification under IFRS 13 as either level 1, 2 or level 3 investments.

We determined that the valuation basis of investments were
appropriate based on their classification under IFRS 13.
We received evidence to finalise our testing on level 3
investments on 28/06/19. Once we have complete our
testing we will be able to conclude on this significant risk.

 For a sample of level 3 investments funds (private equity, global alternative fund and
infrastructure debt) reviewed the latest audited financial statements to:
 Confirm the valuation of the investment are based on the underlying net assets
of the investment funds.
 Identify matters arising from the audit opinion of the investment funds.

10

Areas of Audit Focus

Other Areas of audit focus
Access Pooling
Arrangements

What is the area of focus?
The Fund is member of the ACCESS pool with ten other shire counties.
ACCESS enables the pooling of investments through a Collective Investment Vehicle (CIV) that is
administered and maintained by a third party operator. This should result in reduced management fees.
As of 31/03/19 the fund had £651m of its investments in the Access pool. These assets transferred into
the Access pool during 2018/19.

Agenda Pack Page 19

What did we do?

What are our conclusion?

 Enquired with officers to understand the governance arrangements
put in place to ensure that the pooled investments are appropriately
managed.

The Fund has put in place appropriate governance arrangements to enable
it manage the Access pooled investments.

 Reviewed supporting documentation from Investment Managers to
confirm the nature of the transition of the investments into the
Access pool.

Overall we conclude that the Access pooled investments are appropriately
classified and have been accounted for correctly.
We did not identify any misstatements relating to this area of focus.

 Obtained confirmation of the valuation of investments as of
31/03/19 within the Access pool, and corroborated the value of
these investments to publicly available market information.
 Considered whether the Pension Fund applied the appropriate
accounting treatment and disclosure requirements for investments
in the Access pool.

11

Agenda Pack Page 20

03 Audit Report

12

Audit Report

Draft audit report
Our opinion on the financial statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
Opinion

Agenda Pack Page 21

We have audited the pension fund financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2019 under the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014. The pension fund financial statements comprise the Fund
Account, the Net Assets Statement and the related notes 1 to 22. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation
is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19.
In our opinion the pension fund financial statements:
give a true and fair view of the financial transactions of the pension fund
during the year ended 31 March 2019 and the amount and disposition of
the fund’s assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2019; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2018/19.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report below. We are
independent of the pension fund in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in
the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard and the Comptroller and
Auditor General’s (C&AG) AGN01, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to
which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:
the Director of Resources use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or
the Director of Resources has not disclosed in the financial statements any
identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the
pension fund’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the
financial statements are authorised for issue.

13

Audit Report

Our opinion on the financial statements

Agenda Pack Page 22

Other information

Matters on which we report by exception

The other information comprises the information included in the
statement of accounts, other than the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The Director of Resources is responsible for
the other information.

We report to you if:
 we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014;
 we make written recommendations to the audited body under Section 24
of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014;
 we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of
account is contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014;
 we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014; or
 we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this
report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of the other information, we are required to
report that fact.

We have nothing to report in these respects

We have nothing to report in this regard.

14

Audit Report

Our opinion on the financial statements

Agenda Pack Page 23

Responsibility of the Chief Finance Officer

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Chief Finance
Officer’s Responsibilities set out on page 14 , the Chief Finance
Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Authority’s
Statement of Accounts, which includes the pension fund financial
statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom 2018/19, and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
(UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements, the Chief Finance Officer is
responsible for assessing the Pension Fund’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Pension Fund either intends to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at
https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms
part of our auditor’s report.

15

Audit Report

Our opinion on the financial statements
Use of our report

Agenda Pack Page 24

This report is made solely to the members of Hertfordshire County Council,
as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014 and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 43 of the
Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by
Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Council and the Council’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Suresh Patel (Key Audit Partner)
Ernst & Young LLP (Local Auditor)
Luton
Date

The maintenance and integrity of the Hertfordshire County Council web site
is the responsibility of the directors; the work carried out by the auditors
does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the
auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to
the financial statements since they were initially presented on the web site.
Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.

16

Agenda Pack Page 25

04 Audit Differences
17

Audit Differences
In the normal course of any audit, we identify misstatements between amounts we believe should be recorded in the financial statements and the
disclosures and amounts actually recorded. These differences are classified as “known” or “judgemental”. Known differences represent items that can be
accurately quantified and relate to a definite set of facts or circumstances. Judgemental differences generally involve estimation and relate to facts or
circumstances that are uncertain or open to interpretation.

Summary of adjusted differences

Agenda Pack Page 26

We have not identified any audit differences above our reporting threshold of £2.4m.
We identified some minor disclosure amendments which management have accepted. We not consider them to merit reporting to the Committee.
There were no uncorrected misstatements.

18

Agenda Pack Page 27

05 Other reporting issues

01
19

Other reporting issues
Consistency of other information published with the financial statements
We must give an opinion on the consistency of the pension fund financial and non-financial information in the Hertfordshire County Council accounts.
We have yet to complete this review.

Agenda Pack Page 28

Other powers and duties

We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to consider whether to report on any matter that comes to our attention in the
course of the audit, either for the Authority to consider it or to bring it to the attention of the public (i.e. “a report in the public interest”). We did not
identify any issues which required us to issue a report in the public interest.
We also have a duty to make written recommendations to the Authority, copied to the Secretary of State, and take action in accordance with our
responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. We did not identify any issues.

Other matters

As required by ISA (UK&I) 260 and other ISAs specifying communication requirements, we must tell you significant findings from the audit and other
matters if they are significant to your oversight of the pension fund’s financial reporting process. They include the following:
• Significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures;
• Any significant difficulties encountered during the audit;
• Any significant matters arising from the audit that were discussed with management;
• Written representations we have requested;
• Expected modifications to the audit report;
• Any other matters significant to overseeing the financial reporting process;
• Findings and issues around the opening balance on initial audits (if applicable);
• Related parties;
• External confirmations;
• Going concern; and
• Consideration of laws and regulations;
We have no matters to report.
20

Agenda Pack Page 29

Assessment of Control
06 Environment
21

Assessment of Control Environment
Financial controls

Agenda Pack Page 30

It is the responsibility of the Hertfordshire Pension Fund to develop and implement systems of internal financial control and to put in place proper
arrangements to monitor their adequacy and effectiveness in practice. Our responsibility as your auditor is to consider whether the Hertfordshire
Pension Fund has put adequate arrangements in place to satisfy itself that the systems of internal financial control are both adequate and effective in
practice.
As part of our audit of the financial statements, we obtained an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan our audit and determine the nature,
timing and extent of testing performed. As we have adopted a fully substantive approach, we have therefore not tested the operation of controls.

Although our audit was not designed to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control we are required to communicate to you significant
deficiencies in internal control.
We have not identified any significant deficiencies in the design or operation of an internal control that might result in a material misstatement in your
financial statements of which you are not aware.

22

Agenda Pack Page 31

07 Data Analytics
23

Use of Data Analytics in the Audit

Analytics Driven Audit

Data analytics
We used our data analysers to enable us to capture entire populations of your financial data. These
analysers:

Agenda Pack Page 32

• Help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be the focus of our substantive
audit tests; and
• Give greater likelihood of identifying errors than traditional, random sampling techniques.
In 2018/19, our use of these analysers in the authority’s audit included testing journal entries and
employee expenses, to identify and focus our testing on those entries we deem to have the highest
inherent risk to the audit.
We capture the data through our formal data requests and the data transfer takes place on a
secured EY website. These are in line with our EY data protection policies which are designed to
protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability of business and personal information.
Journal Entry Analysis
We obtain downloads of all financial ledger transactions posted in the year. We perform
completeness analysis over the data, reconciling the sum of transactions to the movement in the
trial balances and financial statements to ensure we have captured all data. Our analysers then
review and sort transactions, allowing us to more effectively identify and test journals that we
consider to be higher risk, as identified in our audit planning report.

Page 24

Data Analytics
Journal Entry Data Insights
The graphic outlined below summarises the journal population for 2018/19. We review journals by certain risk based criteria to focus on
higher risk transactions, such as journals posted manually by management, those posted around the year-end, those with unusual debit and
credit relationships, and those posted by individuals we would not expect to be entering transactions.
The purpose of this approach is to provide a more effective, risk focused approach to auditing journal entries, minimising the burden of
compliance on management by minimising randomly selected samples.

Agenda Pack Page 33
Page 25

Agenda Pack Page 34

08 Independence

26

Independence

Confirmation
We confirm that there are no changes in our assessment of independence since our confirmation in our Audit Plan dated 29 March 2019.
We complied with the FRC Ethical Standards and the requirements of the PSAA’s Terms of Appointment. In our professional judgement the
firm is independent and the objectivity of the audit engagement partner and audit staff has not been compromised within the meaning of
regulatory and professional requirements.

Agenda Pack Page 35

We consider that our independence in this context is a matter which you should review, as well as us. It is important that the Audit Committee
considers the facts known to you and come to a view. If you would like to discuss any matters concerning our independence, we will be
pleased to do this at the meeting of the Audit Committee on 19 July 2019.

Fee analysis

As part of our reporting on our independence, we set out below a summary of the fees paid for the year ended 31 March 2019.
We confirm that we have not undertaken non-audit work outside the NAO Code requirements.

Total Audit Fee – Code work

Final Fee
2018/19

Planned Fee
2018/19

Scale Fee
2018/19

Final Fee
2017/18

£

£

£

£

27,053

27,053

21,553

33,491

Consistent with previous years we will be seeking an additional fee of £5,500 in 2018/19 to take into account the additional work required to respond to
IAS19 assurance requests from scheduled bodies. The scale fee variation is subject to approved from PSAA.
The agreed fee presented is based on the following assumptions:
► Officers meeting the agreed timetable of deliverables; Our accounts opinion and value for money conclusion being unqualified;
► Appropriate quality of documentation is provided by the Pension Fund; and The Pension Fund has an effective control environment.
As we have substantially completed the audit, we expect the final fee to be £27,053.
27

Agenda Pack Page 36

09 Appendices

28

Appendix A

Audit approach update
We summarise below our approach to the audit of the balance sheet and any changes to this approach from the prior year audit.
Our audit procedures are designed to be responsive to our assessed risk of material misstatement at the relevant assertion level. Assertions relevant to
the balance sheet include:
Existence: An asset, liability and equity interest exists at a given date

•

Rights and Obligations: An asset, liability and equity interest pertains to the entity at a given date

•

Completeness: There are no unrecorded assets, liabilities, and equity interests, transactions or events, or undisclosed items

•

Valuation: An asset, liability and equity interest is recorded at an appropriate amount and any resulting valuation or allocation adjustments are
appropriately recorded

Agenda Pack Page 37

•

•

Presentation and Disclosure: Assets, liabilities and equity interests are appropriately aggregated or disaggregated, and classified, described and
disclosed in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. Disclosures are relevant and understandable in the context of the
applicable financial reporting framework

Net Assets Statement
category

Audit Approach in current year

Audit Approach in prior year

Investment Assets and
Liabilities

Substantively tested all relevant
assertions

Substantively tested all relevant
assertions

N/A

Long term assets

Immaterial - Substantively tested
assertion for presentation and
disclosure

Immaterial - Substantively tested
assertion for presentation and
disclosure

N/A

Current Assets (excluding
cash)

Substantively tested all relevant
assertions

Immaterial - Substantively tested
assertion for presentation and
disclosure

N/A

Cash

Substantively tested all relevant
assertions

Substantively tested all relevant
assertions

N/A

Current Liabilities

Immaterial - Substantively tested
assertion for presentation and
disclosure

Immaterial - Substantively tested
assertion for presentation and
disclosure

N/A

Explanation for change

29

Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit Committee
There are certain communications that we must provide to the Audit Committees of UK clients. We have detailed these here together with a reference of
when and where they were covered:

Terms of engagement

Agenda Pack Page 38

Confirmation by the audit committee of acceptance of terms of engagement as
written in the engagement letter signed by both parties.

The statement of responsibilities serves as
the formal terms of engagement between
the PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited
bodies.

Our responsibilities

Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter.

Planning and audit
approach

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and
the significant risks identified.

The statement of responsibilities serves as
the formal terms of engagement between
the PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited
bodies.
Audit planning report
March 2019

Significant findings
from the audit

• Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices
including accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement
disclosures
• Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit
• Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with
management
• Written representations that we are seeking
• Expected modifications to the audit report
• Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting
process

Required
communications

Our Reporting to you
What is reported?

When and where

Audit results report
July 2019

30

Appendix B (Continued)
Our Reporting to you
Required
communications
Public Interest Entities

What is reported?

Agenda Pack Page 39

For the audits of financial statements of public interest entities our written
communications to the audit committee include:
• A declaration of independence
• The identity of each key audit partner
• The use of non-member firms or external specialists and confirmation of their
independence
• The nature and frequency of communications
• A description of the scope and timing of the audit
• Which categories of the balance sheet have been tested substantively or
controls based and explanations for significant changes to the prior year,
including first year audits
• Materiality
• Any going concern issues identified
• Any significant deficiencies in internal control identified and whether they have
been resolved by management
• Subject to compliance with regulations, any actual or suspected non-compliance
with laws and regulations identified relevant to the audit committee
• Subject to compliance with regulations, any suspicions that irregularities,
including fraud with regard to the financial statements, may occur or have
occurred, and the implications thereof
• The valuation methods used and any changes to these including first year audits
• The scope of consolidation and exclusion criteria if any and whether in
accordance with the reporting framework
• The identification of any non-EY component teams used in the group audit
• The completeness of documentation and explanations received
• Any significant difficulties encountered in the course of the audit
• Any significant matters discussed with management
• Any other matters considered significant

When and where
Audit planning report, March 2019
and
Audit results report, July 2019

31

Appendix B (Continued)
Our Reporting to you
Required
communications

Going concern

What is reported?

When and where

Agenda Pack Page 40

Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability Audit results report, July 2019
to continue as a going concern, including:
• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty
• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements
• The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

Misstatements

•
•
•
•

Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion
The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods
A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected
Material misstatements corrected by management

Audit results report, July 2019

Subsequent events

• Enquiry of the audit committee where appropriate regarding whether any
subsequent events have occurred that might affect the financial statements.

Fraud

• Enquiries of the Audit Committee to determine whether they have knowledge of Audit results report, July 2019
any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the Authority
• Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates
that a fraud may exist
• Unless all of those charged with governance are involved in managing the
Authority, any identified or suspected fraud involving:
a. Management;
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
c. Others where the fraud results in a material misstatement in the financial
statements.
• The nature, timing and extent of audit procedures necessary to complete the
audit when fraud involving management is suspected
• Any other matters related to fraud, relevant to Audit Committee responsibility.

Audit results report, July 2019

32

Appendix B (Continued)
Our Reporting to you
Required
communications

What is reported?

When and where

Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the Authority’s
related parties including, when applicable:
• Non-disclosure by management
• Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions
• Disagreement over disclosures, Non-compliance with laws and regulations
• Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the Authority

Independence

Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all
Audit planning report, March 2019
individuals involved in the audit, objectivity and independence.
and
Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of Audit results report, July 2019
independence and objectivity such as:
• The principal threats
• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness
• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards
• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain
objectivity and independence
Communications whenever significant judgments are made about threats to
objectivity and independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place.

External confirmations

• Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations
• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures.

Consideration of laws
and regulations

• Subject to compliance with applicable regulations, matters involving identified or Audit results report, July 2019
suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations, other than those which are
clearly inconsequential and the implications thereof. Instances of suspected noncompliance may also include those that are brought to our attention that are
expected to occur imminently or for which there is reason to believe that they
may occur
• Enquiry of the audit committee into possible instances of non-compliance with
laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial statements
and that the audit committee may be aware of

Agenda Pack Page 41

Related parties

Audit results report, July 2019

Audit results report, July 2019

33

Appendix B (Continued)
Our Reporting to you
Required
communications

Agenda Pack Page 42

Significant deficiencies
in internal controls
identified during the
audit

What is reported?
• Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit.

When and where
Audit results report, July 2019

Written representations • Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those
charged with governance

Audit results report, July 2019

Material inconsistencies • Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information
or misstatements
which management has refused to revise

Audit results report, July 2019

Auditors report

• Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s
report

Audit results report, July 2019

Fee Reporting

• Breakdown of fee information when the audit planning report is agreed
• Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit
• Any non-audit work

Audit planning report, March 2019
and
Audit results report, July 2019

34

EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory
About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory
services. The insights and quality services we deliver help build
trust and confidence in the capital markets and in economies the
world over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to deliver
on our promises to all of our stakeholders. In so doing, we play a
critical role in building a better working world for our people, for
our clients and for our communities.
EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or
more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each
of which is a separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited, a
UK company limited by guarantee, does not provide services to
clients. For more information about our organization, please visit
ey.com.
© 2017 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.
ED None

Agenda Pack Page 43

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes only and is not
intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other professional advice. Please refer
to your advisors for specific advice.

ey.com

This page is intentionally left blank

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Agenda Item No:

PENSIONS COMMITTEE
FRIDAY 12 JULY 2019 AT 10.00AM

3

RESPONSE TO THE AUDIT RESULTS REPORT 2018/19 – PENSION FUND
Report of the Assistant Director of Finance
Author of the report: Matthew Nendick, Finance Manager (Tel: 01992 555683)
Executive Member: Ralph Sangster, Executive member for Resources & Performance
1.

Purpose of report

1.1

To provide the Committee with a response to Ernst & Young’s draft Audit Results
Report for the Pension Fund presented as a separate agenda item to this meeting.

2.

Response to the Annual Governance Report

2.1

Ernst & Young LLP have issued a draft Audit Results Report for the Pension Fund
following the audit of the 2018/19 annual report and accounts. Officers are pleased to
report that there are no recommendations and the auditors are expected to confirm
an unqualified opinion on the accounts. The report is in a draft form at present as we
await final sign off.

2.2

The audit identified a small number of minor disclosure errors which were agreed with
management for amendment. The Auditor did not consider any of these significant
and therefore did not provide further detail of these amendments in their report.

2.3

McCloud judgement
The audit results report references the ongoing national issue relating to an age
discrimination ruling arising from public sector pension scheme transition
arrangements. Following advice from CIPFA, the Fund treated this matter as a
contingent liability due to the uncertainty of the potential outcomes, however there is
recent indication that this may not be the correct accounting treatment. Both the lack
of clarity nationally, and the lateness of any information over the correct treatment of
this has been frustrating. At the time of writing this report, Fund officers are working
with EY and the actuary to assess any adjustments to the financial statements that
may be required.

3.

Letter of Representation

3.1

It is an annual requirement (set out on Page 5 of the Auditor’s draft report) for a letter
of representation from management to be prepared in order to gain management’s
confirmation in relation to a number of matters, for which the auditor does not
currently have sufficient audit evidence. A draft is attached at Appendix A to this

Agenda Pack Page 45

1

report for members to review. This letter is to be signed by the Director of Resources
and the Chairman of the Audit Committee.
4.

Recommendation

4.1

That the response to the Audit Results Report 2018/19 for the Pension Fund is
approved, and that the Letter of Representation is signed by the Director of
Resources and Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Agenda Pack Page 46

2

Item 3 – Appendix A

[To be prepared on the entity’s letterhead]
X July 2019
Suresh Patel
Associate Partner
Ernst & Young
400 Capability Green
Luton
LU1 3LU
Management Letter of Representation – Hertfordshire Pension Fund Audit 2018/19
This letter of representations is provided in connection with your audit of the financial
statements of Hertfordshire Pension Fund (“the Fund”) for the year ended 31 March 2019.
We recognise that obtaining representations from us concerning the information contained in
this letter is a significant procedure in enabling you to form an opinion as to whether the
ﬁnancial statements give a true and fair view of the ﬁnancial transactions of the Fund during
the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 and of the amount and disposition of the
Fund’s assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2019, other than liabilities to pay pensions and
beneﬁts after the end of the period, have been properly prepared in accordance with the
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2018/19.
We understand that the purpose of your audit of the Fund’s financial statements is to
express an opinion thereon and that your audit was conducted in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK), which involves an examination of the accounting
system, internal control and related data to the extent you considered necessary in the
circumstances, and is not designed to identify - nor necessarily be expected to disclose – all
fraud, shortages, errors and other irregularities, should any exist.
Accordingly, we make the following representations, which are true to the best of our
knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered necessary for the
purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:
A. Financial Statements and Financial Records
1.

We have fulfilled our responsibilities, under the relevant statutory authorities, for the
preparation of the financial statements in accordance with [the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015 and CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting
in the United Kingdom 2018/19.

2.

We confirm that the Fund is a Registered Pension Scheme. We are not aware of any
reason why the tax status of the scheme should change.

3.

We acknowledge, as members of management of the Fund, our responsibility for the fair
presentation of the financial statements. We believe the financial statements referred to
above give a true and fair view of the financial position and the financial performance of
the Fund in accordance with [the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19, and are free of material misstatements,
including omissions. We have approved the financial statements.

Agenda Pack Page 47

4.

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements
are appropriately described in the financial statements.

5.

As members of management of the Fund, we believe that the Fund has a system of
internal controls adequate to enable the preparation of accurate financial statements in
accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom 2018/19 that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

6.

There are no unadjusted audit differences identified during the current audit and
pertaining to the latest period presented.

B. Non-compliance with laws and regulations including fraud
1.

We acknowledge that we are responsible for determining that the Fund’s activities are
conducted in accordance with laws and regulations and that we are responsible for
identifying and addressing any non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations,
including fraud.

2.

We acknowledge that we are responsible for the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal controls to prevent and detect fraud.

3.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial
statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

4.

We have not made any reports to The Pensions Regulator, nor are we aware of any
such reports having been made by any of our advisors.

5.

There have been no other communications with The Pensions Regulator or other
regulatory bodies during the Fund year or subsequently concerning matters of
noncompliance with any legal duty. We have drawn to your attention all correspondence
and notes of meetings with regulators.

6.

We have no knowledge of any identified or suspected non-compliance with laws or
regulations, including fraud that may have affected the Fund (regardless of the source or
form and including without limitation, any allegations by “whistleblowers”), including noncompliance matters:
 Involving financial improprieties

C.



Related to laws or regulations that have a direct effect on the determination of
material amounts and disclosures in the Fund’s financial statements



Related to laws and regulations that have an indirect effect on amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, but compliance with which may be
fundamental to the operations of the Fund, its ability to continue, or to avoid
material penalties



Involving management, or employees who have significant roles in internal
control, or others



In relation to any allegations of fraud, suspected fraud or other non-compliance
with laws and regulations communicated by employees, former employees,
analysts, regulators or others.

Information Provided and Completeness of Information and Transactions

Agenda Pack Page 48

1.

We have provided you with:


Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of
the financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters.



Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit.



Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

2.

You have been informed of all changes to the Fund rules.

3.

All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected
in the financial statements.

4.

We have made available to you all minutes of the meetings of members of the
management of the Fund and committees of members of the management of the Fund
(or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been
prepared) held through the period to the most recent meeting on the following date: 19
July 2019.

5.

We confirm the completeness of information provided regarding the identification of
related parties. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Fund’s related parties and
all related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware, including sales,
purchases, loans, transfers of assets, liabilities and services, leasing arrangements,
guarantees, non-monetary transactions and transactions for no consideration for the
period ended, as well as related balances due to or from such parties at the period end.
These transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the financial
statements.

6.

We confirm the completeness of information provided regarding annuities held in the
name of the members of the management of the Fund.

7.

We have disclosed to you, and the Fund has complied with, all aspects of contractual
agreements that could have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of
non-compliance, including all covenants, conditions or other requirements of all
outstanding debt.

8.

No transactions have been made which are not in the interests of the Fund members or
the Fund during the fund year or subsequently.

9.

We believe that the significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates,
including those measured at fair value, are reasonable.

D.

Liabilities and Contingencies

1.

All liabilities and contingencies, including those associated with guarantees, whether
written or oral, have been disclosed to you and are appropriately reflected in the
financial statements.

2.

We have informed you of all outstanding and possible litigation and claims, whether or
not they have been discussed with legal counsel.

3.

We have recorded and/or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities relating to litigation and
claims, both actual and contingent, and confirm there are no guarantees that we have

Agenda Pack Page 49

given to third parties.
Subsequent Events
1.

There have been no events subsequent to the period end which require adjustment of or
disclosure in the financial statements or notes thereto.

F.

Other information

1.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the Annual Report.

2.

We confirm that the content contained within the other information is consistent with the
financial statements.

G.

Independence

1. We confirm that, under section 27 of the Pensions Act 1995, no members of the
management of the Fund of the Scheme is connected with, or is an associate of, Ernst &
Young LLP which would render Ernst & Young LLP ineligible to act as auditor to the
Scheme.
H. Derivative Financial Instruments
1. We confirm that all investments in derivative financial instruments have been made after
due consideration by the members of the management of the Fund of the limitations in
their use imposed by The LGPS Management and Investment of Funds Regulations
2016. The Fund’s Investment Strategy Statement has been duly reviewed to ensure that
such investments comply with any limitations imposed by its provisions. The financial
statements disclose all transactions in derivative financial instruments that have been
entered into during the period, those still held by the members of the management of the
Fund at the Fund’s year end and the terms and conditions relating thereto.
2. Management has duly considered and deemed as appropriate the assumptions and
methodologies used in the valuation of ‘over the counter’ derivative financial instruments
which the Fund is holding, and these have been communicated to you.
I. Pooling investments, including the use of collective investment vehicles and
shared services
1. We confirm that all investments in pooling arrangements, including the use of
collective investment vehicles and shared services, meet the criteria set out in the
November 2015 investment reform and criteria guidance and that the requirements of
the LGPS Management and Investment of Funds Regulations 2016 in respect of
these investments has been followed.
J. Actuarial valuation
1. The latest report of the actuary Hymans Robertson LLP as at 31 March 2016 and dated
31 March 17 has been provided to you. To the best of our knowledge and belief we
confirm that the information supplied by us to the actuary was true and that no significant
information was omitted which may have a bearing on his report.
K. Use of the Work of a Specialist

Agenda Pack Page 50

1. We agree with the findings of the specialists that we have engaged to value the Fund
and have adequately considered the qualifications of the specialists in determining the
amounts and disclosures included in the financial statements and the underlying
accounting records. We did not give or cause any instructions to be given to the
specialists with respect to the values or amounts derived in an attempt to bias their work,
and we are not otherwise aware of any matters that have had an effect on the
independence or objectivity of the specialists.

Yours sincerely,
_______________________
Director of Resources
_______________________
Chair of the Audit Committee

Agenda Pack Page 51

This page is intentionally left blank

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Agenda Item No:

PENSIONS COMMITTEE
FRIDAY 12 JULY 2019 AT 10:00AM

4

PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT AND STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2018/19
Report of the Director of Resources
Author: James Kidd – Senior Accountant (Telephone: 01992 555706)
1

Purpose of the Report

1.1. To provide the Pension Committee with the audited Pension Fund Annual
Report and Statement of Accounts for 2018/19 (“Report and Accounts”). This is
attached at Appendix A.
2

Summary

2.1 The Pension Fund accounts are audited separately by Ernst & Young (EY) LLP
and a separate Audit Results Report (ARR) is issued for these accounts. The
ARR and the Authority’s response to this are included as separate items on this
agenda. There were no recommendations arising from the audit of the Pension
Fund’s accounts.
2.2 During 2018/19 the value of the Pension Fund increased by £336.0m, the
majority of this increase relating to return on investments. The overall
investment return for the year was 6.9% (net of fees) which was in excess of
the benchmark of 5.1% for the year.
2.3 The number of members in the Pension Fund increased by 3,949 from 103,866
at 31 March 2018 to 107,815 at 31 March 2019.
2.4 During the external audit review of the Report and Accounts by Ernst & Young
(EY) there were a small number of amendments made to the accounts
regarding minor presentational and disclosure corrections, but EY determined
that these did not require any comment in their report.
2.5 Extracts of the Report and Accounts will be included within the County
Council’s Statement of Accounts that will be submitted to the Audit Committee
on 19 July 2019.
3

Recommendations

3.1 The Pensions Committee is asked to;

Note and comment on the audited Annual Report and Statement of
Accounts for 2018/19.

Agenda Pack Page 53

1


4

Approve the July 2019 Governance Statement in Appendix B, to be
used going forward.

2018/19 Report and Accounts

4.1 During 2018/19 the value of the Pension Fund increased by £336.0m, the
majority of this increase relating to return on investments. The overall
investment return for the year was 6.9% (net of fees) which was in excess of
the benchmark of 5.1% for the year.
4.2 The fund continued to be cash flow positive (describing a position whereby
contributions received from employers and members outweighs benefits paid to
pensioners). Committee have received reports previously that outline how, as
the fund matures, the position reverses and cash flows out of the fund become
greater.
4.3 The table below shows how the increase of £336.0m is comprised:
£m
197.7
(158.2)
(9.0)

(1.7)
(1.2)
(9.9)

290.4
28.1
(0.2)

£m
Additions from contributions and other income
relating to members
Benefits payable to members
Payments to and on account of leavers
Net additions relating to members’ contributions
30.5
and payments
Administrative costs
Oversight and governance costs
Investment management expenses
(12.9) Management Expenses
Increase in the market value of investments and
profits and losses from the sale of investments
Investment income
Tax on income
318.4 Net return on investments
336.0 Increase in the Pension Fund during 2018/19

4.4 An explanation for any significant movements within the Fund Account
(Appendix A, p23) between 2017/18 and 2018/19 is provided below.
4.5 Employee and employer contributions increased from £171.8m to £179.9m,
largely as a result of an increase in contributing membership, which increased
by 1,994 in year to 36,419. Pensions payable in year also increased, from
£122.7m to £130.0m.
4.6 Management expenses fell by 11.9% from £12.0m to £9.9m whilst
outperforming the benchmark by 1.8%. This is largely as a result of the

Agenda Pack Page 54

2

movement of assets to the Fund’s asset pool, ACCESS (A Collaboration of
Central, Eastern and Southern Shires). This movement has allowed
Hertfordshire Pension Fund and other funds within ACCESS to negotiate lower
fees from Fund Managers.
4.7 Investment income fell by £11.5m to £28.1m in 2018-19. Following the
dismissal of Jupiter as one of the Fund’s active equity managers in February
2018, assets were moved to index-linked gilts in preparation for investment in
Real Assets (Infrastructure Debt, Private Rental Sector and High Lease Value).
At 31 March 2019, £59.7m had been drawn down to these categories
(explained in 4.11 below). The remaining allocation (£390.2m) remains within
index-linked gilts.
4.8 Profits on the disposal of investments and changes in the value of investments
increased from £203.3m in 17/18 to £290.4m in 18/19. This reflects the
increased investment return for the year of 6.9% compared to 5.5% in 2017/18.
The return achieved on the Pension Fund’s investments outperformed the
market, as the benchmark return was 5.1%. A review of world markets is
provided as part of the Investment report on page 63 of the Annual Report and
Statement of Accounts.
4.9 The table below summarises the Net Asset Statement (Appendix A, p24), and
highlights the movement in the main asset classes between 31 March 2018 and
31 March 2019.
31 March 2018
£000s

31 March 2019

£000s

815,111

£000s
Equities

% Change

£000s

472,469

(42.0%)

332,065

12.2%

Pooled investment vehicles:
295,919

Pooled property investments

1,844,181

Unitised insurance policies

1,898,841

3.0%

606,178

Unit trusts

1,298,690

114.2%

116,026

Private equity

143,294

23.5%

-

Infrastructure Debt

685,216

Other managed funds

(660)

Derivative contracts

101,564

Cash deposits

7,647

Other investment balances

4,471,181
1,478

(25.9%)

(550)

(16.7%)

83,796

(17.5%)

2,094

(72.6%)

4,799,177
739

Net Current Assets

4,499,017

507,774

Total Investment Assets & Liabilities
Long term assets

26,358

59,798

(50.0%)

35,998

Net assets of the Fund available to fund
benefits as at 31st March

Agenda Pack Page 55

7.3%

36.6%

4,835,004

7.5%

3

4.10 The Fund transitioned two mandates to ACCESS, the Fund’s asset pool, in
2018-19;
 UK equity mandate with Baillie Gifford
o £343m held within the ‘Equity’ category in the Net Asset
Statement.
o £14.5m previously held within the ‘Other Managed Funds’
category in the Net Asset Statement.


Global equity mandate with Baillie Gifford
o £241.3m previously held within the ‘Other Managed Funds’
category in the Net Asset Statement.

Due to the change in legal ownership under ACCESS, these assets are now
categorised as ‘Unit Trusts’ on the Net Asset Statement. The values
transitioned are disclosed under note 6.7 on page 32.
4.11 The Fund committed £150m to Infrastructure Debt following the Pension
Committee meeting on 10 July 2018, of which £59.7m was drawn down as at
31 March 2019. The Fund also committed £150m to ‘Private Rental Sector’
assets at the Pension Committee meeting on 5th September 2018. None of this
commitment was drawn down as at 31 March 2019.
4.12 New commitments of £67.9m were made to private equity funds in 2018-19,
with £31.6m of commitment drawn down in year.
4.13 Cash deposits held with the Fund’s custodian decreased from £101.6m to
£83.8m. The main movements in cash deposits are due to;
 Movement of (£16.8m) UK equity cash deposits to ACCESS (held under
‘Unit Trusts’ at 31 March 2019),
 Purchase of property assets of (£7.7m) from previously held cash
deposits,
 Distributions from private equity fund managers resulted in an increase
in cash deposits of £3.8m, and
 Sales of £2.8m of equity assets, held for reinvestment.
4.14 Pending purchases and sales at 31 March 2018 of £3.6m were carried out in
2018-19, resulting in a decrease in ‘Other Investment Balances’.
5 Annual Report
5.1 The Annual Report summarises the main aspects of the Pension Fund and is
split into four sections – Scheme Administration, Administering Authority
Report, Financial Statements and Investment Report.
5.2 Scheme Administration (p3)
This section provides a background to the Scheme, describes how it is funded
and details the main benefits for members.

Agenda Pack Page 56

4

5.3 Administering Authority Report (p6 – 20)
This section outlines how the Hertfordshire Pension Fund is governed and
managed and includes the following statements and policies:




Governance and Compliance Statement (pages 7 – 12) – Appendix B
outlines the July 2019 update to this statement, which is proposed to be
used going forward.
Communication Policy Statement (pages 16-17)
Actuarial Statement for 2018/19 (pages 18-19)

An annual performance report is provided on pages 15 - 16 of the Annual report
which provides a summary of the performance of the Administering Authority,
Pensions Administration Service and employers during the year.
A summary of membership to the Scheme is provided on pages 20-21 of the
Annual report including the distribution of Scheme members across employer
categories. This shows an increase in total membership of 3,949 members
from 103,866 at 31 March 2018 to 107,815 at 31 March 2019. Of the overall
increase, active members increased by 1,994, deferred members by 938 and
pensioners by 1,017.
5.4 Financial Statements (p21 – 51)
This section includes the 2018/19 Pension Fund Accounts, discussed in section
4 above. This includes the Fund Account and Net Asset Statement, Statement
of Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts.
5.5 Investment Report (p52 – 66)
This section sets out the context for investment and the background against
which investments took place and includes the following:
5.5.1 Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) (p53 – 60)
This section sets out the investment strategy that was in place for the period
covered by the Annual Report and Accounts.
5.5.2 The performance of the Pension Fund’s investments against
benchmark over 2018/19 and the longer term. Performance over 18/19
outperformed the general benchmark, with the fund returning 6.9% (net of fees)
against a benchmark of 5.1%.
5.6 Appendix 3 – ACCESS Annual Report (p99 – 102)
An overview of the ACCESS pool, providing details of its governance structure,
key milestones and progress to date. Expenditure and savings to date are
outlined, along with Environmental, Social and Governance commentary.
6

Post audit changes

6.1 During the audit by Ernst & Young, a small number of minor amendments and
corrections were highlighted and made to the Annual Report and Accounts

Agenda Pack Page 57

5

2018/19, however EY did not determine that any of these were material enough
to require disclosure.

Agenda Pack Page 58

6

Item 4 Appendix A

Hertfordshire County Council
Pension Fund
Annual Report and
Statement of Accounts
2018/19

Agenda Pack Page 59

Contents
Page










Introduction
1. Foreword

2

2. Financial Summary

2

Scheme Administration
1. Background to the Scheme

3

2. Funding

3

3. Benefits

4

Administering Authority Report
1. Management

6

2. Governance and Compliance Statement

7

3. Risk Management

13

4. Administration

13

5. Communication

16

6. Actuarial Valuation Report

18

7. Membership

20

Financial Statements
1. Statement of Responsibilities

21

2. Independent Auditor’s Report

22

3. Fund Account

23

4. Net Assets Statement

24

5. Statement of Accounting Policies

25

6. Notes to the Accounts

29

Investment Report
1. Investment Management

52

2. Investment Strategy Statement

53

3. Investment Policy

61

4. Review of World Markets

63

5. Investment Performance

64

 Appendices



1. List of Employing Bodies

67

2. Funding Strategy Statement

72

3. ACCESS Annual Report

99

Glossary to the Annual Report and Accounts

Agenda Pack Page 60

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

103

1

Introduction
1. Foreword
This report provides information for employers and other interested parties on how the Hertfordshire Pension Fund
(“Pension Fund”) has been managed during the year 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019.
This report summarises the main features of the Pension Fund, providing:





a brief outline of the Local Government Pension Scheme (“Scheme”)
the Administering Authority Report which outlines the management and administrative arrangements for the Pension
Fund
the financial statements comprising of the Fund Account and Net Assets Statement for the year 2018/19 with
comparative information for the previous year. The Fund Account shows the change in net assets available for
benefits during the year. The Net Assets Statement discloses the net assets of the Pension Fund at 31 March 2018
an Investment Report which sets out the Pension Fund’s Investment Policy and the level of performance achieved.

Over the year, the value of the Pension Fund increased from £4,499m at 31 March 2018 to £4,835m at 31 March 2018.
The return achieved on the Pension Fund’s investments during 2018/19 net of fees was 6.9% which reflected general
market conditions over the year and above the benchmark return of 5.1%. A review of world markets is provided as part
of the Investment report on page 63.
Over 2018/19 membership of the Pension Fund has continued to increase both in terms of the number of scheme
employers and contributing members. The number of contributing members has increased from 34,425 at 31 March
2018 to 36,419 at 31 March 2019. The number of scheme employers also increased from 320 at 31 March 2018 to 336
at 31 March 2019 as a result of schools converting to academy status and new employers seeking admission to the
Pension Fund following the outsourcing of service contracts from scheme employers.
2. Financial Summary
The table below provides a five year summary of the Pension Fund accounts and a graph showing the movement in the
value of the Pension Fund over this period. This shows the net assets available to fund benefits at 31 March each year.
2014/15

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

3,175,783

3,581,039

3,584,250

4,243,371

(18,538)

13,430

23,978

27,532

(16,164)

(15,927)

(14,786)

(14,629)

Management expenses

(12,882)

439,958

5,708

649,930

242,744

Net returns on investments

318,394

Increase / (Decrease) in the Pension Fund
during the year

335,987

405,256

3,211

659,121

255,646

3,581,039

3,584,250

4,243,371

4,499,017

4,499,017

Value of the Pension Fund at 1 April
Net additions / (withdrawals) from dealing with
those directly involved in the scheme

30,474

Value of the Pension Fund at 31 March

4,835,004

Value of Fund (£m)
6000
5000
4000
3000
2000
1000
0
31.03.15

31.03.16

31.03.17

31.03.18

Agenda Pack Page 61

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

31.03.19

2

Scheme Administration
1. Background to the Scheme
Legal Framework
The Scheme is a statutory scheme, established by Act of Parliament, the Superannuation Act 1972. The Scheme is
governed by the Public Services Pensions Act 2013 and is administered in accordance with the following secondary
legislation:




Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended)
Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings & Amendment) Regulations 2014 (as
amended)
Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016

The Scheme is run by administering authorities in accordance with these regulations. In Hertfordshire the Administering
Authority is Hertfordshire County Council.
Eligibility
The Scheme is available to all employees of local authorities other than teachers, fire personnel and a number of Public
Health staff for whom separate pension arrangements apply. Employees are able to join the Scheme if they have a
contract of employment of three months or more duration.
Other specified bodies providing public services are included by statute or may apply for admission.
Employers
At 31 March 2019 there were 336 employers in the Pension Fund. Participating employers can be scheduled bodies or
admitted bodies, as defined below:


Scheduled bodies. Employers such as the County Council (including maintained schools), Academies and District
and Borough Councils, whose employees are automatically entitled to be members of the Fund.



Designated bodies. Organisations such as Parish and Town Councils whose employees are able to join the
Scheme if the employer designates that they can.



Admitted bodies. These are voluntary, charitable and, in certain circumstances, private sector organisations
carrying out scheduled bodies’ contracts, where staff can become members of the Scheme by virtue of an Admission
Agreement between the Pension Fund and the relevant body. At 31 March 2019 there were 131 admitted bodies
participating in the Pension Fund.

A full list of employing bodies in the Pension Fund is shown in Appendix 1 at page 67.
The table below provides an analysis of scheduled and admitted bodies at 31 March 2018 and an analysis of active
employers and employers that have ceased (these are employers with no active members but with outstanding liabilities).
Admitted bodies may have more than one Admission Agreement in the Pension Fund relative to the service contracts
they hold with scheduled bodies.

Type of Body

Active

Ceased

Total

Admitted bodies

48

83

131

Designated bodies

39

3

42

Scheduled bodies

158

5

163

Total

245

91

336

2. Funding
The Scheme is a funded scheme, financed by contributions from employees and employers and by earnings from
investments. The Pension Fund has published a Funding Strategy Statement (shown in Appendix 2 at page 72, which
sets out the Pension Fund’s strategy for meeting employers’ pension liabilities. The aim of the funding strategy is to
ensure the long-term solvency of the Pension Fund and to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet all benefits
as they fall due for payment.

Agenda Pack Page 62

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

3

Scheme Administration
Employees’ Contributions
During 2018/19, employees paid contributions at a rate based on their earnings, including contractual and noncontractual overtime and additional hours. From 1 April 2014, the Scheme moved from a final salary scheme to a career
average revalued earnings (CARE) scheme. As part of the CARE scheme, employees can elect to move to the 50/50
option which allows employees to pay half the normal contributions in return for half the normal pension benefits.
The rates and salary bandings applicable during 2018/19 are shown in the table below.
Band

Range

Contribution Rate

1

£0 - £14,100.99

5.50%

2

More than £14,101 up to £22,000.99

5.80%

3

More than £22,001 up to £35,700.99

6.50%

4

More than £35,701 up to £45,200.99

6.80%

5

More than £45,201 up to £63,100.99

8.50%

6

More than £63,101 up to £89,400.99

9.90%

7

More than £89,401 up to £105,200.99

10.50%

8

More than £105,201 up to £157,800.99

11.40%

9

More than £157,800

12.50%

Employers’ Contributions
Employers’ contributions are payable at rates specified by the Pension Fund Actuary and are reviewed each triennial
valuation. Rates are adjusted to reflect changes in the employer’s membership profile and funding level in the Pension
Fund (see page 20 for further details).
Investment Income
The cash, which is not immediately required to pay pensions and other benefits, is invested and provides an additional
source of income for the Pension Fund.
Fund investments during 18/19 were governed by the 2017 Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) which details investment
strategy, asset allocation, risk analysis, and the fund’s approach to Environmental, Social and corporate Governance
(ESG) considerations. The ISS is included from page 53.
3. Benefits
The Scheme is a salary-related defined benefit scheme which guarantees to provide benefits which are a specified
fraction of a Scheme member’s pay. Benefits are not affected by variations in investment performance.
Full details of benefits payable are explained in the Scheme booklet which is available from the Pension Fund website at
https://www.yourpension.org.uk/Hertfordshire/Information-for-members/Introduction.aspx.
The following provides the main provisions of the benefit package for the Scheme.
Age of Retirement
The normal pension age in the Scheme is linked to State Pension Age, with a minimum of age 65. The Scheme also
makes provisions for the early payment of benefits and members can choose to retire and draw their pension at any time
from age 55. Benefits paid before normal pension age will be reduced to reflect that benefits will be paid over a longer
period of time.
Retirement Benefits
From 1 April 2014, the Scheme moved from a final salary scheme to a Career Average Revalued Earnings (CARE)
scheme
details
of
which
are
accessible
from
the
Pension
Fund
website
at
https://www.yourpension.org.uk/Hertfordshire/Pensions-Home.aspx.
For membership after 1 April 2014, members build up a pension at a rate of 1/49th of the amount of pensionable pay they
receive in each scheme year. The amount of pension built up during the scheme year is added to their pension account
and revalued at the end of each year in line with inflation. Up to 25% of the capital value of benefits can be taken as a
lump sum at a 12:1 commutation rate, i.e. £12 lump sum for every £1 of annual pension given up.

Agenda Pack Page 63

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

4

Scheme Administration
Benefits built up before 1 April 2014 are protected and are calculated using membership in the Scheme prior to 1 April
2015 and the member’s final pay when they leave the Scheme.
For membership built up between 1 April 2008 and 31 March 2014, the annual pension is based on final pensionable pay
multiplied by 1/60th for each year of Scheme membership. The final pensionable pay is the wage or salary on which
contributions were paid over the last 12 months of service. Up to 25% of the capital value of benefits can be taken as a
lump sum at a 12:1 commutation rate, i.e. £12 lump sum for every £1 of annual pension given up.
For membership accrued to 31 March 2008, members will receive an annual pension based on final pensionable pay
multiplied by 1/80th for each year of Scheme membership and a lump sum of three times annual pension. Up to 25% of
the capital value of benefits can be taken as a lump sum at a 12:1 commutation rate, i.e. £12 lump sum for every £1 of
annual pension given up.
Additional Benefits
The Scheme offers several ways for members to increase their benefits:



Additional Pension Contributions to purchase additional Scheme pension benefits.
Contributions to a money purchase Additional Voluntary Contribution scheme (“AVC”), provided by the Standard Life
Assurance Company or the Equitable Life Assurance Society.

Ill Health Retirement
A three tier ill health retirement provision is available which is dependent on the likelihood of a member being capable of
undertaking any gainful employment in the future. Benefits are calculated in the same way as for normal retirements,
with an enhancement for members in tiers 1 and 2 to compensate for premature retirement. Members in tier 3 who are
likely to be capable of undertaking gainful employment within three years of retiring must undergo a medical review after
18 months. At the end of the three year period the member will either have their pension benefits deferred to age 65 or
move to tier 2 following a medical assessment.
Death in Service
A lump sum death grant of three year’s assumed pensionable pay is payable. Pensions are also payable to surviving
spouses, civil partners, or to eligible nominated co-habiting partners (subject to qualifying conditions) and dependent
children.
Death after Retirement
Spouses’, civil partners’, eligible co-habiting partners’ and dependent children’s pensions are payable based on the
former employee’s pensionable pay or pension. In addition, if death occurred before the pension has been paid for ten
years; the balance will be paid as a lump sum.
The benefits detailed above are guidelines only and members should apply to the Local Pensions Partnership,
the Scheme Administrator, for individual estimates of benefits payable.

Agenda Pack Page 64

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

5

Administering Authority Report
1. Management
Hertfordshire County Council (the “County Council”) is the Administering Authority of the Pension Fund and administers
the Scheme on behalf of the participating employers and members.
The Local Authority (Functions & Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 (as amended), state that functions relating
to the Scheme are the responsibility of the full Council. The County Council has delegated these functions to the
Pensions Committee and to the County Council’s Chief Finance Officer, the Director of Resources.
The membership of the Pensions Committee is made up of ten County Council members and two District Council
representatives. All employers and a staff representative, nominated by UNISON, are invited to attend meetings as
observers.
The Administering Authority has established a Pension Board in accordance with Section 5 of the Public Service
Pensions Act 2013. The Board assists the Pension Fund in securing compliance with the Scheme regulations and other
legal and regulatory requirements. The membership of the Pensions Board is made up of four employer representatives
and four member representatives.
The Pension Fund’s Governance Compliance Statement that was in force during 2018/19 is included on pages 7 - 12.
This sets out the delegation of functions and terms of reference for the Pensions Committee and Pensions Board, and
has been updated to reflect the impact of Asset Pooling within ACCESS. It also outlines the Pension Fund’s compliance
with statutory guidance issued by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government.
Pensions Committee Membership from 1 April 2018 to 22 May 2018
JD Williams (Chairman)
CM Hayward (Vice-Chairman)
JM Graham
AJS Mitchell

K Ayling

County Council Members
S Quilty
R Sangster
R Parker
S Drury

J King
SJ Boulton

District Council Representatives (non-voting)
M Casey
J Lloyd

Pensions Committee Membership from 22 May 2018 (following committee restructure)

R Sangster (Chairman)
AJS Mitchell (Vice-Chairman)
JM Graham

County Council Members
S Quilty
CM Hayward (left September 2018)
R Parker

R C Deering

S Drury

K Ayling

M A Eames-Petersen
SJ Boulton
T Hutchings (from
2018)

September

District Council Representatives (non-voting)
M Casey
J Lloyd

Pensions Board Membership during 2018/19
Employer Representatives
Member Representatives
Board Members
D Ashley
K O’Daly
G Clay
M Collier
D Graham
J Digby (left March 2019)
P Neville (left March 2019)
G Johnson (from Dec 2018)
Substitute Members
J Hurley
D Gooden (from Dec 2018)
J Anderton
T Perkins (from Dec 2018)
T Hone
C Roberts (left September 2018)
M Green (left March 2019)

Agenda Pack Page 65

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

6

Administering Authority Report
2. Governance and Compliance Statement
This statement is prepared in accordance with regulation 55 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations
2013, which require administering authorities to maintain and publish a governance compliance statement. It has been
prepared by the Administering Authority in consultation with appropriate interested persons.
This statement was approved by the Pensions Committee on 4th September 2017.
Delegation of Functions
The Administering Authority for the Local Government Pension Scheme in Hertfordshire is Hertfordshire County Council
(the “County Council”). Management of the Local Government Pension Scheme is a non-executive function.
The Local Authority (Functions & Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 (as amended), state that the functions
relating to the Local Government Pension Scheme are the responsibility of the full Council. The County Council has
delegated these functions to the Pensions Committee, whose members can make decisions without reference to the full
Council.
The Pensions Committee are responsible for the functions set out in the following regulations:




Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013
Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings & Amendment) Regulations 2014
Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016.

In parallel to this, the County Council has delegated functions relating to the Pension Fund to the County Council’s Chief
Finance Officer, the Director for Resources, as specified in Annex 3 of the County Council’s Constitution.
The Pension Committee is supported by a cross-party working group consisting of four members (in proportion to the
political representation of the full Council) from the Pension Committee, supported by officers and external advisors –
such as the investment consultant. The remit of this group going forwards will be to support Officers with decisions
required when transitioning to the new Investment Strategy, as well as support with other pension related matters where
appropriate.
The County Council has established a Pension Board in accordance with Section 5 of the Public Service Pensions Act
2013. In accordance with Sections 5(1) and (2) of the Act and section 106 of the Local Government Pension Scheme
regulations 2013, the role of the Board is to:
 Secure compliance with:
The Local Government Pensions Scheme regulations;
Other legislation relating to the governance and administration of the Local Government Pension Scheme; and
The requirements imposed by the Pension Regulator in relation to the Local Government Pension Scheme;
and to
 Ensure the effective and efficient governance and administration of the Local Government Pension Scheme.
Terms of Reference
The functions relating to the management and governance of the Pension Fund have been delegated as follows.
The Pensions Committee is responsible for policy matters including:











Setting and monitoring performance objectives for the Pension Fund
Approval and review of the overall investment strategy of the Pension Fund
Approval and review of asset allocation decisions
Performance monitoring Investment Managers and investments
Appointing (and, when necessary, dismissing) Investment Managers*
Appointing (and, when necessary, dismissing) Investment Consultants
Appointing (and, when necessary, dismissing) the Pension Fund Actuary
Appointing (and, when necessary, dismissing) the Pension Fund Custodian
Setting and approving Administering Authority discretions for the Local Government Pension Scheme
Approval of key policies and statements:
- Investment Strategy Statement
- Funding Strategy Statement
- Governance Compliance Statement
- Communications Strategy Statement
 Agreeing and monitoring actions to address findings from any review of Pension Fund activities

Agenda Pack Page 66

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

7

Administering Authority Report
*At present this responsibility sits with the Pension Committee, however as the national pooling of LGPS funds
progresses, this responsibility will ultimately transfer to the operator of the ACCESS pool (A Collaboration of Central,
Eastern and Southern Shires) - of which Hertfordshire is a member. The Pension Committee will still retain control over
the asset allocation, and sub-funds utilised by the Operator of the Pool.
The primary governance function of the ACCESS pool is the Joint Governance Committee (JGC), which is made up of
the chairs of each of the eleven funds within the ACCESS pool.
The ACCESS Joint Governance Committee is responsible for:










Specifying the Operator services to be procured;
Procuring the Operator;
Appointing the Operator;
Reviewing the performance of the Operator;
Managing the Operator;
Appointment of advisers;
Functions in relation to management of pool assets;
Functions concerning pool aligned assets; and
Functions concerning business planning and budget.

The Pension Board is responsible for:
 Scrutinising the progress of actions to meet the performance objectives of the Pension Fund
 Reviewing and monitoring the training plan of the Pensions Board and elected members and officers with delegated
responsibilities for the management and administration of the Pension Fund
 Reviewing and monitoring the performance of external business partners, including the pensions administration
service, the actuary, the custodian and the investment consultant
 Reviewing and monitoring the Risk Register and risk monitoring of scheme employers
 Reviewing the implementation of revised policies and procedures, including the Administering Authority discretions
 Reviewing the compliance of projects commissioned by the Pensions Committee, including the Triennial Valuation of
the Pension Fund
 Ensuring pension rules and regulations are being complied with, when officers are making decisions on pension
matters
 Scrutinising data quality
 Reviewing internal audit reports
 Assisting in the development of improved customer services
 Reviewing compliance of Investment Managers with Investment Management Agreements
 Reviewing progress of agreed actions to address findings from any review of the Pension Fund activities.
All other operational decisions in the administration and management of the Pension Fund including exercising the
Administering Authority’s Discretions are delegated to the County Council’s Chief Finance Officer, the Director of
Resources.

Agenda Pack Page 67

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

8

Administering Authority Report
Membership, Voting and Meetings
The membership, voting rights and frequency of meetings of the Pensions Committee and Pensions Board are set out in
the table below:
Pensions Committee
Membership

Chairman

Ten County Council members (in
proportion to the political representation
of the full Council) and three (nonvoting) District Council representatives
elected by the Hertfordshire Leaders’
Group as outlined in Annex 3 (section
2.4) of the Hertfordshire County Council
Constitution.
Elected by full Council

Pensions Board
Four employer representatives and
four member representatives

Elected by the Pension Board and
rotated annually between member and
employer representatives

Observers

Staff representative, nominated by
UNISON
Voting
County Council Members, as elected
All employer and member
Members of the Administering Authority, representatives have voting rights
have voting rights in accordance with
the Local Government (Committee and
Political Groups) Regulations 1990 SI
No 1553 5 (1)(d).
Meetings per annum
Six
Four
Further information on the constitution of the Pension Board, including the appointment of employer and member
representatives, standards and conflicts of interest can be found in Annex 23 of the County Council’s Constitution.
Training
The Pensions Committee agreed a training policy for the Pensions Committee and Board at their meeting on 13 November
2015. This sets out the training principles and objectives of the Pension Fund, the application of the policy and details of
how training will be delivered. This policy will be reviewed as part of the forward business plan for both the Pension
Committee and Pension Board.
The Pension Board agreed a training programme for its members on 14th March 2017 within its Annual Report, which set
out a schedule of modules based on CIPFA guidelines in order to meet the requirements for knowledge and understanding
required by the Pensions Regulator.

Agenda Pack Page 68

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

9

Administering Authority Report
Compliance with Statutory Guidance
The following table provides a summary of how the Pension Fund complies with the statutory guidance issued by the
Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government.
Pension Fund Compliance Statement
Principle

Compliance and Comments

A.

Structure

a)

The management of the administration of benefits and
strategic management of fund assets clearly rests with
the main committee established by the appointment
Council.

b)

That representatives of participating LGPS employers,
admitted bodies and scheme members (including
pensioner and deferred members) are members of either
the main or secondary committee established to underpin
the work of the main committee.

c)

Full

Full

That where a secondary committee or panel has been
established, the structure ensures effective
communication across both levels.

d)

That where a secondary committee or panel has been
established, at least one seat on the main committee is
allocated for a member from the secondary committee or
panel.

B.

Representation

a)

That all key stakeholders are afforded the opportunity to
be represented within the main or secondary committee
structure. These include:
i)

employing authorities (including non-scheme
employers, e.g. admitted bodies):

Not applicable
Not applicable

Full
The County and District Councils, whose
employees make up 67% of the active
membership, are represented on the
Pensions Committee.
The Pensions Board is made up of four
employer representatives and four scheme
member representatives

ii)

scheme members (including deferred and pensioner
scheme members);

iii)

independent professional observers, and

iv)

expert advisors (on an ad-hoc basis)

Full
UNISON has an observer place on the
Pensions Committee to represent all
Scheme members.
No – the Committee takes regular input from
external professional advisors (see below). It
is considered that an additional independent
professional advisor would come at a cost,
but not add significant value.
Full
The Pension Fund’s Investment Adviser,
Actuary and Administrator attend the
Pensions Committee when appropriate.

Agenda Pack Page 69

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

10

Administering Authority Report
Pension Fund Compliance Statement
Principle
b)

That where lay members sit on a main or secondary
committee, they are treated equally in terms of access to
papers and meetings, training and are given full
opportunity to contribute to the decision making process,
with or without voting rights

Compliance and Comments

Full

C.

Selection and Role of Lay Members

a)

That committee or panel members are made fully aware
of the status, role and function they are required to
perform on either a main or secondary committee.

b)

That at the start of any meeting, committee members are
invited to declare any financial or pecuniary interest
related to specific matters on the agenda.

Full

D.

Voting

Full

a)

The policy of individual administering authorities on voting
rights is clear and transparent, including the justification
for not extending voting rights to each body or group
represented on main LGPS committees.

E.

Training/Facility Time/Expenses

a)

That in relation to the way in which statutory and related
decisions are taken by the administering authority, there
is a clear policy on training, facility time and
reimbursement of expenses in respect of members
involved in the decision-making process.

Training is provided internally and externally
and offered to all Pensions Committee and
Board members. Reimbursement of
expenses is covered by the members’
allowance schemes in their authority.

b)

That where such a policy exists, it applies equally to all
members of committees, sub-committees, advisory
panels or any other form of secondary forum.

Full

c)

That the administering authority considers the adoption of
annual training plans for committee members and
maintains a log of all such training undertaken.

F.

Meetings (frequency/quorum)

a)

That an administering authority’s main committee or
committees meet at least quarterly.

b)

That an administering authority’s secondary committee or
panel meet at least twice a year and is synchronised with
the dates when the main committee sits.

c)

That administering authorities who do not include lay
members in their formal governance arrangements,
provide a forum outside of those arrangements by which
the interests of key stakeholders can be represented.

G.

Access

a)

That subject to any rules in the council’s constitution, all
members of main and secondary committees or panels
have equal access to committee papers, documents and
advice that falls to be considered at meetings of the main
committee.

Agenda Pack Page 70

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

Full

The policy is clear that only County Council
members can vote. The Pensions
Committee believes that the voting
arrangements are justified, because in
practice the vast majority of decisions are
reached by consensus.
Full

Full

Full

Not applicable
Full
An annual employers’ forum is held to
update employers on Pension Fund matters.

Full

11

Administering Authority Report
Pension Fund Compliance Statement
Principle

Compliance and Comments

H.

Scope

a)

That administering authorities have taken steps to bring
wider scheme issues within the scope of their governance
arrangements.

I.

Publicity

a)

That administering authorities have published details of
their governance arrangements in such a way that
stakeholders with an interest in the way in which the
scheme is governed, can express an interest in wanting
to be part of those arrangements.

Agenda Pack Page 71

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

Full

Full

12

Administering Authority Report
3. Risk Management
Responsibility for the risk management of the Pension Fund rests with the Pensions Committee and is assisted by the
Pensions Board in the monitoring of risks.
Key risks are incorporated in the Pension Fund’s Risk Register, which was approved by the Pensions Committee on
7 March 2017 as part of the Funding Strategy Statement.
Four key risks to the Pension Fund have been identified:





The Pension Fund’s Investment Strategy does not deliver the long term projected investment returns and/or does not
comply with legislation.
The funding level of the Pension Fund deteriorates.
Employers default on meeting their obligations to the Pension Fund and the Scheme.
The Pension Fund and its third party providers do not comply with regulations, statute or procedure.

A number of underlying risk control mechanisms are in place that aim to manage these risks and these are detailed in the
Funding Strategy Statement on page 72. Risks are monitored on a regular basis and quarterly reports are presented to
the Pensions Committee and Board, providing an update on the status of these risks. The quarterly reports and minutes
of the Pensions Committee and Board meetings are accessible from
https://cmis.hertfordshire.gov.uk/hertfordshire/Calendarofcouncilmeetings.aspx.
Investment risk and return objectives for the Pension Fund are set out in the Investment Strategy which is reviewed at
regular intervals to ensure that it will achieve the objectives. Note 6.15 of the Financial Statements provides details on
the nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments and how these are managed.
Employers are monitored against a risk monitoring framework that aims to identify employers at an early stage who are at
risk of defaulting on their obligations to the Pension Fund. A quarterly update is provided to the Pensions Committee and
Board.
4. Administration
Hertfordshire County Council is the Administering Authority of the Pension Fund and administers the Scheme in
conjunction with the contracted business services listed below.
Scheme Administrator providing scheme administration services for members in conjunction with the County
Council:

Local Pensions Partnership (LPP)
Investment Managers during 2018/19 investing funds on behalf of the Pension Fund:

Allianz Global Investors Europe GmbH

Baillie Gifford & Co.

CBRE Global Collective Investors (UK) Limited

HarbourVest Partners, LLC

Jupiter Asset Management Limited

LGT Capital Partners (Ireland) Limited

Legal & General Assurance (Pensions Management) Limited

Macquarie Financial Products Management Limited

Pantheon Ventures UK LLP

Permira Advisers, LLP

Royal London Asset Management Limited

Standard Life Investments Limited

UBS Group AG
ACCESS Operator

Link Fund Solutions Ltd
Custodian maintaining and managing investment records and safeguarding the Pension Fund’s assets:

BNY Mellon Asset Servicing B.V. (for assets outside of the ACCESS pool)

Northern Trust Corporation (through the ACCESS operator for assets within the ACCESS pool)
Consulting Actuary providing actuarial services:

P Summers, Fellow of the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries, for and on behalf of Hymans Robertson LLP

Agenda Pack Page 72

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

13

Administering Authority Report
Investment Consultant providing investment advice:

Mercer Limited
Corporate Governance Adviser providing voting services:

Research, Recommendations and Electronic Voting Limited
Performance Measurement Consultants providing independent reporting on investment performance:



BNY Mellon Asset Servicing B.V. (for assets outside of the ACCESS pool)
Northern Trust Corporation (through the ACCESS operator for assets within the ACCESS pool)

Additional Voluntary Contributions providers for members wishing to increase benefits:

The Equitable Life Assurance Society

Standard Life Assurance Company
External Auditor:

Suresh Patel, for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP
Banker:


Barclays Bank, plc

Legal advisor:
Squire Patton Boggs (UK) LLP
The Pension Fund is a member or subscriber of the following bodies:
 Local Authority Pension Fund Forum
 Local Government Pension Committee
 Pension and Lifetime Savings Association
Key contacts
Administering Authority

Scheme Administrator

For Investments

For Benefits and Administration

Patrick Towey
Herts Finance Service
Hertfordshire County Council
Postal Point CHO 327
County Hall, Pegs Lane
Hertford, SG13 8DQ

Louise Charman
Local Pensions Partnership
Hertfordshire Pension Team
Postal Point CHO 033
County Hall, Pegs Lane
Hertford, SG13 8DQ

01992 555148
pensions.team@hertfordshire.gov.uk

01992 555478
hertscc@localpensionspartnership.org.uk

Legal Adviser
Quentin Baker (with effect from May 2019)
Chief Legal Officer, Hertfordshire County Council
Administration Strategy
The Pension Fund has published an Administration Strategy (“Strategy”) that sets out the responsibilities of the Pension
Fund and employers and defines the required performance standards expected of the Pension Fund and its employers
and also provides details of the charges that will be levied for non-compliance.
The Strategy has been prepared in accordance with regulation 59 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations
2013 (as amended). This enables a Local Government Pension Scheme Fund to prepare an administration strategy to
support the delivery of a high quality administration service.
The Strategy was produced in consultation with employers and subsequent revisions are made in consultation with
employers and approved by the Pensions Committee. The latest version was approved by the Pensions Committee on
27 February 2015 and implemented on 1 April 2015 and is accessible from the Pension Fund website at:
http://www.yourpension.org.uk/Hertfordshire/Fund-information/Policy-statements.aspx.

Agenda Pack Page 73

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

14

Administering Authority Report
Annual Performance Report
A set of key performance indicators has been agreed and approved by the Pensions Committee and these are used to
measure and report on the performance of the Administering Authority, the outsourced pensions administration service
provider LPP and employers. Performance is reported to the Pensions Committee and Board on a quarterly basis and
the reports and minutes from these meetings are accessible from:
http://cmis.hertfordshire.gov.uk/hertfordshire/CabinetandCommittees.aspx.
Performance of the Administering Authority
The following table provides details of the Pension Fund’s management costs shown as a unit cost per member
(contributors, deferred and pensioner) and as a percentage of Net Assets, with comparative data for 2017/18.

2017/18

2018/19

Trend

Total management costs per member

£140.84

£119.48



Administrative expenses per member

£14.36

£16.04



Total management costs as a percentage of Net Assets

0.33%

0.27%



The Administering Authority is measured against performance and compliance with statutory requirements placed on
administering authorities for the administration of pension funds. Performance of the Administering Authority is reviewed
by periodic Internal Audit review and by the volume of complaints or internal disputes raised against the Administering
Authority. The following provides details of performance for 2018/19:







The annual external audit was carried out between February and July 2018 by Ernst & Young LLP. This reviewed
the 2017/18 Annual Report and Accounts to provide a true and fair opinion on the financial statements. Ernst &
Young LLP issued a positive Audit Results Report with no recommendations for improvements.
The annual assurance audit was carried out between October 2018 and April 2019 by the Shared Internal Audit
Service. The audit reviewed controls and procedures for pensions administration. The audit report was issued in
April 2019 with satisfactory assurance that effective controls are in operation.
As part of the annual external review of the 2018/19 Annual Report and Accounts, during February 2019, Ernst &
Young LLP carried out an assessment of internal controls. Ernst & Young LLP’s findings from the assessment will
be published in July 2019 as part of the 2018/19 Audit Results Report for the Pension Fund.
During 2018/19 there were seven Internal Disputes against the Administering Authority; two of these were upheld
and 1 was outstanding at year end. A copy of the internal disputes resolution procedure is accessible from the
Pension Fund website,
http://www.yourpension.org.uk/Hertfordshire/Information-for-members/Customer-CareComplaints
The Pension Fund achieved the statutory deadline of 31 August 2018 for the issue of the 2018 Annual Benefit
Statements for 98.6% of members. Those members who did not receive their statements by the deadline were
supplied with an interim statement, due to severe delays from 3 employers’ payroll providers.

Performance of the Pensions Administration Service
Performance of the pensions administration service delivered by the LPP is measured against targets set out in the
Service Level Agreement and against the number of complaints raised about service delivery. The following provides
details of performance for 2018/19:



During 2018/19, 103 complaints were received; 93 of these were upheld and resolved, 9 were not upheld and 1 was
outstanding at year end.
Efficiency of the pensions administration service is measured against Service Level Agreement performance targets
which are monitored and reported on a monthly basis. The following chart sets out results for 2018/19 for key
service tasks.
Pensions Administration Task

Annual Total

Within
Standard

Joiners to the LGPS

5,489

6 working days

97.87%

Pensions transfers in and out

4,146

6 working days

84.83%

Processing pensions benefits for retirements and deaths

6,242

5 working days

81.50%

Providing deferred members with a benefit statement

6,010

30 working days

82.60%

5 working days

80.58%

5 working days

84.13%

Processing refunds of pensions contributions
Providing estimates of retirement benefits
1

Standard 1

2,394
3,094

From receipt of accurate information

Agenda Pack Page 74

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

15

Administering Authority Report

Agenda Pack Page 75

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

17

Administering Authority Report
Performance of Employers
Employers’ performance in administering the Scheme is measured against targets set out in the Administration Strategy
and compliance with performance standards. The following provides details of performance for 2018/19:





A total of 29 charges were levied against 24 employers (9.09% of active employers) for late submission of
contribution returns or late payment of monthly contributions for contributions. Interest was levied on employers for
late payment of contributions in accordance with regulation 70 of the Local Government Pension Scheme
Regulations 2013 (as amended).
90.1% of active employers paid contributions by the due date each month.
90.5% of active employers submitted monthly contribution returns by the due date.

To ensure compliance with the statutory deadline for the issue of the 2018/19 Annual Benefit Statements to LGPS
members, the Pension Fund worked with scheme employers to ensure they understood their responsibilities under the
Scheme and the sanctions that may apply if requirements were not met and implemented a communication plan for
advising scheme employers of the requirements, timescales and support available. 35 invoices were raised against
employers who were late with their end of year returns.
5. Communication
The Pension Fund has published a Communication Policy Statement which sets out how it communicates with employers
and representatives of employers, Scheme members and prospective Scheme members. It was approved by the
Pensions Committee on 4th September 2017.
Communication Policy Statement
This Statement is prepared in accordance with Regulation 61 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations
2013, which requires an Administering Authority to prepare, maintain and publish a statement on its policy for
communicating with members and employing authorities.
Employers
The following methods are used to communicate with employers in the Pension Fund:


Annual General Meeting/Employer Forum
All employers are invited to attend, to listen to presentations on topical issues and to raise questions about the
Pension Fund.



Quarterly Employer Newsletters and Ad Hoc Bulletins
All employers receive quarterly newsletters which provide information, advice and guidance about administering the
Scheme. Ad hoc bulletins are also published to advise employers about specific issues that require attention or
action e.g. changes to Scheme regulations.



Annual Report and Accounts
A copy of this publication is sent to all employers and is available from the Pension Fund’s website:
https://www.yourpension.org.uk/Hertfordshire/Fund-information/Annual-reports.aspx



Hertfordshire Chief Finance Officers’ Meeting
The Assistant Director (Finance) for the County Council keeps in contact with the District and Borough Councils
through these meetings and keeps them up to date with pension matters.



Pension Committee Reports and Minutes
These are available to employers and members who wish to review them, from the Hertfordshire County Council
website: http://cmis.hertfordshire.gov.uk/hertfordshire/CabinetandCommittees.aspx



Pension Board Reports and Minutes
These are available to employers and members who wish to review them, from the Hertfordshire County Council
website: http://cmis.hertfordshire.gov.uk/hertfordshire/CabinetandCommittees.aspx



Guidance and Help
Hertfordshire County Council staff and the Local Pensions Partnership (LPP), the Pension Fund’s outsourced
scheme administrator, are available to give advice on the telephone, by letter or by email. Comprehensive
information and guidance is also accessible from the Pension Fund website:
https://www.yourpension.org.uk/Hertfordshire/Pensions-Home.aspx

Agenda Pack Page 76

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

18

Administering Authority Report
Scheme Members*
The following methods are used to communicate with Scheme members:


Telephone Helpline
The LPP provide a telephone helpline for all enquiries from Scheme members on any aspect of their pension
arrangements.



Annual Benefit Statements
All active and deferred Scheme members receive an Annual Benefit Statement (ABS) setting out the level of benefits
that have been built-up, along with a forecast of benefits at retirement.



Internet
The Pension Fund’s website provides information about Scheme benefits. Scheme members may also have
access to information about their pension benefits by subscribing to an online service.



Information Letters
Information about changes in regulations is provided to employees via their employers in a range of media, including
e-mail and letter.



Payslips
All pensioners receive at least three payslips each year and messages are included whenever there is new
information to be communicated.



Newsletter for Pensioners
An annual newsletter is mailed to pensioners and two in-year newsletters are published and are accessible from the
Pension Fund website.

*The scheme has largely moved to electronic means of communication (including ABS Statements, Payslips and
Pensioner Newsletters) with members, as opposed to paper copies, where possible. This includes online self-service, as
well as e-mail communications, notifications and alerts. The Fund provided members with two written notices to this
effect, allowing members the opportunity to opt-out of electronic communication, and continue to receive paper copies.
Prospective Scheme Members
The methods used to ensure that prospective members are aware of the Scheme and its benefits are:


Job Advertisements
Many employers advertise the benefits of the Scheme in their job advertisements.



Scheme Booklet
All new starters in the employing organisations in the Pension Fund are provided with a Scheme booklet which
summarises the benefits available from the Pension Fund.



Induction Sessions
Employers in the Pension Fund are encouraged to include pensions in their induction sessions for new starters.

Agenda Pack Page 77

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

19

Administering Authority Report
6. Actuarial Valuation Report
The Pension Fund is financed by contributions from employees and employers and by investment income earned on
accumulated funds not immediately required for the payment of benefits and expenses. The Pension Fund Actuary
reports periodically to the County Council on the Pension Fund’s solvency and to identify the contributions payable by
employers to the Pension Fund in the future to meet the funding objectives of the Pension Fund.
The Pension Fund has published a Funding Strategy Statement (see page 72), which sets out the Pension Fund’s
strategy for meeting employers’ pension liabilities. The aim of the funding strategy is to ensure the long-term solvency of
the Pension Fund and to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet all benefits as they fall due for payment. The
Pension Fund Actuary takes account of the Funding Strategy Statement when advising on the level of employer
contributions to be paid.
Actuarial Statement for 2018/19
Provided by Hymans Robertson LLP
This statement has been prepared in accordance with Regulation 57(1)(d) of the Local Government Pension Scheme
Regulations 2013. It has been prepared at the request of the Administering Authority of the Fund for the purpose of
complying with the aforementioned regulation.
Description of Funding Policy
The funding policy is set out in the Administering Authority’s Funding Strategy Statement (FSS), dated February
2017. In summary, the key funding principles are as follows:
 to ensure the long-term solvency of the Fund using a prudent long term view. This will ensure that
 sufficient funds are available to meet all members’/dependants’ benefits as they fall due for payment;
 to ensure that employer contribution rates are reasonably stable where appropriate;
 to minimise the long-term cash contributions which employers need to pay to the Fund, by recognising the
 link between assets and liabilities and adopting an investment strategy which balances risk and return;
 to reflect the different characteristics of different employers in determining contribution rates. This involves
 the Fund having a clear and transparent funding strategy to demonstrate how each employer can best
 meet its own liabilities over future years; and
 to use reasonable measures to reduce the risk to other employers and ultimately to the Council Tax payer
 from an employer defaulting on its pension obligations.
The FSS sets out how the Administering Authority seeks to balance the conflicting aims of securing the solvency of the
Fund and keeping employer contributions stable. For employers whose covenant was considered by the Administering
Authority to be sufficiently strong, contributions have been stabilised to return their portion of the Fund to full funding over
20 years if the valuation assumptions are borne out. Asset-liability modelling has been carried out which demonstrate that
if these contribution rates are paid and future contribution changes are constrained as set out in the FSS, there is at least
a 66% chance that the Fund will return to full funding over 20 years.
Funding Position as at the last formal funding valuation
The most recent actuarial valuation carried out under Regulation 62 of the Local Government Pension Scheme
Regulations 2013 was as at 31 March 2016. This valuation revealed that the Fund’s assets, which at 31 March 2016 were
valued at £3,584 million, were sufficient to meet 91% of the liabilities (i.e. the present value of promised retirement
benefits) accrued up to that date. The resulting deficit at the 2016 valuation was £336 million.
Each employer had contribution requirements set at the valuation, with the aim of achieving full funding within a time
horizon and probability measure as per the FSS. Individual employers’ contributions for the period 1 April 2017 to 31
March 2020 were set in accordance with the Fund’s funding policy as set out in its FSS.
Principal Actuarial Assumptions and Method used to value the liabilities
Full details of the methods and assumptions used are described in the 2016 valuation report.
Method
The liabilities were assessed using an accrued benefits method which takes into account pensionable membership up to
the valuation date, and makes an allowance for expected future salary growth to retirement or expected earlier date of
leaving pensionable membership.

Agenda Pack Page 78

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

20

Administering Authority Report
Assumptions
A market-related approach was taken to valuing the liabilities, for consistency with the valuation of the Fund assets at
their bid market value.
The key financial assumptions adopted for the 2016 valuation were as follows:
Financial ass
31 March 2016
% (p.a)

Financial assumptions
Discount rate

4.0%

Salary increase assumption

2.2%

Benefit increase assumption (CPI)

2.1%

The key demographic assumption was the allowance made for longevity. The life expectancy assumptions are based on
the Fund's VitaCurves with improvements in line with the CMI 2013 model, assuming the current rate of improvements
has reached a peak and will converge to long term rate of 1.25% p.a. Based on these assumptions, the average future
life expectancies at age 65 are as follows:
Males Females
Males

Females

Current Pensioners

22.5 years

24.9 years

Future Pensioners*

24.1 years

26.7 years

*Aged 45 at the 2016 Valuation.

Copies of the 2016 valuation report and Funding Strategy Statement are available on request from the Administering
Authority to the Fund.
Experience over the period since 31 March 2016
Since the last formal valuation, real bond yields have fallen placing a higher value on the liabilities but there have been
strong asset returns over the 3 years. Both events are of broadly similar magnitude with regards to the impact on the
funding position.
The next actuarial valuation will be carried out as at 31 March 2019. The Funding Strategy Statement will also be
reviewed at that time.

Peter Summers FFA
Fellow of the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries
For and on behalf of Hymans Robertson LLP
9 April 2019
Hymans Robertson LLP
20 Waterloo Street
Glasgow

Agenda Pack Page 79

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

21

Administering Authority Report
7. Membership
The following graph shows the changes in membership over the last five years and the following table analyses the
membership between member groups along with comparative figures for 2018.
45,000
40,000
35,000
30,000
25,000

Contributors
Deferred Benefits

20,000

Pensioners

15,000
10,000
5,000
0
2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

31 March 2018*

31 March 2019

34,425

Contributors

36,419

26,960

Pensioners

27,977

42,481

Deferred benefits (former contributors)

43,419

103,866

107,815

Total Members

*The 2017/18 membership figures have been updated from those published in the 2017/18 Annual Report following late
notifications of changes of membership. This is to ensure that the most accurate figures available are reported.
Changes in contributor members during the year
Admissions

7,049

Retirements

(496)

Other leavers

(4,559)

Total net movement

1,994

The table below shows an analysis of the membership of the Pension Fund between the Administering Authority,
admitted bodies and other employers at 31 March 2019.
Contributors

Pensioners

Deferred Benefits

Administering Authority

18,898

14,798

28,019

Admitted Bodies

1,541

2,208

1,864

Other scheduled bodies

15,980

10,971

13,536

Total

36,416

27,977

43,419

Agenda Pack Page 80

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

83

Financial Statements
1.

Statement of Responsibilities

Hertfordshire County Council’s Responsibilities
Hertfordshire County Council is the Administering Authority of the Pension Fund. The Administering Authority is required
to:


make arrangements for the proper administration of the financial affairs of the Pension Fund and to secure that one of
its officers has responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this Administering Authority that officer is the
Chief Finance Officer;



manage the affairs of the Pension Fund to secure economic, efficient and effective use of the Pension Fund’s
resources and safeguard its assets; and



approve the Statement of Accounts.

The Chief Finance Officer’s Responsibilities
The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Pension Fund’s statement of accounts in accordance
with proper practices as set out in the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and Local Authority
(Scotland) Accounts Advisory Committee (LASAAC) Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom.
In preparing this statement of accounts, the Chief Finance Officer has:


selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;



made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;



complied with the Code of Practice.

The Chief Finance Officer has also:


kept proper accounting records which were up to date;



taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Agenda Pack Page 81

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

22

Financial Statements
2.
Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Hertfordshire County Council on the Pension Fund’s
financial statements
To be inserted upon conclusion of Audit.

Agenda Pack Page 82

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

23

Financial Statements
3. Fund Account
2017/18
£000s

2018/19
£000s

Note

£000s

£000s

35,382

Contributions receivable from members

6.1

37,082

136,379

Contributions receivable from employers

6.1

142,856

Transfers from other schemes or funds

6.2

17,759

17,635
112

Other income
189,508

(122,729)

9

Additions from dealings with those directly involved in the
Scheme

197,706

Pensions Payable

(22,904)

(130,031)

Commutation of pensions and lump sum retirement benefits

(2,468)

(25,092)

Lump sum death benefits
(148,102)

(3,094)

Benefits

6.3

(626)

Refunds to members leaving scheme or fund

(58)

Payments for members joining state scheme

(13,190)

Transfers to other schemes or funds
(13,874)

27,532

Oversight and governance costs

30,474

(1,217)
6.5

(9,936)

(12,882)
6.6

Taxes on income
Profits and losses on disposals of investments and changes in
value of investments

242,744

(50)

Management expenses
Investment Income

203,256

(8,964)

(1,729)

Investment management expenses

(167)

(8,472)

Net additions/(withdrawals) from dealings with
members

(1,166)

39,655

4
6.4

Refund to employers upon cessation

Administrative costs

(14,629)

(497)

Payments to and on account of leavers

(1,491)
(11,972)

(158,217)

Net return on investments

28,106
(156)

6.7

290,445

318,394

4,243,371

Net increase in the net assets available for benefits
during the year
Opening net assets of the Fund

4,499,017

4,499,017

Closing net assets of the Fund

4,835,004

255,646

Agenda Pack Page 83

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

335,987

24

Financial Statements
4. Net Assets Statement
31-Mar-18
£000s

Note

£000s

815,111

Equities

31-Mar-19
£000s

£000s

472,469

Pooled investment vehicles:
295,919

Pooled property investments

1,844,181

332,065

Unitised insurance policies

1,898,841

606,178

Unit trusts

1,298,690

116,026

Private equity

-

143,294

Infrastructure Debt

685,216

59,798

Other managed funds

16

507,774

Derivative contracts

101,564

355

Cash deposits

13,501

83,796

Other investment balances

4,477,710

(676)

Investment assets

2,094

Derivative contracts

(5,854)

(910)

Other investment balances
(6,530)

4,471,181
1,478

1,478

4,799,177

6.8a

-

Investment liabilities

(910)

Net investment assets

6.8a

Long term financial assets

6.10

4,798,267
739

Total non-current assets and liabilities

739

29,780

Current assets

6.11

39,961

(3,422)

Current liabilities

6.12

(3,963)

26,358

4,499,017

Total current assets and liabilities
Net assets of the Fund available to fund benefits
as the end of the reporting period.

35,998

4,835,004

S Crudgington
Director of Resources

Agenda Pack Page 84

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

25

Financial Statements
5. Statement of Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation
The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19 which is based upon International Financial Reporting Standards, as
amended for the UK public sector.
The accounts summarise the transactions for the 2018/19 financial year and net assets of the Pension Fund as at 31
March 2019. The accounts do not take account of obligations to pay pensions and benefits which fall due after the end of
the financial year. The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits at the Net Assets Statement date is
detailed in section 6.16.
Valuation of Assets
Financial assets are included in the net asset statement on a fair value basis as at the reporting date. A financial asset or
liability is recognised in the net asset statement on the date the Pension Fund becomes party to the contractual
acquisition of the asset or to the liability. From this date, any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
asset or liability are recognised in the Fund Account. The values of investments as shown in the Net Asset Statement
have been determined at fair value in accordance with the regulation of the Code, IFRS13 and IFRS9. There has been no
change to the valuation of investment assets as a result of the adoption of IFRS9 as all investment assets were, and
continue to be, valued at fair value through profit and loss. The values of investments as shown in the net assets
statement have been determined as follows:











Market-quoted securities, for which there is a readily available market price, are valued at bid price at the close of
business on the net asset date.
Fixed interest securities are recorded at net market value based on their current yields.
Pooled investment vehicles are valued at the closing bid price if both bid and offer prices are quoted by the respective
Investment Managers. If only a single price is quoted, investments are valued at the closing single price. In the case
of pooled investment vehicles that are accumulation funds, the change in market value also includes income which is
reinvested in the fund, net of applicable withholding tax.
Unquoted investments for which market quotations are not readily available are valued having regard to the latest
dealings, professional valuations, asset values and other appropriate financial information.
Indirect private equity investments are interests in limited partnerships and are stated at the partnership’s estimate of
fair value. Investments are valued based on the Pension Fund’s share of the net assets of the private equity fund.
For private equity limited partnerships there is usually a time delay in receiving information from the private equity
Investment Managers. The valuations shown in the Net Assets Statement for these investments are the latest
valuations provided to the Pension Fund, adjusted for cash movements between the valuation date and the net asset
date.
Forward foreign exchange contracts are stated at fair value which is determined as the gain or loss that would arise
from closing out the contract at the balance sheet date by entering into an equal and opposite contract.
Investment assets and liabilities include cash balances held by the Investment Managers and debtor and creditor
balances in respect of investment activities as these form part of the net assets available for investment.
Rights issues are processed on ex-date. If the value of the rights on ex-date is 15% or more of the value of the
underlying security, cost is allocated from the parent to the rights. If the value is less than 15%, the rights are
allocated at zero cost.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution, repayable without penalty and on notice of not more than
24 hours. Cash equivalents comprise investments that are held to meet short-term liabilities rather than for investment or
other purposes. These are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
that are subject to minimal risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts, repayable on demand and which form an integral
part of the County Council’s treasury management function, are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents.
Foreign Currency Translation
All investments are shown in Sterling. Dividends, interest, purchases and sales of investments in foreign currencies have
been accounted for at the spot market rate at the date of transaction. End of year spot market exchange rates are used
to value foreign currency cash balances, market values of overseas investments and purchases and sales outstanding at
the net asset date.
Gains and losses on exchange arising from foreign currency investment and cash balances are included within the Fund
Account for the year.

Agenda Pack Page 85

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

26

Financial Statements
Management Expenses
The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2017, allows the
Administering Authority to charge directly to the Pension Fund any costs or expenses incurred in administering it.
Management expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis and disclosed in accordance with the 2017 CIPFA
guidance ‘Accounting for Local Government Pension Scheme Management expenses’ and analysed between
administrative costs, oversight and governance costs and investment management expenses.
Fees of the external Investment Managers are agreed in the respective mandates governing their appointment. Fees are
based on the market value of the portfolio under management. Where an Investment Manager’s fee note has not been
received for the final period, an estimate based on the market value of their mandate as at the end of the year is used for
inclusion in the Fund Account. In 2018/19, £57,024 was based on such estimates.
Investment management expenses include transaction costs relating to the purchase and sale of investments.
VAT
The Pension Fund is exempt from VAT and is therefore able to recover such deductions. Investment management and
administrative expenses are therefore recognised net of any recoverable VAT.
Benefits Payable
Pension and lump sum benefits payable include all amounts known to be due as 31 March 2019. Any amounts due but
unpaid are disclosed in the Net Assets Statement as current liabilities.
Contributions
Normal contributions, both from members and employers, are accounted for on an accruals basis, at the percentage rate
certified by the Pension Fund Actuary in the payroll period to which they relate. Employer deficit funding contributions are
accounted for on an accruals basis in accordance with the period to which they relate or are due, or on a cash basis if the
payment is an additional contribution in excess of the minimum required by the Pension Fund Actuary and set out in the
Rates and Adjustments Certificate.
Pension strain contributions and employers’ augmentation contributions are accounted for in the period in which the
liability arises. Any amount due in year but unpaid is classed as a current financial asset.
Transfers to and from other schemes
Transfer values represent the amounts received and paid during the year for members who have joined or left the
Pension Fund during the financial year and are calculated in accordance with Scheme regulations. Transfer values are
treated on a cash basis when they are paid or received, which is normally when the member liability is accepted or
discharged. Transfers in from members wishing to use the proceeds of their additional voluntary contributions to
purchase Scheme benefits are accounted for on a receipts basis and are included in transfers in. Bulk transfers are
accounted for on an accruals basis in accordance with the terms of the transfer agreement.
Investment Income
Investment income earned by the Pension Fund on its investments is recognised as follows:








Interest income is recognised in the Fund Account as it accrues, using the effective interest rate of the financial
instrument as at the date of acquisition or origination. Income includes the amortisation of any discount or premium,
transaction costs or other differences between the initial carrying amount of the instrument and its amount at maturity
calculated on an effective interest rate basis.
Dividend income is recognised on the date the shares are quoted ex-dividend. Any amount not received by the end
of the reporting period is disclosed in the Net Assets Statement under other investment balances.
Investment income earned on pooled investment vehicles that are accumulation funds, where income is retained and
automatically reinvested, are shown as changes in the value of investments in the Fund Account.
Income from private equity investments are reported on the quarterly valuations provided by the private equity
Investment Managers. Income is recognised in the period in which the valuation is received.
Distributions from other pooled investment vehicles are recognised at the date of issue. Any amount not received by
the end of the reporting period is disclosed in the Net Asset Statement under other investment balances.
Changes in the value of investment income are accounted for as income and comprise all realised and unrealised
profits and losses during the year.

Taxation
The Pension Fund is a registered public service scheme under section 1(1) of Schedule 36 of the Finance Act 2004 and
as such, is exempt from UK income tax on interest received and from capital gains tax on the proceeds of investments
sold. Tax is deducted from dividends paid on UK equities, which is not recoverable. Income from overseas investments
suffers a withholding tax in the country of origin, unless exemption is permitted. Provision is made for the estimated sums
to be recovered and income grossed up accordingly. Irrecoverable tax is accounted for as a Pension Fund expense as it
arises.
Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19
27

Agenda Pack Page 86

Financial Statements
Security Lending
The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 (as amended) permit
the Pension Fund to lend up to 35% of its securities from its portfolio of stocks to third parties in return for collateral. The
Pension Fund has set a limit of 20% of the total Fund value. The securities on loan are included in the Net Assets
Statement to reflect the Pension Fund’s continuing economic interest of a proprietorial nature in these securities.
Additional Voluntary Contribution Investments
The County Council has arrangements with the Standard Life Assurance Company and the Equitable Life Assurance
Society to enable employees to make Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs) to enhance their pension benefits.
AVCs are invested separately from the Pension Fund’s main assets and the assets purchased are specifically allocated
to provide additional benefits for members making AVCs. As these contributions do not form part of the Pension Fund’s
investments, the value of AVC investments are excluded from the Pension Fund’s Net Assets Statement in accordance
with regulation 4(2)(c) of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations
2009 (as amended).
Actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits:
The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefit is assessed on an annual basis by the Scheme actuary in
accordance with the requirements of IAS 19 and relevant actuarial Standards. As permitted under the Code, the Fund
has opted to disclose the actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits by way of a note to the accounts.
Prior period adjustments
There were no material prior period adjustments in 2018/19 that require disclosure.
Events after the Net Asset Date
There were no material post balance sheet events after 31 March 2019 that require disclosure.
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
In applying the accounting policies set out above, the Pension Fund has had to make certain judgements about complex
transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. The critical judgements made in the accounts are:


Valuation of private equity investments: Unquoted private equities are valued by the Investment Managers using
the International Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation Guidelines. These are inherently based on forward
looking estimates and judgements involving many factors.



Pension fund liability: The Pension Fund liability is calculated every three years by the Pension Fund Actuary,
with annual updates in the intervening years. The methodology used is in line with accepted guidelines and in
accordance with IAS19. Assumptions underpinning the valuations are agreed with the Actuary and are summarised
in note 6.16. This estimate is subject to significant variances based on changes to the underlying assumptions.

Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty
Preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported for assets and liabilities as at the net asset date and the amounts reported for revenues and expenses
during the year. Estimates and assumptions are made taking into account historical experience, current trends and other
relevant factors. However, the nature of estimation means that actual outcomes could differ from those assumptions and
estimates. The key judgements and estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of causing material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are:


Valuation of private equity investments: The valuations for private equity investments shown in the Net Assets
Statement are based on the latest valuations provided to the Pension Fund, adjusted for cash movements between
the valuation date and the net asset date. This may result in a variance between the valuation included in the
Financial Statements and the actual value of the Pension Fund’s investments as at 31 March 2019 issued by each of
the private equity Investment Managers. At 31 March 2019 private equity investments totalled £204.6 million
(including private equity investments held within the Global Alternatives Fund).



Contractual commitments: Commitments to the private equity funds are made in local currency (Sterling, Euros
and US dollars). The total remaining commitment to each private equity fund at 31 March 2019 has been converted
to base currency, based on exchange rates applicable at the net asset date. The exact timing and amounts of when
the Pension Fund’s commitment will be drawn down is uncertain and therefore the actual payments made by the
Pension Fund may be different from the estimates.

Agenda Pack Page 87

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

28

Financial Statements

Actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits: Estimation of the liability to pay retirement benefits
depends on a number of complex judgements relating to the discount rate used to value the liabilities, the rate at
which salaries increase, and changes in retirement ages and mortality rates. The consulting actuary to the Pension
Fund, Hymans Robertson, is engaged to provide the Pension Fund with expert advice about the assumptions to be
applied. Further information about the key assumptions used to calculate the actuarial present value of promised
retirement benefits and the effect on the pensions liability of changes in individual assumptions are shown in section
6.16.
NOTE: values throughout these accounts are presented rounded to whole numbers. Totals in supporting tables and notes
may not appear to cast, cross-cast, or exactly match to the core statements or other tables due to rounding differences.

Agenda Pack Page 88

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

29

Financial Statements
6. Notes to the Accounts
6.1 Contributions Receivable
2017/18
£000s

2018/19

£000s

£000s

£000s

Member contributions
35,088

Normal contributions

294

Additional contributions
35,382

36,805
277

Total member contributions

37,082

Employer contributions
119,709

Normal contribution

14,932

Deficit funding contribution
Augmentation and early retirement
strain costs

1,737

122,192
19,520
1,144

136,379

Total employer contributions

142,856

171,761

Total contributions receivable

179,938

Members’ additional contributions represent contributions from members to purchase additional years of
membership or pension in the Scheme.
Employers’ normal contributions represent the ongoing contributions paid into the Pension Fund by employers in
accordance with the Rates and Adjustments Certificate, issued by the Pension Fund Actuary. These reflect the cost
of benefits accrued by current members over the year.
Employers’ deficit funding includes:
£17,225,360 (£13,399,237 in 2017/18) past service adjustment which represents the additional contributions
required from employers towards the deficit where an employer’s funding level is less than 100%, as per the
Rates and Adjustments Certificate. The deficit recovery period varies depending on the individual circumstances
of each employer. For statutory bodies, the Pension Fund normally targets the recovery of any deficit over a
period not exceeding 20 years. For Transferee Admission Bodies the deficit recovery period would be the
shorter of the end of the employer’s service contract or the expected future working lifetime of the remaining
Scheme members. Further information can be found in the Pension Fund’s Funding Strategy Statement
accessible from https://www.yourpension.org.uk/Hertfordshire/Fund-information/Annual-reports.aspx.
£2,294,890 (£3,089,442 in 2017/18) paid by employers in excess of the minimum contribution levels required by
the Pension Fund Actuary in the Rates and Adjustments Certificate.
£nil (£nil in 2017/18) termination payments where an employer had ceased to be a participating employer in the
Pension Fund.
Contributions received are further analysed in the table below by type of employer.
2017/18
Member
£000s

2018/19

Member
£000s

Member

Employer

£000s

£000s

15,292

56,111

Administering Authority

16,017

58,345

17,824

69,058

Other Scheduled Bodies

18,906

74,493

2,265

11,210

Admitted Bodies

2,158

10,017

35,382

136,379

37,082

142,856

Total contributions receivable

6.2 Transfers from other Schemes or Funds
The Pension Fund received £17,759,249 (£17,635,234 in 2017/18) in relation to individual members’ transfers of
benefits into the Pension Fund. No amounts were received during the year for group transfers from other schemes.
Transfers are shown on a cash basis, in accordance with the accounting policy.

Agenda Pack Page 89

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

30

Financial Statements
6.3 Benefits
2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s

65,256

Administering Authority

70,031

68,694

Other Scheduled Bodies

72,578

14,152

Admitted Bodies

15,608

148,102

Total benefits payable

158,217

6.4 Transfers to other Schemes or Funds
2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s

13,190

Individual transfers

-

8,472

Bulk transfers

13,190

-

Total transfers out to other schemes

8,472

6.5 Management Expenses
The Pension Fund’s Investment Managers are remunerated on the basis of fees calculated as a percentage of
assets under management or as a fixed annual fee. Some Investment Managers also have a performance related
fee, payable where performance exceeds the performance target.
Investment management expenses include transaction costs associated with the acquisition, issue or disposal of
Pension Fund assets and associated financial instruments. In addition to these costs, indirect costs are incurred
through the bid-offer spread on investments sales and purchases. These are reflected in the cost of investment
acquisitions and in the proceeds from the sales of investments set out in note 6.7.
The Pension Fund’s assets are held in custody by an independent custodian. The custodian is responsible for the
safekeeping of the Pension Fund’s financial assets, the settlement of transactions, income collection, tax reclamation
and other administrative actions in relation to the Pension Fund’s investments.
The Pension Fund’s performance measurement service is provided by BNY Mellon. An analysis of the Pension
Fund’s performance is shown in the Investment Performance section on pages 64 – 66.
2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s

11,430

Management fees (including performance fees)

9,407

397

Transaction costs

360

145

Custody fees

168

11,972

Total investment management expenses

9,936

An analysis of transaction costs by asset class is shown in the following table;
2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s
395

Equities

253

-

Unitised Insurance Policies

-

Unit Trusts

83

-

Infrastructure Debt

11

2

Property

-

1

Alternatives

9

397

Total Transaction costs

Agenda Pack Page 90
Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

5

360

31

Financial Statements
6.6

Investment Income
a) Analysis of investment income
2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s
(2)

29,403
-

Income from fixed interest securities

-

Dividends from equities

19,206

Income from bonds

-

Income from pooled investment vehicles:
7,457

-

Pooled property investments

1,513

-

Other pooled investments

7,590
884

861

Interest on cash deposits

331

423

Other investment income

95

39,655

Total investment income

28,106

An analysis of investment income accrued during 2017/18 and 2018/19 is shown in the following table.
2017/18

b)

2018/19

UK

Overseas

Global

Total

UK

Overseas

Global

Total

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

22,710

6,694

-

29,403

-

(2)

-

(2)

Equities

7,358

1,513

99

8,970

209

652

-

861

Cash and cash equivalents

226

196

-

423

Other

30,503

9,053

99

39,655

10,936

8,270

-

19,206

-

-

-

-

7,424

1,050

-

8,474

203

128

-

331

45

50

-

95

18,607

9,499

-

28,106

Bonds
Alternatives

Total investment income

Securities lending
The Pension Fund has an arrangement with its Custodian to lend securities from within its portfolio of stocks to
third parties in return for collateral. Collateralised lending generated income of £57,241 for 2018/19 (£252,855 for
2017/18). This is included within investment income in the Fund Account.
The Pension Fund obtains collateral at 102% of the market value of securities loaned for collateral denominated
in the same currency as that of the loans, or 105% in the case of cross-currency collateral. The market value of
securities on loan and collateral held at 31 March 2019 and 2018 is shown in the following table, analysed by
collateral type.
2017/18
Market value of
securities on loan
£000s

2018/19

Collateral held

Market value of
securities on loan

Collateral held

£000s

£000s

£000s

22,407

23,590

Government debt and Supranationals

-25,926

27,339

G10 debt

48,333

50,929

Total

Agenda Pack Page 91

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

19,429

20,125

3,413

3,597

22,842

23,722

32

Financial Statements
6.7 Profit and Losses on the Disposal of Investments and Changes in the Value of Investments
An analysis of investment transactions in 2018/19 is shown in the following table.

Value at 31
March 2018

Purchases
at cost
and
derivative
payments

Sale
proceeds
and
derivative
receipts

Profits and
losses on
disposals
and change
in value of
investments

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Transfer
to Other
Categories
***

Value at
31 March
2019

£000s

£000s

Equities
427,445

UK

73,883

(120,581)

(103,868)

(238,051)

38,827

387,666

Overseas

42,571

(40,865)

44,269

-

433,642

17,837

(9,200)

27,509

-

332,065

Pooled investment vehicles
295,919
1,844,181

Pooled property investments

384,024

(438,492)

109,127

-

1,898,841

606,178

Unit trusts

16,682

(3,335)

253,218

425,947

1,298,690

116,026

Private equity

37,409

(38,043)

27,902

-

143,294

Infrastructure Debt

59,723

(227)

301

-

59,798

685,216

Other managed funds

75,000

(4,857)

(62,690)

(184,894)

507,774

(660)

Derivative contracts (net)*

14,584

(8,985)

(5,494)

-

(555)

-

(14,938)

171

(3,001)

83,796

721,714

(679,521)

290,446

-

4,796,172

-

(3,605)

-

-

2,094

721,714

(683,126)

290,446

-

4,798,267

-

101,564

4,463,534
7,647
4,471,181

Unitised insurance policies

Cash deposits

Subtotal
Net other investment balances**
Total investments assets /
(liabilities)

* Net forward foreign exchange assets/liabilities (see note 6.8a)
** Net other investment balances assets/liabilities (see note 6.8a)
*** The values within ‘Transfer to Other Balances’ relate to the transition to ACCESS, Hertfordshire Pension Fund’s asset pool. Mandates held
with Baillie Gifford transitioned during 2018-19. These mandates will be held as Unit Trusts going forward.

Agenda Pack Page 92

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

33

Financial Statements
An analysis of investment transactions in 2017/18 is shown in the following table.
Value at
31 March
2017

Purchases
at cost and
derivative
payments

Sale
proceeds
and
derivative
receipts

Profits and
losses on
disposals
and change
in value of
investments

Value at
31 March
2018

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Equities
729,797

UK

418,921

Overseas

434,170

(754,799)

18,277

427,445

60,786

(131,474)

39,433

387,666

17,110

(16,348)

8,783

295,919

2,177,391

(1,751,123)

52,265

1,844,181

182,742

(190,898)

16,277

606,178

Pooled investment vehicles
286,375
1,365,648

Pooled property investments
Unitised insurance policies

598,057

Unit trusts

131,052

Private Equity

27,942

(51,527)

8,560

116,026

605,223

Other managed funds

30,001

(2,756)

52,749

685,216

1,702

Derivative contracts (net)*

4,505

(15,122)

8,255

(660)

0

35,423

(1,356)

101,564

2,934,647

(2,878,625)

203,241

4,463,534

-

3,716

-

7,647

2,934,647

(2,874,909)

203,241

4,471,181

67,496

4,204,271
3,881
4,208,151

Cash deposits

Subtotal
Net other investment balances**
Total investments assets / (liabilities)

* Net forward foreign exchange assets/liabilities (see note 6.8a)
** Net other investment balances assets/liabilities (see note 6.8a)

The change in market value of investments during the year comprises all increases and decreases in the market
value of investments held at year end and profits and losses realised on the sale of investments during the year.
Derivative receipts and payments correspond to the Sterling equivalent amount of forward foreign exchange
settled during the year. The sale proceeds for cash deposits represent the net movement in cash held by the
Investment Managers during the year. The change in market value of cash results from gains and losses on
foreign currency cash transactions.

Agenda Pack Page 93

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

34

Financial Statements
6.8

Investment Analysis
a) Analysis of investment assets at market value
2017/18
£000s

2018/19
£000s

£000s

£000s

Investment assets
427,445

UK quoted equities

387,666

Overseas quoted equities
815,111

149,040

Overseas property

146,835

Global property
295,919

433,642

Total equities
UK property

44

38,827

472,469
160,794
1
171,270

Pooled property investments

332,065

139,027

UK equity funds

147,888

778,607

Overseas equity funds

827,943

926,546

UK Index Linked Gilts Fund

923,010

1,844,181

Total unitised insurance policies

1,898,841

-

UK equity unit trusts

367,387

-

Overseas Equity Unit trusts

283,651

-

UK Index Linked Gilts Fund

606,178

Global Core Plus Bond Fund

-

Global Absolute Return Bond Fund
606,178

116,026

-

17,233

UK equity
Overseas equity

425,776

Global Alternatives Fund

16

101,564

-

Investment income due
13,501

4,477,710

59,798
18
507,756
507,774
355
355
83,796

Total Cash
Amounts receivable from the sale of investments

13,501

59,798

Total derivatives
Cash deposits

101,564

143,294

Other managed funds
Forward foreign exchange

16

143,294

Total infrastructure debt

242,207

685,216

1,298,690

Total private equity
UK Infrastructure debt

-

-

Total unit trusts
UK private equity

116,026

647,653

Total other investment balances

Total investment assets

83,796
2,094
2,094

4,799,177

Table continues overleaf

Agenda Pack Page 94

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

35

Financial Statements
2017/18
£000s

2018/19
£000s

£000s

£000s

Investment liabilities
(676)

Forward foreign exchange contracts
(676)

(910)

Total derivatives contracts

(910)

Amounts payable for the purchase of
investments
Non recoverable tax payable

(5,854)
(5,854)

Total other investment balances

(6,530)

Total investment liabilities

4,471,181

(910)

Total investment assets and liabilities at
market value

4,798,267

Six pooled holdings exceeded 5% of the total investment assets and liabilities available to fund benefits at 31
March 2019. ACCESS Baillie Gifford LTGG, ACCESS Baillie Gifford UK Equity, The Royal London Core Plus
Bond Fund, UBS North America Equity Index Fund, Crown HCC Segregated Portfolio (LGT Capital
Alternatives), UBS Over 5Y Index-Linked Gilts exceed 5% of the Pension Fund's total holdings.
There are six Pooled Funds which exceed 5% of their asset class at 31 March 2019. The Royal London Core
Plus Bond Fund, UBS North America Equity Index Fund, Crown HCC Segregated Portfolio (LGT Capital
Alternatives), UBS Over 5Y Index-Linked Gilts, ACCESS Baillie Gifford UK Equity and ACCESS Baillie Gifford
LTGG.
Cash deposits (including cash and cash instruments) and other investment balances (including accrued
dividend entitlements) are accounted for as investment assets as these form part of the net assets available for
investment within the investment portfolio.
Investment assets and liabilities at the Net Asset date are further analysed by asset class in the following table.
2017/18

2018/19

UK

Overseas

Global

Total

UK

Overseas

Global

Total

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

583,705
1,532,724

1,408,480

-

1,992,185

Equities

1,532,724

Bonds

-

-

149,040

116,070

572,612

837,722

Alternatives

89,311

12,260

(7)

101,564

Cash and cash
equivalents

730

6,917

(660)

6,987

2,355,509

1,543,727

571,944

4,471,181

Other
Total assets and
liabilities

554,102

1,261,603

283651

2,099,356

1,570,662

-

-

1,570,662

220,592

143,295

679,026

1,042,913

74,455

9,341

-

83,796

299

1,796

(555)

1,540

2,420,110

1,416,035

962,122

4,798,267

Agenda Pack Page 95

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

36

Financial Statements
b) Analysis by Investment Manager
The value of investments held by each Investment Manager on 31 March 2019 are shown in the following table
with a comparison to 2018.
31 March 2018
£000s

31 March 2019

%

£000s

%

440,145

9.8

Allianz Global Investors Europe GmbH

523,366

10.9

666,792

14.9

Baillie Gifford & Co.

652,154

13.6

330,382

7.4

CBRE Global Collective Investors (UK) Ltd.

358,916

7.5

89,447

2.0

HarbourVest Partners, LLC.

95,881

2.0

375

0.0

Jupiter Asset Management Ltd.

-

-

369,123

8.3

425,776

17,537
690
606361

-

-

9.5

Legal & General Assurance (Pensions
Management) Limited
LGT Capital Partners (Ireland) Ltd.

507,756

10.6

-

Macquarie Group Limited

26,052

0.5

0.4

Pantheon Ventures

39,625

0.8

0.0

Permira Advisers LLP

684

0.0

13.6

Royal London Asset Management Ltd.

647836

13.5

44,284

1.0

Standard Life Investments Ltd.

46,872

1.0

1,479,949

33.1

UBS Group AG

1,898,841

39.6

319

0.0

Residual funds from previous portfolios

284

0.0

4,471,181

100

Funds externally managed

4,798,267

100

Funds held at Hertfordshire County
Council and non-investment balances

36,737

27,836
4,499,017

Net Assets of the Scheme

4,835,004

The market values in table 6.8(b) include the value of investments, cash and net current assets held by each
Investment Manager at 31 March. The funds held by Hertfordshire County Council include net current assets,
long term assets and cash required to manage the cash flow associated with the payment of benefits and
collection of contributions.
Residual funds from previous portfolios represent residual cash and investment income still due to the portfolios
previously run by outgoing Investment Managers following the review of the Pension Fund’s Investment
Strategy.
c) Encumbrance of Assets
The Custodian has a lien over the Pension Fund’s assets in order to recover any outstanding debts. This is
held for the protection of the Custodian and has never been invoked.
6.9

Derivatives
The Pension Fund uses derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to specific risks arising from its
investment activities. The Pension Fund does not hold derivatives for speculative purposes.
Forward foreign exchange contracts
Forward foreign exchange contracts are over the counter contracts with non-exchange counterparties and are used
to hedge against foreign currency movements. Forward foreign exchange contracts are disclosed in the accounts at
fair value, which is the gain or loss that would arise from closing out the contract at the balance sheet date by
entering into an equal and opposite contract at that date.
The counterparties at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019 were UK and overseas investment banks and the
contracts held with these investment banks are analysed in the following table by duration.

Agenda Pack Page 96

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

37

Financial Statements
2017/18

Duration
Fair Value

Currency
Payable

Currency
Receivable

Asset

£000s

£000s

£000s

2018/19
Fair Value

Liability

Currency
Payable

Currency
Receivable

Asset

Liability

£000s

£’000

£000s

£000s

£000s

Within 1
month

-

-

-

-

-

0-3 months

-

-

-

-

16

(673)

3-6 months

(161,581)

161,026

355

(910)

16

(676)

Total

(161,581)

161,026

355

(910)

(1,299)

1,297

-

(2)

-

-

-

(135,320)

134,662

(136,619)

135,959

6.10 Long Term Assets
Long term assets of £739,000 in the Net Assets Statement (£1,478,000 for 2017/18) relates to the bulk transfer of
Magistrates Court staff to the civil service pension scheme in 2005 in accordance with the terms of transfer
agreement.
6.11 Current Assets
2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s

13,831

Contributions due from employers

15,712

15,087

Cash and cash equivalents

23,161

379

VAT due from HMRC

317

577

Other debtors and prepayments

772

(95)

Provision for doubtful debt*

29,780

-

Total current assets

39,961

* Following a review, outstanding invoiced debt at 31/03/2019 has been deemed immaterial to the Financial Statements; therefore the provision
has been released

Cash and cash equivalents represent investments in money market funds and call accounts where funds are
repayable without penalty and on notice of not more than 24 hours.

Current assets are further analysed by type of debtor organisation.
2017/18
£000s

2018/19
£000s

£000s

3,321

Central government bodies

9,358

Other local authorities

5

NHS bodies

2,103

Other entities and individuals

14,788
(95)

3,538
10,072
6
3,185

Total debtors
Provision for doubtful debt

15,087

£000s

Cash and cash equivalents

16,800
23,161

14,992

Total cash balances

23,161

29,780

Total current assets

39,961

Agenda Pack Page 97

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

38

Financial Statements
6.12 Current Liabilities
2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s

(1,301)

Tax payable to HMRC

(1,440)

(868)

Investment management fees

(404)

(396)

Other creditors

(354)

Unpaid benefits

(502)

Cash and cash equivalents

-

(3,422)

Total current liabilities

(3,963)

(1,186)
(932)

Cash balances in the table above include cash balances less cash in transit in the form of unpresented cheques and
payments committed by BACs at the net asset date.
Current liabilities are further analysed by type of creditor organisation.
2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s

(1,301)
(1,619)
(502)

(3,422)

Central government bodies
Other local authorities
Other entities and individuals
Cash and cash equivalents

Total Current Liabilities

Agenda Pack Page 98

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

(1,440)
(2,522)
-

(3,963)

39

Financial Statements
6.13 Fair Value – Basis of Valuation
The basis of the valuation of each class of investment asset is set out below. There has been no change in the
valuation techniques used during the year. All assets have been valued using fair value techniques which represent
the highest and best price available at the reporting date.
Description of asset

Valuation
Hierarchy

Basis of valuation

Observable and
unobservable inputs

Key sensitivities affecting
the valuations provided

Equities quoted

Level 1

Published bid market price ruling
on the final day of accounting
period

N/A

N/A

Other managed funds – equities

Level 2

Closing single price

NAV based pricing set on a
forward pricing basis

N/A

NAV based pricing set on a
forward pricing basis

N/A

Closing bid price where bid and
offer prices are published.
Closing single price where single
price is published.

Pooled property investments

Level 2

Unitised insurance contracts –
equities

Level 2

Price of a recent transaction for
an identical asset

Inputs other than quoted
prices that are observable,
either directly or indirectly

N/A

Unitised insurance contracts –
bonds

Level 2

Price of a recent transaction for
an identical asset

Inputs other than quoted
prices that are observable,
either directly or indirectly

N/A

Unit trusts – equities

Level 2

Average of broker prices

Evaluated price feeds

N/A

Unit trusts – bonds

Level 2

Closing bid, mid and offer prices
are published

NAV based pricing set on a
forward pricing basis

N/A

Global Alternatives fund

Private equity

Infrastructure Debt

Level 3

Closing single price

NAV based pricing set on a
forward pricing basis

Level 3

At fair value as determined by
the General Partner in
accordance with the terms of the
Partnership Agreement and
GAAP

Manager’s cash flow
projections, estimates of
growth expectations and
profitability, profit margin
expectations, adjustments
to current prices for similar
properties, valuation
techniques

At fair value as determined by
the General Partner in
accordance with the terms of the
Partnership Agreement and
GAAP

Manager’s cash flow
projections, estimates of
growth expectations and
profitability, profit margin
expectations, adjustments
to current prices for similar
properties, valuation
techniques

Level 3

Agenda Pack Page 99

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

Valuations could be affected
by material events occurring
between the date of the
financial statements
provided and the pension
fund’s own reporting date,
by changes to expected
cashflows, and by any
differences between audited
and unaudited accounts
Valuations could be affected
by material events occurring
between the date of the
financial statements
provided and the pension
fund’s own reporting date by
changes to expected cash
flows, earning multiples and
discount rates used in the
discounted cash flow
analysis
Valuations could be affected
by material events occurring
between the date of the
financial statements
provided and the pension
fund’s own reporting date by
changes to expected cash
flows, earning multiples and
discount rates used in the
discounted cash flow
analysis

40

Financial Statements
6.14 Financial Instruments
a) Classification of financial instruments
Accounting policies describe how different asset classes of financial instruments are measured and how income
and expenses, including fair value gains and losses, are recognised. The following table analyses the carrying
amounts of financial assets and liabilities by category and Net Assets Statement heading.
All financial instruments are carried in the balance sheet at their fair value. The Pension Fund has not entered
into any financial guarantees that are required to be accounted for as financial instruments.
31 March 2018

Fair value
through
profit and
loss

Loans and
receivables

£000s

£000s

31 March 2019

Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
£000s

815,111

-

-

Equities
Pooled property
investments
Unitised insurance policies

295,919

-

-

1,844,181

-

-

606,178
116,026

-

-

Unit trusts

685,216

-

-

-

1,898,841

-

-

1,298,690

-

-

Private equity

143,294

-

-

Other managed funds

507,774

-

-

59,798

-

-

355

-

-

-

Infrastructure Debt
Derivative contracts

-

Derivative contracts

1,478

-

29,780

4,376,147

132,821

(676)

(6,530)

-

4,369,617

132,821

(5,854)
-

£000s

-

-

-

£000s

332,065

-

-

£000s

-

101,564

Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost

-

-

Financial
Assets at
amortised
cost

472,469

16
13,501

Fair value
through
profit and
loss

Cash deposits
Other investment balances
Long term assets

83,796

-

-

-

-

739

-

-

39,961

-

4,655,583

124,496

-

(910)

-

-

Other investment balances

-

-

-

(3,422)

Current liabilities

-

-

(3,963)

(3,422)

Total financial liabilities

(910)

-

(3,963)

4,714,471

124,496

(3,963)

(3,422)

Current assets

2,094

Total financial assets

Total

b) Net gains and losses on financial instruments
2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s

204,612
(1,356)

203,256

Fair value through profit and loss
Financial Assets at amortised cost

Total gains and losses

Agenda Pack Page 100

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

290,275
171

290,446

41

Financial Statements
c) Valuation of financial instruments carried at fair value
The valuation of financial instruments has been classified into three levels, according to the quality and reliability
of information used to determine fair values.
Level 1: Financial instruments where the fair values are derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities. Products classified as level 1 comprise quoted equities, quoted fixed
interest securities, quoted index linked securities and unit trusts. Listed securities are shown at bid prices. The
bid value of the investment is based on the bid market quotation of the relevant stock exchange.
Level 2: Financial instruments where quoted market prices are not available; for example, where an
instrument is traded in a market that is not considered to be active or where valuation techniques are used to
determine fair value and where these techniques use inputs that are based significantly on observable market
data.
Level 3: Financial instruments where at least one input that could have a significant effect on the instrument’s
valuation is not based on observable market data.
The following tables provide an analysis of the financial assets and liabilities of the Pension Fund analysed
across levels 1 to 3, based on the level at which the fair value is observable, along with comparative figures for
2018.
31 March 2019
Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Financial assets
Fair value through profit and loss

474,564

3,530,042

710,775

4,715,381

Financial Assets at amortised cost

124,496

-

-

124,496

-

(910)

-

(910)

(3,963)

-

-

(3,963)

595,097

3,529,132

710,775

4,835,004

Financial liabilities
Fair value through profit and loss
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Net financial assets

31 March 2018
Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Financial assets
Fair value through profit and loss

828,611

3,005,733

541,802

4,376,147

Financial Assets at amortised cost

132,821

-

-

132,821

Fair value through profit and loss

(5,854)

(676)

-

(6,530)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

(3,422)

-

-

(3,422)

952,156

3,005,057

541,802

4,499,017

Financial liabilities

Net financial assets

d)

Transfers between Levels 1 and 2
Assets valued £241,052,846 transferred from Level 1 to Level 2 in January 2019. This relates to the transition of
the UK equity mandate with Baillie Gifford to Hertfordshire Pension Fund’s asset pool, ACCESS.

Agenda Pack Page 101

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

42

Financial Statements
e) Reconciliation of fair value measurements within level 3
Value at
Transfers
into Level
3

31 March
2018

Transfers
out of
Level 3

£000s
116,026
425,776

Purchases
at cost
and
derivative
payments

Sale
proceeds
and
derivative
receipts

£000s

£000s

Unrealised
gains/

Realised
gains/

Value at

(losses)

(losses)

31 March
2019

£000s

£000s

Private Equity

-

(79)

37,409

(38,043)

7,938

19,970

143,222

Infrastructure Debt

-

-

59,734

(192)

255

-

59,798

Global Alternatives Fund LGT

-

-

75,000

6,980

-

507,756

-

(79)

172,143

15,172

19,970

710,775

541,802

(38,234)

f) Sensitivity of assets valued at level 3
Having analysed historical data and current market trends, and consulted with independent investment advisors,
the fund has determined that the valuation method described above (6.13) is likely to be accurate to within the
following ranges, and has set out below the consequent potential impact on the closing value of investments held
at 31 March 2019.

Asset Class

Private Equity
Infrastructure Debt
Global Alternatives Fund (LGT)

Value as at 31
March 2019

Assessed
valuation range
(+/-)

Value on
Increase

Value on
Decrease

£000s

%

£000s

£000s

143,222

15%

164,705

121,738

59,798

15%

68,767

50,828

507,756

15%

583,919

431,593

817,391

604,159

710,775

6.15 Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments
The Pension Fund maintains positions in a variety of financial instruments including bank deposits, equity
instruments, fixed interest securities and derivatives. This exposes it to a variety of financial risks including credit
and counterparty risk, liquidity risk, market risk and exchange rate risk.
a) Overall procedures for managing risk
The principal powers to invest are contained in the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and
Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 and require an administering authority to invest any pension fund
money that is not needed immediately to make payments from the pension fund. These regulations require the
Pension Fund to formulate a policy for the investment of its Fund money.
The Administering Authority’s overall risk management procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial
markets and implementing restrictions to minimise these risks.
The Pension Fund has prepared an Investment Strategy Statement which is provided at page 53 and sets out
the Pension Fund’s policy on matters such as the type of investments to be held, balance between types of
investments, investment restrictions and the way risk is managed.
Pension Fund cash held by the Administering Authority is invested in accordance with the Pension Fund’s
treasury management strategy and lending policy (“Treasury Management Strategy”), prepared in accordance
with the CIPFA Prudential Code, CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services Code of Practice and the
legal framework and investment guidance set out and issued through the Local Government Act 2003. The
Treasury Management Strategy sets out the criteria for investing and selecting investment counterparties and
details the approach to managing risk for the Pension Fund’s financial instrument exposure.
Investment performance by external Investment Managers and the Administering Authority is reported to the
Pensions Committee and Board quarterly. Performance of Pension Fund investments managed by external

Agenda Pack Page 102

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

43

Financial Statements
Investment Managers is compared to benchmark returns. For Pension Fund cash held by the Administering
Authority, performance of the treasury function is assessed against treasury management performance
measures modelled on the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice which has been adopted by the
County Council.
b) Credit risk and counterparty risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or
commitment that it has entered into with the Pension Fund. The market value of investments generally reflects
an assessment of credit in their pricing and consequently the risk of loss is implicitly provided for in the carrying
value of the Pension Fund’s financial assets and liabilities. Therefore credit risk on investments is reflected in
the market risk, in the other price risk figures given in section d) Market Risk.
In addition, the Pension Fund reviews its exposure to credit and counterparty risk on its investments through its
external Investment Managers by the review of the Investment Managers’ annual internal control reports. This
is to ensure that Investment Managers exercise reasonable care and due diligence in their activities for the
Pension Fund, such as in the selection and use of brokers. The Investment Management Agreements for the
Pension Fund’s bond managers prescribes the investment restrictions on the securities they can invest in,
including the minimum acceptance criteria for investments.
Credit risk also arises through the Pension Fund’s deposits with banks and financial instruments. For cash
managed by the Administering Authority, the Pension Fund’s Treasury Management Strategy for 2018/19 sets
out the type and minimum acceptable criteria for investments by reference to credit ratings from Fitch, Moody’s
and Standard & Poor’s and outlines the process to be followed for credit rating downgrades.
The credit ratings and amounts held in money market funds, call accounts and cash/current accounts at 31
March 2018 and 2019 are shown in the table below.
2017/18

2018/19

Credit
rating

£000s

£000s

Credit
rating

Cash managed by Administering Authority
1

(501)

A-

Bank current account

3781

1,497

A

Call accounts

A

1,742

A

13,589

AAA

21,040

AAA

Bank current account (Custodian)

76,815

AA-

Bank current account (Alternatives Manager)

17,253

A+

6,981

AAA

Money market funds
Cash managed by Custodian and Investment Managers

3,565

A to AA-

10,217

A

97,998

AAA

126,366

Money Market Funds

Total cash and cash equivalents

124,209

Cash balances include cash balances less cash in transit in the form of unpresented cheques and payments committed by BACS at the Net
Asset date.

1

c) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Pension Fund will not be able to meet its financial obligations when they fall due.
The main risk for the Pension Fund is not having the funds available to meet its commitments to make pension
payments to its members. To manage this, the Pension Fund has a cashflow management system that seeks
to ensure that cash is available when needed. The Pension Fund also manages its liquidity risk by having
access to money market funds and call accounts where funds are repayable without penalty and on notice of
not more than 24 hours. At 31 March 2019, £23,160,621 (100%) of the cash and cash equivalents held by the
Administering Authority was held in money market funds, call accounts and bank current accounts.
The Pension Fund has set a cap of £45 million on the amount of cash held by the Administering Authority to
balance the need for the Pension Fund to be as fully invested as possible whilst maintaining liquidity to avoid
the need to sell assets at inopportune times. Where there are surplus funds in excess of the cap, these funds
are distributed to Investment Managers, after taking advice from the Pension Fund’s Investment Consultant.

Agenda Pack Page 103

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

44

Financial Statements
External Investment Managers have substantial discretionary powers over their individual portfolios and the
management of their cash positions. The Pension Fund’s investments are largely made up of listed securities
on major stock exchanges and are therefore considered readily realisable. The Pension Fund defines liquid
assets as assets which can be converted into Sterling cash within three months. At 31 March 2019 the value of
illiquid assets was £535,156,774 (11.2% of total fund assets).
d) Market risk
Market risk is the risk of loss from fluctuations in equity and commodity prices, interest and foreign exchange
rates and credit spreads. The Pension Fund is exposed to the risk of financial loss from a change in the value
of its investments and the risk that the Pension Fund’s assets fail to deliver returns in line with the anticipated
returns underpinning the valuation of its liabilities over the long term. The change in the market value of its
investments during the year was £290,445,188.
In order to manage market value risk, the Pension Fund has set restrictions on the type of investments it can
hold, subject to investment limits, in accordance with the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and
Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 (as amended). Details of these can be found in the Pension Fund’s
Investment Strategy Statement on pages 53 - 60.
The Pension Fund has adopted a specific benchmark and the weightings of the various asset classes within the
benchmark form the basis for asset allocation within the Pension Fund. This allocation is designed to diversify
the risk and minimise the impact of poor performance in a particular asset class. It seeks to achieve a spread of
investments across both the main asset classes (quoted equities, bonds, private equity and property) and
geographic regions within each class.
Market risk is also managed by constructing a diversified portfolio across multiple Investment Managers and
regularly reviewing the Investment Strategy and performance of the Pension Fund. On a daily basis,
Investment Managers will manage risk in line with policies and procedures put in place in the Investment
Manager Agreement and ensure that the agreed limit on maximum exposure to any one issuer or class of asset
is not breached.
For cash managed by the Administering Authority, the Pension Fund has set institution and group limits to
diversify the Pension Fund’s investment across a range of individual holdings, sectors and countries.
e) Other price risk
Other price risk represents the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in
market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or foreign exchange risk), whether these changes
are caused by factors specific to the individual instrument or issuer or factors affecting all such instruments in
the market.
The Pension Fund is exposed to changes in equity and bond prices, as the future price is uncertain. All
securities investments present a risk of loss of capital. This risk is mitigated using diversification and policies on
selecting investments as discussed above.

Agenda Pack Page 104

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

45

Financial Statements
The one year expected volatility in market prices are shown in the following table, along with the changes in the
value of the Pension Fund’s investment assets and liabilities if the market price of investments increase or
decrease in line with these movements. The total fund volatility takes into account the expected interactions
between the different asset classes, based on the underlying volatilities and correlations of the assets in line
with mean variance portfolio theory.
Value as at
31 March 2019
£000s

Asset Class
UK Equities, Unit Trusts and Pooled Funds
Global equities, Unit Trusts and Pooled Funds (ex UK)

Value on
Increase
£000s

Change
%

Value on
Decrease
£000s

554,102

0.166

646,083

462,121

1,588,887

0.169

1,857,409

1,320,365

Property

332,065

0.143

379,551

284,580

Corporate Bonds (medium term)

726,007

0.105

802,238

649,776

Index-Linked Gilts (medium term)

923,010

0.072

989,466

856,553

Private Equity

204,634

0.283

262,545

146,722

69,147

0.201

83,045

55,248

107,569

0.073

115,421

99,716

Infrastructure equity
High Yield Debt, Convertible Bonds, Insurance linked
securities
Private Debt
Emerging market debt
Absolute Return/Diversified Growth
Cash, other investment balances and forward foreign
exchange contracts
Total Fund

2,031

0.077

2,187

1,874

37,631

0.123

42,259

33,002

235,989

0.125

265,487

206,490

17,197

0.005

17,282

17,111

5,462,974

4,133,559

4,798,267

Value as at
31 March 2018
£000s

Asset Class
UK Equities, Unit Trusts and Pooled Funds
Global equities, Unit Trusts and Pooled Funds (ex UK)

Value on
Increase
£000s

Change
%

Value on
Decrease
£000s

583,705

16.80

681,767

485,642

1,431,376

17.90

1,687,592

1,175,159

Property

295,919

14.30

338,236

253,603

Corporate Bonds (medium term)

606,178

10.20

668,008

544,348

Index-Linked gilts (medium term)

926,546

7.20

993,258

859,835

Private Equity

181,302

28.30

232,610

129,993

-

-

-

-

112,428

6.70

119,961

104,895

Commodities
High yield debt/convertible bonds/insurance linked
securities
Private Debt

1,835

7.00

1,964

1,707

Emerging Market Debt

34,996

12.20

39,265

30,726

Infrastructure equity

10,724

20.10

12,879

8,568

-

-

-

-

167,429

12.60

188,525

146,333

118,744

0.50

119,337

118,150

5,083,402

3,858,960

Absolute Return Bonds
Absolute return/Diversified Growth
Cash, other investment balances and forward foreign
exchange contracts
Total Fund

4,471,181

Agenda Pack Page 105

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

46

Financial Statements
f)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates.
The Pension Fund recognises that interest rates can vary and can affect both income to the Pension Fund and
the value of the net assets available to pay benefits. A 100 basis point (BPS) movement in interest rates has
been advised by the Pension Fund Actuary, as a sensible level to indicate interest rate sensitivity.
The analysis in the following table assumes that all other variables, in particular exchange rates, remain
constant, and shows the effect in the year on the net assets available to pay benefits, of a +/- 100 BPS change
in interest rates. Movement in bond values have been calculated to include the impact of modified duration.
Modified duration expresses the measurable change in the value of a security in response to a change in
interest rates.
Value at
31 March
2018
£000s

Potential
change

Value on

+/-

Increase

Value on
Decrease

100 BPS
£000s

£000s

£000s

111,781

-

111,781

111,781

14,585

-

14,585

14,585

1,618,033
1,744,399

287,458
287,057

1,330,575
1,456,941

1,905,490
2,031,856

Value at

Potential
change

31 March
2018

+/-

Value on
Increase

Value on
Decrease

£000s

£000s

Asset class
exposed to interest
rate risk

Cash at Custodian
and Investment
Managers
Cash held by
Administering
Authority
Bond (pooled funds)
Total

Income source
exposed to interest
rate risk

Value at
31 March
2019

Potential
change +/100 BPS

Value on
Increase

Value on
Decrease

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

101,049

-

101,049

101,049

23,161

-

23,161

23,161

1,721,002
1,845,211

298,339
298,339

1,422,663
1,546,872

2,019,341
2,143,551

Value on
Increase

Value on
Decrease

Value at

Potential
change

31 March
2019

+/-

100 BPS
£000s

100 BPS

£000s

£000s

808

8

816

800

53

5

58

48

861

13

874

848

Cash at Custodian
and Investment
Managers
Cash held by
Administering
Authority
Total

£000s

£000s

£000s

192

2

194

190

138

1

140

137

331

3

334

327

This analysis demonstrates that a 1% increase in interest rates will not affect the interest received on fixed
interest assets but will reduce their fair value and vice versa. Changes in interest rates do not impact on the
value of cash but they will affect the interest income received on those balances. Changes to both the fair value
of assets and the income received from investments impact on the net assets available to pay benefits.
The Pension Fund’s bond holdings are held in accumulation funds where income is retained and automatically
reinvested rather than being distributed to the Pension Fund. Income earned from these funds is therefore
excluded from the analysis above.
g) Currency risk
Currency risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Pension Fund holds a number of financial assets and liabilities in overseas financial markets and is
therefore exposed to the risk of loss arising from exchange rate movements of foreign currencies. At 31 March
2019, the Pension Fund had overseas investments (excluding forward foreign exchange contracts) of
£2,353,805,010 and £9,341,067 cash denominated in currencies other than Sterling.
The Pension Fund Actuary has advised that the one year expected standard deviation for an individual currency
at the 31 March 2019 is 10% (10% at 31 March 2018). This assumes no diversification, and in particular, that
interest rates remain constant. An analysis of the impact this would have on the Pension Fund is given in the
following table together with the prior year comparator.

Agenda Pack Page 106

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

47

Financial Statements
Value as at 31
March 2019

Asset Class

Potential
market
movement

Value on
Increase

Value of
Decrease

£000s

£000s

+/-10%
£000s

£000s

Overseas Equity

433,642

43,364

477,006

390,278

Overseas Property

167,675

16,767

184,442

150,907

Overseas Unitised Insurance Policies

827,943

82,794

910,737

745,149

Overseas Unit Trusts

283,651

28,365

312,016

255,286

Overseas Private Equity

143,294

14,329

157,623

128,964

Overseas Managed Funds

497,601

49,760

547,361

447,841

9,341

934

10,275

8,407

2,363,146

236,315

2,599,461

2,126,831

Foreign currencies

Total

Value as at 31
March 2018

Asset Class

Potential
market
movement

Value on
Increase

Value of
Decrease

£000s

£000s

+/-10%
£000s

£000s

Overseas Equity

387,666

38,767

426,433

348,900

Overseas Property

142,738

14,274

157,012

128,464

Overseas Unit Trusts

917,058

91,706

1,008,764

825,353

Overseas Managed Funds

784,026

78,403

862,429

705,623

12,260

1,226

13,486

11,034

2,243,749

224,375

2,468,123

2,019,374

Foreign currencies

Total

External Investment Managers manage this risk through the use of forward foreign exchange contracts and
futures, to hedge currency exposures back to the base currency. See section 6.9 for further information.
The Treasury Management Strategy does not permit the Administering Authority to invest in foreign currency
denominated deposits.
6.16 Actuarial Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits
The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits of the Pension Fund at 31 March 2019 and 31 March
2018 are set out in the following table. This is the underlying commitment of the Pension Fund in the long term to
pay retirement benefits to its active (employee members), deferred and pensioner members.
31 March 2018

31 March 2019

£k

£k

5,576,000

Present value of promised retirement benefits

6,237,000

Liabilities have been projected using a roll forward approximation from the latest formal valuation as at 31 March
2016 and therefore do not take account of any changes in membership since the valuation date. The liability at 31
March 2019 is estimated to comprise of £2,358 million with respect to employee members, £1,300 million with
respect to deferred members and £1,918 million with respect to pensioners. The principal assumptions used by the
Pension Fund Actuary were:
31 March 2018

31 March 2019
Financial assumptions

2.4% per annum

Inflation/pension increase rate

2.5% per annum

2.5% per annum

Salary increase rate

2.6% per annum

2.7% per annum

Discount rate

2.4% per annum

Mortality assumptions
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:
22.5
24.9



Men

22.5



Women

24.9

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:
24.1



Men

24.1

26.7



Women

26.7

Agenda Pack Page 107

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

48

Financial Statements
Allowance has been made for future pensioners to elect to exchange 50% of the maximum additional tax free cash
up to HMRC limits for pre-April 2008 service and 75% of the maximum tax-free cash for post April 2008 service.
The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits is sensitive to changes in actuarial assumptions. The
significant changes and their impact on the value of the Pension Fund’s liabilities between 31 March 2018 and
31 March 2019 were:
Sensitivity to the assumptions for the year ended 31 March 2019
0.5% decrease in discount rate
0.5% increase in salary increase rate
0.5% increase in pensions increase rate

Total increase in liabilities due to changes in assumptions

£k

%

622,000

10

76,000

1

510,000

8

1,208,000

19

The assumptions used by the Pension Fund Actuary to calculate the present value of promised retirement benefits
are those required by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2018/19. The liability set out in the table
above is used for statutory accounting purposes and should not be compared against the value of liabilities
calculated on a funding basis, which is used to determine contribution rates payable by employers in the Pension
Fund. Further information on the Pension Fund’s policy for funding its liabilities is set out in section 6.17.
6.17 Funding Policy
The Pension Fund’s approach to funding its liabilities is set out in its Funding Strategy Statement. The statement
sets out how the Administering Authority has balanced the conflicting aims of affordability of contributions,
transparency of processes, stability of employers’ contributions and prudence in the funding basis.
The Pension Fund Actuary is required to report on the “solvency” of the Pension Fund at least every three years.
The last actuarial valuation of the Pension Fund was carried out as at 31 March 2016 to determine contribution rates
for the financial years 2017/18 to 2019/20, with the new rates effective from 1 April 2017. A copy of the 2016
Valuation Report is accessible from the Pension Fund website: www.yourpension.org.uk/Hertfordshire/Fundinformation/Policy-statements.aspx
The market value of the Pension Fund’s assets at the valuation date was £3,584,250k million and represented 91%
of the Pension Fund’s accrued liabilities, allowing for future pay increases.
In accordance with the Scheme regulations, employer contribution rates were set to meet 100% of the Pension
Fund’s existing and prospective liabilities.
The main actuarial assumptions were as follows:
Discount rate
Salary increases
Benefit increases

4.0%
2.2%
2.1%

Further information can be found in the Funding Strategy Statement on page 72 and the Actuarial Valuation report
on page 18.

Agenda Pack Page 108

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

49

Financial Statements
6.18 Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs)
Scheme members have the option to make AVCs to enhance their pension benefits. These contributions are
invested separately from the Pension Fund’s assets, with either the Standard Life Assurance Company or the
Equitable Life Assurance Society.
2017/18
Standard Life
£000s

£000s

2018/19

Equitable Life
£000s

4,811

Total AVCs

£000s

£000s

1,337

Standard Life

£000s

£000s

6,147

Value at 1 April

Equitable Life

£000s

£000s

£000s

4,493

Total AVCs
£000s

1,264

£000s
5,757

Income
315

5

321

6

-

6

322

Contributions received
Transfer values
received

5

327

431

5

437

9

0

9

Total Income

441

5

446

Expenditure
(745)

(85)

(830)

Retirement benefits

(530)

(69)

(600)

(2)

(20)

(22)

(68)

(86)

(154)

(4)

-

(4)

Transfer values paid
Lump sum death
benefit

(5)

(5)

(10)

(750)

(106)

(856)

111

28

139

4,493

1,264

5,757

Total Expenditure
Change in market
value

Value at 31 March

(603)

(161)

(764)

151

54

206

4,482

1,162

5,645

6.19 Related Parties
a) Hertfordshire County Council
The County Council incurred costs of £379,600 in relation to the management of the Pension Fund and was
subsequently reimbursed by the Pension Fund for these expenses. The County Council also contributed
£53,683,719 to the Pension Fund in 2018/19.
b) Pensions Committee
No members of the County Council Pensions Committee were councillor members of the Hertfordshire Local
Government Pension Scheme during 2018/19. Each member of the Pensions Committee is required to declare
their interests at each meeting.
c) Member Allowances
The post holder of Chair of the Pensions Committee receives a special responsibility allowance of £10,178,
however as the current post holder is also a Cabinet Member for the County Council, he only receives the
higher allowance of the two which is the Cabinet Member position.
d) Key Management Personnel
The Administering Authority disclosure of senior officer remuneration includes the S151 Officer who has
responsibility for the proper financial administration of the Pension Fund under the Local Government Act 1972.
This Officer was employed by the Administering Authority and spent a proportion of time on the financial
management of the Pension Fund. These costs comprise an element of the remuneration from the Pension
Fund to the County Council in 2018/19 of £379,600.
The remuneration paid by Hertfordshire County Council to key management personnel of the Pension Fund,
apportioned for the proportion of time on the financial management of the Pension Fund, were:
Position

Year

Apportioned
salary
£

Director of Resources

Apportioned
pension
contributions
£

Total
apportioned
remuneration
£

2018/19

10,287

1,876

12,163

2017/18

9,684

1,765

11,449

Agenda Pack Page 109

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

50

Financial Statements
6.20 Contingent Liabilities and Contractual Commitments
Contingent Liabilities
A ruling has been made regarding age discrimination arising from public sector pension scheme transition
arrangements. Court of Appeal judgements were made in cases affecting judges pensions (McCloud case) and
firefighter pensions (Sergeant case) which had previously been considered by employment tribunals. The rulings
have implications for the LGPS, Police and Fire Schemes since similar reforms were implemented.
The indication from Government is that they are currently seeking permission to appeal this decision, with an
unknown time-frame for this permission to be granted or denied. Whether the appeal progresses or not is expected
to impact upon the valuation of liabilities associated with the pension scheme.
The Government Actuary’s Department (GAD) is preparing an assessment of the potential impact on a LGPS
England & Wales scheme wide basis, which will set out the potential impact on scheme liabilities and service cost.
Contractual Commitments
Where the Pension Fund has entered into agreements with fund managers offering private equity, property (with the
Fund’s ‘Alternatives’ fund manager), infrastructure debt and private rental sector mandates, commitments held by
the Fund until the relevant fund managers require funds to fulfil a purchase of an investment. The value of
outstanding contractual commitments by investment asset category are outlined below;

31-Mar-18

31-Mar-19

£000s

£000s

271,031

Private Equity

11,000

Property

6,427

-

Infrastructure Debt

90,351

-

Private Rental Sector

150,000

Total

524,744

282,031

277,966

The following commitments were made in 2018-19;
 £32,420k to private equity mandates
 £150,000k to infrastructure debt mandates
 £150,000k to private rental sector mandates.
6.21 Contingent Assets
a) Withholding tax reclaims
The Pension Fund has entered into a process to reclaim withholding tax made by other European Union (EU)
countries, based on precedent cases in some EU countries that tax has been withheld unfairly under EU law.
Claims have been submitted in France and Germany.
The Pension Fund’s claims are set out in the following table in both Euros and Sterling (calculated using
exchange rates as at 31 March 2019). The claims are subject to legal processes but based on precedent and
legal advice, the Pension Fund expects to be successful in these claims. Therefore the amounts below are
contingent assets for the Pension Fund.
Country

Euro Value
at 31 March 2019
€ 000s

Sterling Value
at 31 March 2019
£ 000s

148

128

Germany
France

191

164

Total

339

292

b) Bonds
26 admitted bodies in the Pension Fund held bonds as surety to guard against the possibility of being unable to
meet their pension obligations. These bonds are drawn in favour of the Pension Fund and payment will only be
triggered in the event of employer default.

Agenda Pack Page 110

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

51

Financial Statements
6.22 Investment Strategy Statement
Regulation 7 of the Local Government Pension Fund Regulations 2016 (Management and Investment of Funds) set
out a requirement for funds to formulate and publish a new Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) no later than 1st
April 2017. The Hertfordshire Pension Fund published its ISS on 31st March 2017, and it can be found on the
Fund’s website: http://www.yourpension.org.uk/Hertfordshire/Fund-information/Policy-statements.aspx.
6.23 External Audit Costs
The Pension Fund has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts and Annual
Report by the council’s external auditors:
2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s

22

Standard Fee

22

11

Fees with regards to IAS19

33

TOTAL

6

27

Agenda Pack Page 111

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

52

Investment Report
1. Investment Management
Powers of Investment
The principal powers to invest are contained in the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of
Funds) Regulations 2016 and require an administering authority to invest any pension fund money that is not needed
immediately to make payments from the Pension Fund. The regulations provide a prudential framework within which the
Pension Fund’s investment strategy should be implemented and managed.
The regulations state that the Administering Authority must, after taking proper advice, formulate an investment strategy
which includes:







a requirement to invest fund money in a wide variety of investments;
the authority’s assessment of the suitability of particular investments and types of investments;
the authority’s approach to risk, including the ways in which risks are to be assessed and managed;
the authority’s approach to pooling investments, including the use of collective investment vehicles and shared
services;
the authority’s policy on how social, environmental and corporate governance considerations are taken into
account in the selection, non-selection, retention and realisation of investments; and
the authority’s policy on the exercise of the rights (including voting rights) attaching to investments.

When setting its Investment Strategy, the Pension Fund is required to have a properly diversified portfolio of assets to
reduce overall portfolio risk and volatility and must ensure that the asset allocation policy is compatible with achieving its
locally determined solvency target.
The regulations permit a range of investments and the Fund is required to must set out the maximum percentage of the
total value of all investments of fund money that it will invest in particular investments or classes of investment.
The Pension Fund’s Investment Strategy Statement, which was in force during the 2018/19 financial year is set out on
pages 53 – 60. This is also available from the Pension Fund’s website:
https://www.yourpension.org.uk/Hertfordshire/Fund-information/Policy-statements.aspx
Responsibility for Investing the Pension Fund’s Assets
The Pensions Committee of the County Council is responsible for setting the overall investment strategy of the Pension
Fund and monitoring investment performance.
The majority of the Pension Fund’s investments are managed by external Investment Managers, who have substantial
discretionary powers regarding their individual portfolios. The split of the Pension Fund between these managers at
31 March 2019 is shown in the following table.
Investment Manager

Pension Fund
%

Allianz Global Investors Europe GmbH

10.9

Baillie Gifford & Co.

13.6

CBRE Global Collective Investors (UK) Ltd.

7.5

HarbourVest Partners, LLC.

2.0

LGT Capital Partners (Ireland) Ltd.

10.6

Macquarie Group Limited

0.5

Pantheon Ventures

0.8

Permira Advisers LLP

0.0

Royal London Asset Management Ltd.

13.5

Standard Life Investments Ltd.

1.0

UBS Group AG

39.6

An amount of cash is held by the County Council in order to manage the payment of members’ pension benefits and the
collection of contributions. This is invested in accordance with the Pension Fund’s Treasury Management Strategy which
is reviewed and approved annually by the Pensions Committee. The 2018/19 Treasury Management Strategy was
approved by the Pensions Committee on 28 February 2019.

Agenda Pack Page 112

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

53

Investment Report
2. Investment Strategy Statement
2.1. Introduction
This is the Investment Strategy Statement (“ISS”) of the Hertfordshire Pension Fund (“the Fund”), which is administered
by Hertfordshire County Council, (“the Administering Authority”). The ISS is made in accordance with Regulation 7 of the
Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 (“the Regulations”). This
document replaces the Fund’s Statement of Investment Principles.
The ISS has been prepared by the Pension Committee (“the Committee”) having taken advice from the Fund’s
investment adviser, Mercer. The Committee acts on the delegated authority of the Administering Authority.
The ISS, which was approved by the Committee on 31 March 2017, is subject to periodic review at a maximum every
three years or following any significant change in investment policy. The Committee has provided the Pension Board with
an opportunity to review and comment on the contents of the Fund’s investment strategy and will continue to work with
the Pension Board to review its operation.
.
This ISS has been designed to be a living document and is an important governance tool for the Fund. This document
sets out the investment strategy of the Fund, provides transparency in relation to how the Fund investments are
managed, and acts as a risk register.
The Committee seeks to invest, in accordance with the ISS, any Fund money that is not needed immediately to make
payments from the Fund. The ISS should be read in conjunction with the Fund’s Funding Strategy Statement (dated 1
April 2017).
Investment Beliefs
The Committee has, as part of the process of creating this Investment Strategy Statement agreed a set of ‘Investment
Beliefs’ which are summarised briefly below:
•

All investment decisions should be made on an objective basis supported by the most appropriate evidence
available.

•

The Hertfordshire Pension Fund has very long term liabilities and it is therefore believed that a long-term
approach to investment matters is both appropriate and desirable.

•

Risk and return are related. Riskier assets are expected to be held only when there is a reasonable expectation
of higher returns being generated. There are some risks for which no additional return is expected; these should
be avoided or mitigated.

•

Diversification is an effective way of reducing the volatility of an asset portfolio and therefore reducing the volatility
of the Pension Fund’s funding level.

•

Investment risk is multi-dimensional and complex. The Fund is subject to a range of investment risks which are
addressed in the investment strategy-setting process. There are other risks such as regulatory risk, employer risk
and longevity risk which are addressed elsewhere.

•

Excess returns are not certain. The Committee aims to manage the Fund on a cost-effective basis and seeks
correspondingly favourable terms from the Fund’s asset managers. It is also recognised that ‘value for money’ is
best considered in terms of ‘net of fees’ returns which the Committee monitors regularly.

•

The real world, of economies and markets, is complex. Simple explanations are unlikely to be robust. To reflect
this complexity the Committee takes material time and effort to understand the issues with which it is faced and
also, from time to time, undertakes training on specific topics from specialist providers.

•

Innovation and evolution can be of benefit to the long term investor. A willingness to consider new investment
ideas is likely to bring value to the Fund in the longer term, especially if balanced with a consistency of thought
and governance processes.

•

Environmental, Social and Governance factors cannot be ignored by those responsible for a large and diversified
portfolio of assets. In particular, the risks of being exposed to poor ESG practice is likely to be material for the
Fund, and the Committee therefore includes, as part of its monitoring processes, reviews of managers’ ESG
policies and practices.

Agenda Pack Page 113

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

54

Investment Report
2.2. Investment strategy and the process for ensuring suitability of investments
The Fund’s objective is to pay benefits as they fall due and this requires the build-up of sufficient reserves in advance.
The Fund is currently assessed to have a deficit, in respect of historic benefits accrued, and so the asset strategy is
focused on achieving returns in excess of gilts, without taking undue risk in order to reduce this deficit. Having a thorough
understanding of the risks facing the Fund is crucial and these are covered later in this statement.
The target asset allocation as at March 2016 for the fund is set out in the table below and has an allocation of 75% to
growth assets and 25% to defensive assets:

Asset class

Allocation
%

Equity:
UK

16.0

Global

34.2

Total

50.2

Role (s) within the strategy
Long term growth in excess of gilt returns and
expected inflation. Includes diversification of UK
and Global equities for market growth and currency
exposure

25.0

Dampens the volatility of funding level
Income generating
Liability matching properties
Diversification of return source

8.0

Diversification.
Generates investment income; Returns expected to
be inflation-sensitive
Exposure to Illiquidity premium

Alternatives

15.8

Diversified source of returns
Some inflation protection
Source of income
Exposure to illiquidity premium

Cash

1.0

Cash flow to meet statutory liabilities, including
monthly pension payroll payments.

Bonds

Property

Agenda Pack Page 114

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

55

Investment Report

The new investment strategy will target an asset allocation of 65% to growth assets, and 35% to defensive assets, of
which 10% will be invested in real assets. The Fund will look to deliver this new strategy and asset allocation over the
medium term and will work with the Fund’s investment consultant to implement this new strategy. The table below
provides an overview of the role each asset plays in achieving the Fund’s objectives is set out in the table below:

Asset class

Allocation
%

Equity:
UK

10

Global

30

Total

40.0

Role (s) within the strategy
Long term growth in excess of gilt returns and
expected inflation. Includes diversification of UK
and Global equities for market growth and currency
exposure

25.0

Dampens the volatility of funding level
Income generating
Liability matching properties
Diversification of return source

8.0

Diversification.
Generates investment income; Returns expected to
be inflation-sensitive
Exposure to Illiquidity premium

16.0

Diversified source of returns
Some inflation protection
Source of income
Exposure to illiquidity premium

Real Assets*

10.0

Diversification
Generates investment income and some inflation
protection
Exposure to illiquidity premium

Cash

1.0

Cash flow to meet statutory liabilities, including
monthly pension payroll payments.

Bonds

Property

Alternatives

*The Fund will look to allocate to a range of Real Assets, this is expected to include, although not limited to, High Lease
to Value Property (HLV), Infrastructure Debt and Private Residential Property (PRS).
The Committee is responsible for the Fund’s asset allocation which is determined via a triennial strategy review as part of
the actuarial valuation process, but is kept under constant review; noting that strategic changes are an evolutionary
process.
The triennial review looks at both qualitative and quantitative analysis, covering:


The required level of return that will mean the Fund can meet its future benefit obligations as they fall due



The level of risk that the Fund can tolerate in absolute terms, and in relation to its funding level and deficit



An analysis of the order of magnitude of the various risks facing the Fund is established in order that a priority
order for mitigation can be determined



The desire for diversification across asset class, region, sector, and type of security.

Agenda Pack Page 115

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

56

Investment Report
2.3. Risk measurement and management
The Committee assesses risks both qualitatively and quantitatively, with the starting point being the triennial strategy
review. Risks are considered, understood and then prioritised accordingly.
Investment Risks
The Fund is exposed to a number of different types of risk of which the most significant are related to investment and
market risk. The chart below shows the VaR1 (Value at Risk, essentially the minimum losses that would occur in a 1-in-20
downside event) facing the Fund, split into major risk categories.

As the above graphic illustrates, equities and liabilities are the greatest sources of risk, although equities are expected to
outperform liabilities over the long term, they are the fund’s largest single source of risk. The other significant source of
risk is from changes in the present value of its liabilities, which is sensitive to changes in gilt yields and inflation
expectations. Further detail on the risks and any mitigation actions that the Fund takes to address them are detailed
below.
Equities
The largest risk that the Fund is running is in relation to its equity holdings. Should equity market conditions deteriorate
significantly this will have a negative impact on the funding level. The Fund holds equities in order to provide the
necessary returns to ensure that the Fund remains affordable. The Committee believes that the extra returns that are
expected to be generated by equities compensate for the level of risk equities bring to the Fund, but mitigates this risk
by investing significant amounts in diversifying assets; bonds, property and alternatives.
The Fund is a long term investor but does require income over and above contributions received in order to pay
pensions. A strategy is therefore being developed that would seek additional income from alternative assets and
bonds, rather than from equities, in order to avoid being a forced seller at a low point in the market.
Liabilities
The Fund’s liabilities are affected by both interest rates (gilt yield) and inflation; the pensions that the Fund will
ultimately pay to members are linked to inflation and so as inflation expectations rise so do the expected cashflows
that the Fund will have to pay in future. The Fund’s liabilities are also sensitive to interest rates because of the method
that the actuary uses to place a present value on all the future pension payments. The Fund will seek to invest in a
range of assets that:
 provide returns in excess of inflation;
 in some cases provide an inflation-linked income, subject to a tolerable level of volatility;
 are sensitive to interest rates to reduce the impact that changes to the present value of the liabilities have on
the funding level.

1

VaR calculation based on the valuation results of 31 March 2016.

Agenda Pack Page 116

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

57

Investment Report
Alternatives
The Fund has a significant amount of assets allocated to a range of alternatives, with specific allocations to property
and private equity in addition to an alternatives mandate which invests in a range of asset classes. The risks that
these investments bring at an individual level are not insignificant but the Committee believe that over the long term
alternatives will provide returns that compensate for the risks being run. Additionally the level of diversification the
assets provide helps to reduce the Funds reliance on returns from equities. Illiquid assets such as property are also a
valuable source of income.
Active Manager Risk
Investment Managers are appointed to manage the Fund’s investments on its behalf. This risk is small relative to
other risks; nevertheless the Fund still addresses this risk though diversification of its exposure to active managers
and careful monitoring of their progress. The Fund maintains a balance between passive and active management;
determining the most appropriate approach in relation to the asset class. The Fund has an active risk management
programme in place that aims to help it identify the risks being taken and put in place processes to manage, measure,
monitor and (where possible) mitigate the risks being taken. Key risks and mitigating controls are incorporated in the
Fund’s risk register which is monitored on an ongoing basis and reported to the Pensions Committee and LGPS Board
quarterly.
The Fund’s portfolio is well diversified across asset classes, geography and asset managers. As different asset classes
have varying correlations with other asset classes, by investing in a range of different investments, the fund can reduce
the total level of risk run to a material extent.
To put some of the above risks into perspective the table below shows how a range of events could impact the Fund:
Event

Event movement in isolation

Impact on Deficit

Fall in equity markets

20% fall in equities

£430m

Rise in expected inflation

1% increase in inflation

£585m

Fall in interest rates

1% fall in interest rates

£585m

Active Manager underperformance

3% underperformance from all
active managers

£80m

The other principal risks that the Fund is exposed to can be identified as:


The Fund’s investment strategy and asset allocation does not deliver the long term asset returns and growth
required to meet the Fund’s liabilities;



The Funding level of the Pension Fund deteriorates;



Scheme employers default on meeting their obligations to the Pension Fund and LGPS; and



Third party risk – failure of Fund providers and regulatory non-compliance.

Details of these risks and a summary of control mechanisms can be found in appendix E of the Fund’s funding strategy
statement http://www.yourpension.org.uk/Hertfordshire/Fund-information/Policy-statements.aspx.
Cashflow Risk
The Fund’s cash flow position is currently positive but the Fund is gradually becoming more mature and this position is
monitored by the Fund’s officers and Fund Actuary at each triennial valuation This will become an important consideration
in setting and monitoring the Fund’s investment strategy and asset allocation to illiquid and liquid assets. This issue is
currently addressed at total Fund level. As part of the lead up to the next triennial valuation the Fund will look to develop
sub-strategies to address the differing funding levels of the employers within the scheme. The Fund also receives
investment income which could be used to pay benefits rather than be re-invested if and when the Fund becomes cash
flow negative.
Demographic Risk
The Committee reviews the demographic assumptions of the Fund every three years as part of its triennial valuation to
mitigate the risk that any changes to longevity and other factors would have on the Fund. Measures to mitigate this risk
include review of employer contributions, asset allocation and bond or other insurance. Further details on the
assumptions used in the valuation can be found in appendix C of the Fund’s funding strategy statement
http://www.yourpension.org.uk/Hertfordshire/Fund-information/Policy-statements.aspx.

Agenda Pack Page 117

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

58

Investment Report
Fund Governance Risk
The Fund believes that there is a benefit to the Fund to be gained from good governance of its Committee in the form of
either an increased return and/or decreased risk. Poor governance can lead to opportunities and risks being missed, and
have a detrimental effect on the funding level and deficit.
Details of the Fund’s governance structure can be found in the Governance Compliance Statement, details of which can
be found in the Annual Report and Accounts http://www.yourpension.org.uk/Hertfordshire/Fund-information/Annualreports.aspx .
Environmental, Social and Governance (‘ESG’) Risks
The Committee believes that ESG risks should be taken into account on an ongoing basis and are an integral part of the
Fund’s strategy and objective of being a long term investor.
The Committee believes that engagement with the underlying companies through our investment managers is key in
relation to strong corporate governance and managing ESG risks, which in turn will enhance returns. Details of the
Fund’s policies can be found later in this statement.
Asset Pooling Risk
The Fund is a member of the ACCESS pool and may be exposed to additional risk during the transition of assets to the
pool and may incur unexpected costs in relation to the transition of assets among managers. The pool will seek suitable
professional advice during this transition period to budget and manage cost.
2.4. Approach to asset pooling
Hertfordshire is a member of the ACCESS pool along with the following 10 other pension funds:
 East Sussex
 Essex
 Hampshire
 Cambridgeshire
 Isle of Wight
 Kent
 Norfolk
 Northamptonshire
 Suffolk
 West Sussex
All eleven funds are committed to working together collaboratively to meet the criteria for pooling and have signed a
Memorandum of Understanding to underpin their partnership (will be updated for IAA). ACCESS is working to a project
plan in order to create the appropriate means to pool investments. The first investments planned to be pooled in 2018 will
be passively-managed investments.
The ACCESS Funds have set out how they meet the pooling criteria, the pool’s structure, governance arrangements and
services to be shared in the submission made to the Government in July 2016, which is available on ACCESS’s website
http://www.accesspool.org/
All eleven ACCESS funds expect that all investments will be pooled apart from a minority of investments where there is a
no value for money benefit to pooling These have been / will be set out as part of the pooling criteria
Assets to be invested in the Pool
The Fund’s intention is to invest its assets through the ACCESS Pool as and when suitable Pool investment solutions
become available. An indicative timetable for investing through the Pool was set out in the July 2016 submission to
Government. They key criteria for assessment of Pool solutions will be as follows:
1. That the Pool enables access to an appropriate solution that meets the objectives and benchmark criteria set by
the Fund
2. That there is a clear financial benefit to the Fund in investing in the solution offered by the Pool, should a change
of provider be necessary.

Agenda Pack Page 118

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

59

Investment Report
Assets held outside the pool
At the time of preparing this statement the Fund has elected not to invest the following assets via the ACCESS Pool:
Asset class

Manager

Private Equity

Alternatives

HarbourVest,
Standard Life
Capital,
Pantheon
LGT Capital

Operational
Cash

Hertfordshire
County Council

% of Fund
assets
3.3%

Benchmark

9.6%

3 month Sterling
LIBOR

1%

7 day LIBID

FTSE All-Share
index

Reason for not investing via the
ACCESS pool
Existing illiquid asset programmes will
run off at normal lifecycle to avoid
crystallising exit costs and loss of
illiquidity premium earned.
This mandate is made up of illiquid and
liquid asset classes which because of
the nature of both the fee structure and
legal structure of the entities invested in
is likely to make pooling both extremely
difficult to implement and significantly
more costly for the Fund..
The Hertfordshire Pension Fund needs
to manage its cash flow to meet
statutory liabilities, including monthly
pension payroll payments, therefore a
reasonable level of operational cash will
be held outside the pool.

2.5. Environmental, Social and Corporate governance and the exercise of rights (including voting rights)
policies
With regard to responsible investment, the Committee is mindful of the following legal principles, which are based on
recent decisions in the courts and which apply to all pension schemes:
a.

Administering authorities are free to adopt a policy of socially responsible investment, provided that they treat the
financial interests of all classes of scheme members as paramount and their investment policies are consistent with
the standards of care and prudence required by law.

b.

Administering authorities are free to avoid certain kinds of prudent investment, which they consider scheme
members would regard as objectionable as long as they make equally financial advantageous and prudent
investments elsewhere. They may also make “ethical” investments provided these are otherwise justifiable on
investment grounds.

c.

Administering authorities are not entitled to subordinate the interests of members to ethical or social concerns. The
financial performance of the Fund consistent with proper diversification and prudence is paramount.

The Committee has a fiduciary duty to invest Fund assets in members’ best interests and so must ensure that assets are
invested in an appropriate manner; as a result any ESG considerations must be taken in light of expected return
implications.
ESG issues can have a material impact on long-term risk and return outcomes and considering these issues is consistent
with the fiduciary duty of the Committee. The Fund is a long-term investor and is committed to being an active owner. It
wishes to promote a policy of dialogue on responsible investment issues, through its investment managers, with company
management.
The Committee has identified the following ESG issues as a focus for engagement with its managers:




Environmental issues: including conserving energy, promoting alternative energy sources, recycling, avoiding
pollution and using environmentally friendly and sustainable resources
Human rights: including child labour issues in foreign subsidiaries of UK companies or operations in countries
with oppressive regimes
Employment standards: including equal opportunities, health and safety, trade union recognition and employee
participation

The Fund invests via pooled funds and therefore expects its underlying investment managers to exercise voting and
engagement rights on its behalf. The Fund is therefore subject to the ESG and voting policies of the individual investment
managers. The Committee considers these policies when appointing a new manager and when monitoring investment

Agenda Pack Page 119

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

60

Investment Report
managers, the Officers consider whether each manager’s actions and engagement activities have been appropriate and
in keeping with the Fund’s policy.
The Fund complies with the UK Stewardship Code (‘the Code’) and is preparing a formal statement of compliance with
the Code for assessment. The Fund encourages its underlying investment managers to comply with the Code.
It is proposed to monitor action by investment managers on a quarterly basis and further develop this policy on an annual
basis on the basis of experience. The Committee will also receive an annual report from its Investment Consultant on the
ESG credentials of its investment managers.
Myners Principles
Although no longer referenced in the Regulations, the Committee considers that assessment of compliance with the
Myners Principles is a valuable governance tool. A copy of the Fund’s Myners Compliance Statement can be found in the
Annual Report and Accounts. http://www.yourpension.org.uk/Hertfordshire/Fund-information/Annual-reports.aspx .

Agenda Pack Page 120

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

61

Investment Report
3.
Investment Policy
The Investment Strategy Statement, on page 53, sets out the target asset allocation of the Pension Fund for 2018/19, in
comparison with the Pension Fund’s specific benchmark allocation.
The actual distribution of the Pension Fund’s assets across the main asset classes as at 31 March 2019 (and as at 31
March 2018 for comparison) are shown below:
Distribution of the Pension Fund at 31 March 2018

Distribution of the Pension Fund at 31 March 2019

May not sum due to rounding

The change in the asset distribution over the period reflects the investment strategy decisions undertaken, in particular
moving a portion of UK equities into alternatives and funding of the infrastructure debt allocation.
The actual asset allocation of the Pension Fund relative to the benchmark allocation is outlined below as at 31 March 2019
(with 31 March 2018 also shown for comparison):
Actual asset allocation relative to benchmark allocation
as at 31 March 2018

Actual asset allocation relative to benchmark allocation as
at 31 March 2019

As at 31 March 2019, the Pension Fund’s allocation to global equities was overweight relative to the benchmark allocation,
with other allocations underweight, particularly bonds.

The regional distribution of the Pension Fund’s overseas equity investments as at 31 March 2019 (and as at 31 March
2018 for comparison) is shown below:

Agenda Pack Page 121

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

62

Investment Report
Distribution of Pension Fund’s Overseas
equity investments at 31 March 2018

Distribution of Pension Fund’s Overseas
equity investments at 31 March 2019

May not sum due to rounding

The top ten largest equity holdings of the Pension Fund as at 31 March 2019 (and as at 31 March 2018 for comparison)
are shown below.
Ten Largest Equity Holdings at 31 March 2019
Microsoft
United Health
Ecolab
Visa
Agilent Technologies
Intuit
Union Pacific
Accenture
Roche
Estee Lauder
Ten Largest Equity Holdings at 31 March 2018
Prudential
Royal Dutch Shell 'B' Shares
Unilever
Ashtead Group
British American Tobacco
Microsoft
St James’s Place
Diageo
BHP Billiton
United Health

Agenda Pack Page 122

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

Market Value
(£millions)
21.4

% of Total
Investments
0.4

16.4
15.6
15.3
15.0
14.7
14.3
14.3
12.2
12.0

0.3
0.3
0.3
0.3
0.3
0.3
0.3
0.3
0.2

Market Value
(£millions)
30.2
19.7
17.6
15.6
15.5
15.5
14.8
14.2
14.2
13.5

% of Total
Investments
0.7
0.4
0.4
0.3
0.3
0.3
0.3
0.3
0.3
0.3

63

Investment Report
4. Review of World Markets (courtesy of Mercers)
Investment Markets2
It has been a rather mixed year for investment markets with a rather strong first half followed by significant bouts of
volatility in the second half.
The second and third quarter of 2018 saw strong global equity market performance on the back of a continued broad
economic expansion on a global basis. During the fourth quarter of 2018 the outlook for global growth started to soften,
which combined with investor concerns over monetary tightening by the Federal Reserve as well as uncertainty over
trade, led to the largest sell-off in equity markets since 2008. The Federal Reserve softening their tone on monetary policy
and the prospect of a trade settlement between the US and China in mid-2019, as well as slower but still solid economic
data from the US, led investors to re-evaluate their initial reaction. A strong rebound in equity markets ensued the first
quarter of 2019.
The US largely continued its economic expansion, boosted by tax cuts and rising business confidence amid the businessfriendly stance of the Trump administration. Japan, the UK and continental Europe saw more measured growth even
though economic data from continental Europe over the last six months hinted at a slowdown.
In the UK, uncertainty over Brexit continued to dominate the investor outlook. The UK economy slowed over 2018 but
appeared to remain resilient, despite the continued political uncertainty about the future of trade and the Irish border. Real
GDP growth for the UK has slowed from 1.8% in 2017 to 1.4% in 2018.
Emerging markets had a challenging 2018 as they experienced uncertainty over trade frictions, rising US interest rates,
deleveraging in China as well a strengthening US dollar. Headwinds started to soften in the first quarter of 2019 with
improvement on many of these fronts. This included a softer US monetary outlook leading to less upwards pressure on
the US dollar, improvements in the current account positions for a number of countries with balance of payment
problems, and an expected trade settlement between the US and China.
Equities
At a global level, developed markets as measured by the FTSE World index, returned 11.1%. Meanwhile, a return of
1.9% was recorded by the FTSE All World Emerging Markets index.
At a regional level, European markets returned 2.6% as indicated by the FTSE World Europe ex UK index. At a country
level, UK stocks as measured by the FTSE All Share index returned 6.4%. The FTSE USA index returned 17.7% while
the FTSE Japan index returned -0.9%.
Equity market total return figures are in Sterling terms over the 12-month period to 31 March 2019.
Bonds
Returns on UK Government Bonds as measured by the FTSE Gilts All Stocks Index, returned 3.7%, while long dated
issues as measured by the corresponding Over 15 Year Index had a return of 4.7% over the year. The yield for the FTSE
Gilts All Stocks index fell over the year from 1.54% to 1.36%.
The FTSE All Stocks Index Linked Gilts index returned 5.5% with the corresponding over 15-year index exhibiting a return
of 5.7%.
Corporate debt as measured by the Bank of America Merrill Lynch Sterling Non-Gilts index returned 3.7%.
Bond market total return figures are in Sterling terms over the 12-month period to 31 March 2019.
Property3
UK property investors continued to experience solid returns. Over the 12 month period to 31 March 2019, the IPD UK All
Property Index returned 4.1%.
Commodities
The price of Brent Crude decreased 2.2% from $70.09 to $68.55 per barrel over the one-year period. Over the same
period, the price of Gold fell 2.1% from $1323.43 per troy ounce to $1,295.72.
The S&P GSCI Commodity Spot Index returned 3.2% over the one-year period to 31 March 2019 in Sterling terms.

2
3

Statistics sourced from Thomson Reuters Datastream unless otherwise specified.
Statistics sourced from MSCI Investment Property Database.

Agenda Pack Page 123

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

64

Investment Report
Currencies
Over the 12-month period to 31 March 2019, Sterling depreciated by 7.1% against the US dollar from $1.40 to $1.30.
Sterling depreciated by 3.3% against the yen from ¥149.19 to ¥144.23. Sterling appreciated against the euro by 1.7%
from €1.14 to €1.16 over the same period.
5. Investment Performance
In order to monitor the performance of the investment managers, the Pension Fund participates in performance
measurement services. In 2018/19 these services were provided by BNY Mellon Asset Servicing B.V. and Mercer. The
performance of the investment managers is reported to the Pensions Committee on a quarterly basis.
Over the twelve months to 31 March 2019, the Pension Fund return was 7.0% (gross of fees) and 6.9% (net of manager
fees).
Change in the Pension Fund’s Total Assets
The change in the value of the Pension Fund’s invested assets over the ten years to 2018/19 is shown below.

Comparison with the Pension Fund’s Benchmark
The Pension Fund’s performance is analysed against a customised benchmark, as set out in the Investment Strategy
Statement on pages 53-60. The graph below shows the annual investment returns (gross of fees) of the Pension Fund
compared to the benchmark over the last ten years. This shows that the Pension Fund has performed above benchmark
in eight years out of the last ten.
Overlaid on the chart is a rolling three year annualised return of the Fund’s assets compared with the equivalent figures
for the benchmark.

Relative (%)

-6.6

0.9

0.2

2.1

1.2

1.4

-0.2

0.1

Agenda Pack Page 124

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

2.0

0.8

65

Investment Report
The table below shows the long term performance of the Pension Fund to 31 March 2019 against the benchmark.

3 year (% p.a.)
5 year (% p.a.)
10 year (% p.a.)

Pension Fund

Benchmark

10.0
8.7
10.9

9.0
7.8
10.6

Relative
Performance
1.0
0.9
0.3

Performance is shown gross of fees, source BNY Mellon.

Performance Comparisons
Long term returns
The five year returns from 2014/15 to 2018/19 are shown in the chart below:

Return for Average Earnings Index shown for the five years to 28 February 2019 as that was the latest available at the time of writing.

The chart above shows that over the last five financial years, the Pension Fund’s performance outperformed retail price
inflation and the rate of growth in average earnings.
Risk comparisons
The chart below highlights the risk and return profile of Pension Fund relative to its benchmark over the last five years to
31 March 2019.

Risk is defined as the volatility or annualised standard deviation of quarterly returns.

Agenda Pack Page 125

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

66

Investment Report
This highlights that the Pension Fund’s returns have been more volatile than the Pension Fund’s benchmark. The
Pension Fund did however generate higher returns than the benchmark over this period.
Control chart
The control chart below highlights the performance of the Pension Fund over time against its targets to put into
perspective any significant deviation from the target.
The chart spans three years as this is the time period over which the majority of the managers are expected to meet their
target.

The lines on the charts are as follows:
The Benchmark Return
This is the horizontal line, at point 0%, representing the benchmark return. If the Fund’s performance was exactly in line
with the benchmark return, the performance line (see below) would follow this horizontal line exactly.
Relative Quarterly Return
The bars represent the difference between the Fund’s investment returns from those of the benchmark over each
quarterly period. A positive bar (above zero) represents positive performance and a negative bar (below zero) represents
negative performance.
Cumulative Relative Return
This solid line represents the cumulative performance achieved relative to the benchmark return. Because active
investment management produces uneven returns, the performance is not expected to exactly follow the target line.
Instead the performance will fluctuate with the objective that the performance line will meet or exceed the target line by
the end of the period.
The Target Line
This is a simplistic representation of cumulative added value over the period. If, for example, a manager has a target to
achieve a return of 0.5% p.a. in excess of the benchmark return, the graph will show the target of 1.5% added value by
the end of the three year period. This is shown as a thin light blue line.

Agenda Pack Page 126

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

67

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 1: List of Employing Bodies

ACTIVE EMPLOYERS
Scheduled Bodies
Councils and other bodies whose employees have a statutory right to be in the Scheme
Broxbourne Borough Council
Dacorum Borough Council
East Herts District Council
Hertford Regional College

Police Chief Constabulory
St Albans District Council
Stevenage Borough Council
Three Rivers District Council

Hertfordshire County Council
Hertsmere Borough Council
North Hertfordshire College
North Herts District Council
Oaklands College
Police and Crime Commissioner

University Of Hertfordshire
Watford Borough Council
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council
West Hertfordshire College
West Herts Crematorium

Academies, Free Schools, Studio Schools and Technical Schools
AdeyField School (STAGS)
AdeyField School
Alban City School
Alban Wood Primary School & Nursery
Applecroft
Ascot Road Community Free School
Beaumont
Bedmond Academy
Beech Hyde Primary School & Nursery
Beechfield Primary School
Birchwood High School

Little Reddings Primary School
Longdean School
Loreto College
Mandeville Primary
Manor Fields Primary School
Marlborough School Science College
Meridian
Meryfield Community Primary School
Monkswalk School
Mount Grace
Mount Pleasant Lane School

Bishops Hatfield Girls School
Bovingdon Primary
Broadfields Primary School
Bromet Primary School
Broxbourne Academy
Bushey Academy
Bushey Meads School
Camps Hill Academy
Chaulden Junior Academy
Chauncy School
Cherry Tree Primary School
Christ Church CoE School
Churchfield CofE Academy
Countess Anne Academy
Crabtree Infants School
Crabtree Junior School
Cranbourne School
Croxley Danes School
Dame Alice Owens School

Nicholas Breakspear Catholic School
Northgate Primary School
Onslow St Audreys
Our Lady Catholic Primary School
Oxhey Wood Primary School
Parmiter's School (AC)
Pinewood School
Presdales
Queens School
Ralph Sadlier
Richard Hale
Rickmansworth School
Robert Barclay Academy
Roebuck Academy
Roselands School
Roundwood Park School
Roysia
Samuel Ryder Academy
Sandringham School

Agenda Pack Page 127

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

68

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 1: List of Employing Bodies
Elstree UTC

Scholars' Education Trust - Central Team

Fair Field Junior School
Fairlands Academy
Flamstead End Primary & Nursery
Fleetville Infants
Fleetville Juniors
Francis Combe
Freman College
Garden City Academy
Goffs Churchgate Academy
Goff's School
Grange Junior School
Greneway
Grove Road Primary School
Hailey Hall School
Haileybury Turnford
Hammond Primary
Harpenden Academy
Hartsbourne Primary School
Hatfield Community Free School
Herts and Essex Academy
Hertswood School
HFL MAT
Hitchin Boys
Hitchin Girls School
Inclusive MAT
John Henry Newman
John Warner School
Jupiter Community Free School
Kings Langley School
Knights Templar School
Knightsfield
Knutsford School
Lanchester Community Free School
Larkspur Primary School
Larwood Academy
Laurance Haines School
Laureate Academy
Leventhorpe School
Links ESC

Simon Balle
Sir Frederic Osborn Academy
Sir John Lawes School
Sir Thomas More
Springmead Primary School
St Joan of Arc
St Albans Girls School
St Catherine of Siena
St Clement Danes School
St Georges
St Johns
St Mary's Catholic School Royston
St Mary's Cof E High School
St Michael's
Stanborough
Summercroft Primary School
The Barclay School
The Grove Academy
The Orchard Primary School
The Reach Free School
The Sele School
The Watford UTC
The Wroxham School
Thomas Alleyne
Tring School
Verulam School
Warren Dell Primary School
Waterside Academy
Watford Grammar School for Boys
Watford Grammar School for Girls
Watford St John’s CofE Primary School
West Herts Community Free School
Westfield Academy
Wilbury Junior School
Wilshere Dacre Academy
Windhill
Woolgrove School
Yavneh College

Employers who can designate their employees to be in the Scheme
Abbots Langley Parish Council

Markyate Parish Council

Aldenham Parish Council
Ashwell Parish Council
Berkhamsted Town Council
Bishop's Stortford Town Council
Buntingford Town Council

Nash Mills Parish Council
North Mymms Parish Council
Redbourn Parish Council
Royston Town Council
Sandridge Parish Council

Agenda Pack Page 128

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

69

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 1: List of Employing Bodies
Chipperfield Parish Council

Sawbridgeworth Town Council

Chorleywood Parish Council
Colney Heath Parish Council
Croxley Green Parish Council
E2BN
Elstree & Borehamwood Town Council
Harpenden Town Council
Hatfield Town Council
Hertford Town Council
Hertingfordbury Parish Council
Kimpton Parish Council
Kings Langley Parish Council
Knebworth Parish Council
London Colney Parish Council

South Mimms Parish Council
St Stephens Parish Council
Stanstead Abbots Parish Council
Stanstead St Margaret's Parish Council
Tring Town Council
University Bus
Walkern Parish Council
Ware Town Council
Watford Rural Parish Council
Welwyn Parish Council
Wheathamsted Parish Council
Woolmer Green Parish Council

Admitted Bodies (employers who participate by virtue of an admission agreement)
Amey Plc
B3 Living (formerly Broxbourne Housng
Association)

Interserve

Barnados (Hoddesdon)
Citizens Advice Bureau in Hertsmere
Citizens Advice Service in Three Rivers
Compass Contract Services Ltd
CP Plus Limited
Crime Reduction Initiative
Cucina (Hertswood Academy)*
Dacorum Sports Trust
Elstree Film Studio
Engie Colfey (previous Balfour Beatty)
Fushion Lifestyle
Geoffrey Osborne Ltd
HCL*
Hertfordshire Action on Disability
Hertfordshire Association of Local Councils
Hertfordshire NHS Partnership Trust
Herts Building Control Ltd
Herts Community Meals
Herts Living Ltd
Hertsmere Leisure Trust
HFL
Highfield Park Trust

Letchworth Garden City Heritage Foundation
Mears Building Contractors Ltd*
Mountain Healthcare Ltd
Opus (UK) Ltd*
Quantum Care Ltd
Radlett Centre Trust
Refuge
Ringway Infrastructure Service
RM Education Ltd
Securitas
Serco (Welwyn Hatfield BC)*
Settle Group
Sopra Steria Ltd*
Sports and Leisure Management*
Stevenage Leisure Limited
Tenon FM Ltd
Thrive Homes
Updata Infrastructure UK Ltd
Watford and District YMCA
Watford Community Housing Trust
Welwyn Hatfield Leisure Limited
YMCA - (Royston & Buntingford)

John O'Conner (Grounds Maintenance)

* Employer with more than one admission agreement relative to the service contracts they have with Scheduled Bodies

Agenda Pack Page 129

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

70

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 1: List of Employing Bodies

CEASED EMPLOYERS
Employers with no active members but with some outstanding liabilities whose
pensioners are or will be paid from the Pension Fund
Scheduled Bodies
Magistrates Courts Committee
Hertfordshire Probation Trust
The Highfield School

Department of Health
Da Vinci Studio School (North Herts School Trust)

Designated Bodies
Codicote Parish Council

Shenley Parish Council

Letchworth Garden City Council

Admitted Bodies
Abbots Care
ABM Catering Ltd
Action for Children
Affinity Sutton
Age Concern Hertfordshire
Aldenham Renaissance Ltd
ARP Trading
Art Café
Aspire Leisure Trust
Association of Charity Officers
Bushey Citizens Advice Bureau
Capita Secure Info Solutions
Carers in Hertfordshire
Caterplus
Central Parking Systems
Chauncy Housing Association
Churchill Contract Services Limited
Colesseum Theatre
Colne Valley Water Company
Comfort Call
Commission for New Towns - Hemel Hempstead
Commission for New Towns - Stevenage
Community Building Services
Dacorum Council for Voluntary Service
DC Leisure Management Ltd
Department of Transport - Motor Tax
Digica FMS
East Herts Citizens Advice Service
Edwards & Blake Ltd (Praewood School)
EEIDB
Elior UK
Europa Services Limited
Evergreen Facilities Services (Hemel Hempstead
School)
Exemplas

Hertfordshire E-Learning Partnership
Hertfordshire Training & Enterprise Council
Herts Family Mediation Service
Hertsmere Leisure Trust (Sopwell)
Hitchin Markets Ltd
Kameleon 4
Lee Valley Water
Leonard Cheshire
MACE Ltd
Mitie Property Services
National Car Parks
North Hertfordshire Hospice Care Association
Northgate Information Solutions
NSL
Office and General
Offley Place Ltd
Principle Cleaning
Pro Action
PSLA (Holywell School)
Rhodes Museum Foundation
Rickmansworth & Uxbridge Valley Water Company
Riversmead Housing Association
Shenley Park Trust
Society of Education Officers
St Albans Diocesan Board for Social Responsibility
St Mary's Trading (All Sorts)
Stevenage Homes
Superclean Services Wolthorpe Ltd
Thames Water Authority
The Fairway Public House Limited
Three Rivers West Trust
Town & Country Markets
TSG Mechanical Services Ltd
Veolia

Agenda Pack Page 130

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

71

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 1: List of Employing Bodies

Goldsborough Home Care
Gosling Sports Park (previously Welwyn Hatfield
Sports Centre Trust)
Group for the Rootless of Watford
Haywards Services Ltd (W&H)
Hemel Hempstead Day Centre Ltd
Hertford Museum Trust
Hertfordshire Care Trust
Hertfordshire Career Services Ltd

Watford & Three Rivers Trust
Watford Town Centre Partnership Limited
Wellfield Trust
Welwyn and Hatfield Community Housing Trust
West Hertfordshire Computer Consortium
Weston Voluntary Nursery
Womans Royal Voluntary Society

Agenda Pack Page 131

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

72

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 2: Funding Strategy Statement

1
1.1

Introduction
What is this document?

This is the Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) of the Hertfordshire Pension Fund (“the Fund”), which is administered by
Hertfordshire County Council, (“the Administering Authority”).
It has been prepared by the Administering Authority in collaboration with the Fund’s actuary, Hymans Robertson LLP, and
after consultation with the Fund’s employers and investment adviser. It is effective from 31 March 2018.
1.2

What is the Hertfordshire Pension Fund?

The Fund is part of the national Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). The LGPS was set up by the UK
Government to provide retirement and death benefits for local government employees, and those employed in similar or
related bodies, across the whole of the UK. The Administering Authority runs the Hertfordshire Fund, in effect the LGPS
for the Hertfordshire area, to make sure it:


receives the proper amount of contributions from employees and employers, and any transfer payments;



invests the contributions appropriately, with the aim that the Fund’s assets grow over time with investment income
and capital growth; and



uses the assets to pay Fund benefits to the members (as and when they retire, for the rest of their lives), and to their
dependants (as and when members die), as defined in the LGPS Regulations. Assets are also used to pay transfer
values and administration costs.

The roles and responsibilities of the key parties involved in the management of the Fund are summarised in Appendix A.
1.3

Why does the Fund need a Funding Strategy Statement?

Employees’ benefits are guaranteed by the LGPS Regulations, and do not change with market values or employer
contributions. Investment returns will help pay for some of the benefits, but probably not all, and certainly with no
guarantee. Employees’ contributions are fixed in those Regulations also, at a level which covers only part of the cost of
the benefits.
Therefore, employers need to pay the balance of the cost of delivering the benefits to members and their dependants.
The FSS focuses on how employer liabilities are measured, the pace at which these liabilities are funded, and how
employers or pools of employers pay for their own liabilities. This statement sets out how the Administering Authority has
balanced the conflicting aims of:


affordability of employer contributions,



transparency of processes,



stability of employers’ contributions, and



prudence in the funding basis.

The requirement to maintain and publish an FSS is also contained in the LGPS Regulations, as set out in Appendix B.
The FSS is a summary of the Fund’s approach to funding its liabilities and when other funding decisions are required, for
example when employers join or leave the Fund. It is not an exhaustive statement of policy on all issues. The FSS forms
part of a framework which includes:






the LGPS Regulations;
the Rates and Adjustments Certificate (confirming employer contribution rates for the next three years) which can
be found in an appendix to the formal valuation report;
the Fund’s policies on admissions and cessations;
actuarial factors for valuing individual transfers, early retirement costs and the costs of buying added service; and
The Fund’s Investment Strategy Statement (see section 4 Funding Strategy and links to Investment Strategy)

Agenda Pack Page 132

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

73

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 2: Funding Strategy Statement
1.4
How does the Fund and this FSS affect me?
This depends on who you are:


a member of the Fund, i.e. a current or former employee, or a dependant: the Fund needs to be sure it is collecting
and holding enough money so that your benefits are always paid in full;



an employer in the Fund (or which is considering joining the Fund): you will want to know how your contributions are
calculated, that these are fair by comparison to other employers in the Fund, and in what circumstances you might
need to pay more. Note that the FSS applies to all employers participating in the Fund;



an Elected Member whose council participates in the Fund: you will want to be sure that the council balances the
need to hold prudent reserves for members’ retirement and death benefits, with the other competing demands for
council money;



a Council Tax payer: your council seeks to strike the balance above, and also to minimise cross-subsidies between
different generations of taxpayers.

1.5

What does the FSS aim to do?

The FSS sets out the objectives of the Fund’s funding strategy, including:


to ensure the long-term solvency of the Fund, using a prudent long term view. This will ensure that sufficient funds
are available to meet all members’/dependants’ benefits as they fall due for payment;



to ensure that employer contribution rates are reasonably stable where appropriate;



to minimise the long-term cash contributions which employers need to pay to the Fund, by recognising the link
between assets and liabilities and adopting an investment strategy which balances risk and return;



to reflect the different characteristics of different employers in determining contribution rates. This involves the Fund
having a clear and transparent funding strategy to demonstrate how each employer can best meet its own liabilities
over future years; and



to use reasonable measures to reduce the risk to other employers and ultimately to the Council Tax payer from an
employer defaulting on its pension obligations.

1.6

How do I find my way around this document?

In Section 2 there is a brief introduction to some of the main principles behind funding, i.e. deciding how much an
employer should contribute to the Fund from time to time.
In Section 3 we outline how the Fund calculates the contributions payable by different employers in different situations.
In Section 4 we show how the funding strategy is linked with the Fund’s investment strategy.
In the Appendices we cover various issues in more detail:
A.
B.
C.
D.
E.
F.

The responsibilities of key parties
The regulatory framework, including how and when the FSS is reviewed,
The calculation of employer contributions
The Actuarial assumptions which the Fund Actuary currently makes about the future,
Key risks and controls for the Fund ,
Glossary

If you have any other queries please contact the Pensions Team at Pensions.Team@hertfordshire.gov.uk.

Agenda Pack Page 133

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

74

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 2: Funding Strategy Statement

2

Basic Funding issues

2.1

How does the actuary measure the required contribution rate?

In essence this is a three-step process:


Calculate the ultimate funding target for that employer, i.e. the ideal amount of assets it should hold in order to be
able to pay all its members’ benefits. See Appendix C for more details of what assumptions we make to determine
that funding target;



Determine the time horizon over which the employer should aim to achieve that funding target. See the table in
section 4.3 and Note (c) for more details;



Calculate the employer contribution rate such that it has at least a given probability of achieving that funding target
over that time horizon, allowing for different likelihoods of various possible economic outcomes over that time
horizon. See 3.4 below and the table in 4.3 Note (e) for more details.

2.2

What is each employer’s contribution rate?

This is described in more detail in Appendix D. Employer contributions are normally made up of two elements:
a)

the estimated cost of benefits being built up each year, after deducting the members’ own contributions and
including administration expenses. This is referred to as the “Primary rate”, and is expressed as a percentage of
members’ pensionable pay; plus

b)

an adjustment for the difference between the Primary rate above, and the actual contribution the employer needs to
pay, referred to as the “Secondary rate”. Payment of the Secondary rate will aim to return the employer to, or
protect, a fully funded position over an appropriate period (the “time horizon”). The Secondary rate may be
expressed as a percentage of pay and/or a monetary amount in each year. Further detail can be found in section
D3.

The rates for all employers are shown in the Fund’s Rates and Adjustments Certificate, which forms part of the formal
Actuarial Valuation Report (http://www.yourpension.org.uk/Hertfordshire/Fund-information/Policy-statements.aspx).
Employers’ contributions are expressed as minima, with employers able to pay contributions at a higher rate. Any
additional contributions over and above the certified rate will be considered by the Fund actuary at subsequent
valuations, i.e. will be reflected as a credit when next calculating the employer’s contributions.
2.3

What different types of employer participate in the Fund?

Historically the LGPS was intended for local authority employees only. However over the years, with the diversification
and changes to delivery of local services, many more types and numbers of employers now participate. There are
currently more employers in the Fund than ever before, largely a result of schools transferring to academy status and
services being outsourced from scheme employers such as Councils.
In essence, participation in the LGPS is open to public sector employers providing some form of service to the local
community. Whilst the majority of members will be local authority employees (and ex-employees), the majority of
participating employers are those providing services in place of (or alongside) local authority services.
The LGPS Regulations define various types of employer as follows:


Scheduled bodies - councils, and other specified employers such as academies and further education
establishments. These must provide access to the LGPS in respect of their employees who are not eligible to
join another public sector scheme (such as the Teachers Pension Scheme). These employers are so-called
because they are specified in a schedule to the LGPS Regulations.
It is now possible for Local Education Authority schools to convert to academy status, and for other forms of
school (such as Free Schools) to be established under the academies legislation. All such academies (or Multi
Academy Trusts), as employers of non-teaching staff, become separate new employers in the Fund. As
academies are defined in the LGPS Regulations as “Scheduled Bodies”, the Administering Authority has no
discretion over whether to admit them to the Fund, and the academy has no discretion whether to continue to
allow its non-teaching staff to join the Fund. There has also been guidance issued by the DCLG regarding the
terms of academies’ membership in LGPS Funds.

Agenda Pack Page 134

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

75

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 2: Funding Strategy Statement
 Designating employers - employers such as town and parish councils are able to participate in the LGPS via a
resolution (and the Fund cannot refuse them entry where the resolution is passed). These employers can
designate which of their employees are eligible to join the scheme.


2.4

Other employers are able to participate in the Fund via an admission agreement, and are referred to as
‘admission bodies’. These employers are generally those with a “community of interest” with another scheme
employer – community admission bodies (“CAB”) or those providing a service on behalf of a scheme employer
– transferee admission bodies (“TAB”). CABs will include housing associations and charities, TABs will
generally be contractors. The Fund is able to set its criteria for participation by these employers and can refuse
entry if the requirements as set out in the Fund’s admissions policy are not met. The terminology CAB and TAB
has been dropped from recent LGPS Regulations, which instead combine both under the single term ‘admission
bodies’; however, we have retained the old terminology as we consider it to be helpful in setting funding
strategies for these different employers.
How does the contribution rate vary for different employers?

All three steps outlined in section 2.1 are considered when setting contributions (more details are given in Section 3 and
Appendix D).
1.

The funding target is based on a set of assumptions about the future, (e.g. investment returns, inflation,
pensioners’ life expectancies). An employer’s individual funding target is set so that that there are sufficient assets
to pay for all accrued benefits at the end of its participation in the Fund and that the employers liabilities do not fall
on other employers in the Fund in the future;

2.

The time horizon required is, in broad terms, the period over which any deficit is to be recovered. A shorter period
will lead to higher contributions, and vice versa (all other things being equal). Employers may be given a lower time
horizon if they have a less permanent anticipated membership, or do not have tax-raising powers to increase
contributions if investment returns under-perform; and

3.

The probability of achieving the funding target over that time horizon will be dependent on the Fund’s view of the
strength of employer covenant and its funding profile. Where an employer is considered to be weaker, or potentially
ceasing from the Fund, then the required probability will be set higher, which in turn will increase the required
contributions (and vice versa).

2.5

How is a deficit (or surplus) calculated?

An employer’s “funding level” is defined as the ratio of:



the market value of the employer’s share of assets (see Appendix D, section D5, for further details of how this is
calculated), to;
the value placed by the actuary on the benefits built up to date for the employer’s employees and ex-employees (the
“liabilities”). The Fund actuary agrees with the Administering Authority the assumptions to be used in calculating this
value.

If this ratio is less than 100% then it means the employer has a shortfall, which is the employer’s deficit; if it is more than
100% then the employer is said to be in surplus. The amount of deficit or shortfall is the difference between the asset
value and the liabilities value.
It is important to note that the deficit/surplus and funding level are only measurements at a particular point in time, on a
particular set of assumptions about the future. Whilst we recognise that various parties will take an interest in these
measures, for most employers the key issue is how likely it is that their contributions will be sufficient to pay for their
members’ benefits (when added to their existing asset share and anticipated investment returns).
In short, deficits and funding levels are short term measures, whereas contribution-setting is a longer term issue.

Agenda Pack Page 135

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

76

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 2: Funding Strategy Statement
2.6

How does the Fund recognise that contribution levels can affect council and employer service provision,
and council tax?

The Administering Authority and the Fund actuary are acutely aware that, all other things being equal, a higher
contribution required to be paid to the Fund will mean less cash available for the employer to spend on the provision of
services. However, this is balanced against the following considerations:


The Fund provides invaluable financial security to local families, whether to those who formerly worked in the
service of the local community who have now retired, or to their families after their death;



The Fund must have the assets available to meet these retirement and death benefits, which in turn means that the
various employers must each pay their own way. Lower contributions today will mean higher contributions
tomorrow: deferring payments does not alter the employer’s ultimate obligation to the Fund in respect of its current
and former employees;



Each employer will generally only pay for its own employees and ex-employees (and their dependants), not for
those of other employers in the Fund;



The Fund strives to maintain reasonably stable employer contribution rates where appropriate and possible.
However, a recent shift in regulatory focus means that solvency within each generation is considered by the
Government to be a higher priority than stability of contribution rates;



The Fund wishes to avoid the situation where an employer falls so far behind in managing its funding shortfall that
its deficit becomes unmanageable in practice: such a situation may lead to employer insolvency and the resulting
deficit falling on the other Fund employers. In that situation, those employers’ services would in turn suffer as a
result;



Council contributions to the Fund should be at a suitable level, to protect the interests of different generations of
council tax payers. For instance, underpayment of contributions for some years will need to be balanced by
overpayment in other years; the council will wish to minimise the extent to which council tax payers in one period
are, in effect, benefitting at the expense of those paying in a different period.

Therefore, there is clearly a balance to be struck between the Fund’s need for maintaining prudent funding levels, and the
employers’ need to allocate their resources appropriately. The Fund achieves this through various techniques which
affect contribution increases to various degrees, as discussed in section 3. In deciding which of these techniques to
apply to any given employer, the Fund will consider a risk assessment of that employer using a knowledge base which is
regularly monitored and kept up-to-date. This database will include such information as the type of employer, its
membership profile and funding position, any guarantors or security provision, material changes anticipated, etc. This
helps the Fund establish a picture of the financial standing of the employer, i.e. its ability to meet its long term Fund
commitments. To ensure that the information is kept up to date, employers are required to completed an annual survey
to confirm the accuracy of information held on the database.
Where an employer is considered relatively low risk then the Fund will permit options such as stabilisation (see 3.3 Note
(b)), a longer time horizon relative to other employers, and/or a lower probability of achieving their funding target. Such
options will temporarily produce lower contribution levels than would otherwise have applied. This is permitted in the
expectation that the employer will still be able to meet its obligations for many years to come.
An employer whose risk assessment indicates a less strong covenant i,e their assessed financial strength in regards to
their ability to pay for pension obligations in the long run, will generally be required to pay higher contributions (for
instance, with a higher funding target, and/or a shorter deficit recovery period relative to other employers, and/or a higher
probability of achieving the target). This is because of the higher probability that at some point it will fail or be unable to
meet its pension contributions, with its deficit in the Fund then falling to other Fund employers, or because the employer
has less time to meet its obligations to the Fund.

Agenda Pack Page 136

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

77

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 2: Funding Strategy Statement

3

Calculating contributions for individual Employers

3.1

General comments

A key challenge for the Administering Authority is to balance the need for stable, affordable employer contributions with
the requirement to take a prudent, longer-term view of funding and ensure the solvency of the Fund. With this in mind,
the Fund’s three-step process identifies the key issues:
1. What is a suitably (but not overly) prudent funding target?
2. How long should the employer be permitted to reach that target? This should be realistic but not so long that the
funding target is in danger of never actually being achieved.
3. What probability is required to reach that funding target? This will always be less than 100% as we cannot be certain
of future market movements. Higher probability “bars” can be used for employers where the Fund wishes to reduce
the risk that the employer ceases leaving a deficit to be picked up by other employers.
These and associated issues are covered in this Section.
The Administering Authority recognises that there may occasionally be particular circumstances affecting individual
employers that are not easily managed within the rules and policies set out in the Funding Strategy Statement. Therefore
the Administering Authority may, at its sole discretion, direct the actuary to adopt alternative funding approaches on a
case by case basis for specific employers.
3.2

The effect of paying contributions below the measured level

There are a number of methods which the Administering Authority may permit, in order to improve the stability of
employer contributions. These include, where circumstances permit:


capping of employer contribution rate changes within a pre-determined range (“stabilisation”);



the use of extended time horizons;



adjusting the required probability of meeting the funding target;



the phasing in of contribution rises or reductions;



the pooling of contributions amongst employers with similar characteristics; and/or



the use of some form of security or guarantee to justify a lower contribution rate than would otherwise be the case.

Employers which are permitted to use one or more of the above methods will often be paying, for a time, contributions
less than the measured contribution rate. Such employers should appreciate that:


their true long term liability (i.e. the actual eventual cost of benefits payable to their employees and ex-employees) is
not affected by the choice of method,



lower contributions in the short term will be assumed to incur a greater loss of investment returns on the deficit.
Thus, deferring a certain amount of contribution may lead to higher contributions in the long-term, and



it may take longer to reach their funding target, all other things being equal.

Section 3.3 summarises how the main funding policies differ for different types of employer, followed by more detailed
notes where necessary. Section 3.4 onwards deals with funding issues which apply to all employers.

Agenda Pack Page 137

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

78

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 2: Funding Strategy Statement 2017
3.3 The different approaches used for different employers
Type of employer
Sub-type

Agenda Pack Page 138

Funding Target
Basis used
Primary rate
approach
Stabilised
contribution rate?
Maximum time
horizon
see note (c)
Secondary rate
see note (d)
Treatment of
surplus
Probability of
achieving target
see note (e)
Phasing of
contribution
changes
Review of rates
see note (f)
New employer
Cessation of
participation:
cessation debt
payable

Scheduled Bodies

Designating
Community Admission Bodies
Employers
Local
Academies
Other
Parish &
Open to new
Closed to new
Authorities &
scheduled
Town
entrants
entrants
Police
bodies
Councils
Ongoing, assumes long-term Fund participation
Ongoing, but may move to “gilts
(see Appendix C)
basis” - see note (a)
(see Appendix D, section D.2)
Yes
see note (b)
20 years

Yes
see note (b)
20 years

% of payroll
or monetary
amount
Covered by
stabilisation
arrangement
66%

% of payroll

Covered by
stabilisation
arrangement
66%

No

No

20 years

17 years

No

No

Future working
Future working
lifetime of
lifetime of members
members
% of payroll
% of payroll
% of payroll or
Monetary amount
or monetary
monetary
amount
amount
Preferred approach: contributions kept at future service rate. However,
reductions may be permitted by the Admin. Authority
66% - 70%

66%

66% - 80%

66% - 80%

Covered by
Covered by
Max 3 years
Max 3 years
Max 3 years
Max 3 years
stabilisation
stabilisation
arrangement
arrangement
Administering Authority reserves the right to review contribution rates and amounts, and the level of
security provided, at regular intervals between valuations
n/a
see note (g)
n/a
See section
See note (h)
2.3
Cessation is assumed not to be generally possible, as
Can be ceased subject to terms of
Scheduled Bodies are legally obliged to participate in the
admission agreement. Cessation
LGPS. In the rare event of cessation occurring, the cessation
debt will be calculated on a basis
debt principles applied would be as per Note (j).
appropriate to the circumstances of
cessation – see Note (j).

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

Transferee Admission Bodies

Ongoing, assumes fixed contract term
in the Fund (see Appendix C)

No
Outstanding contract term, or future
working lifetime of members (if shorter)
% of payroll or monetary amount

Reduce contributions by spreading the
surplus over the remaining contract
term
66-75%

None
Particularly reviewed at regular
intervals in last 3 years of contract
See notes (h) & (i)
Participation assumed to expire at the
end of the contract. Cessation debt
calculated on ongoing basis. Awarding
Authority liable for future deficits and
contributions arising.

79

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 2: Funding Strategy Statement 2017
Note (a) Basis for CABs closed to new entrants
In the circumstances where:


the employer is an Admission Body but not a Transferee Admission Body, and



the employer has no guarantor for future deficits and contributions, and



the admission agreement is likely to terminate, or the employer is likely to lose its last active member, within a timeframe considered appropriate by the Administering Authority to prompt a change in funding,

the Administering Authority may set a higher funding target (e.g. using a discount rate set equal to gilt yields) by the time
the agreement terminates or the last active member leaves, in order to protect other employers in the Fund. This policy
will increase regular contributions and reduce, but not entirely eliminate, the possibility of a final deficit payment being
required from the employer when a cessation valuation is carried out.
The Administering Authority also reserves the right to adopt the above approach in respect of those Admission Bodies
whose admission agreement is open or where there is no immediate expectation that the admission agreement will
cease, where there is no guarantor for future deficits and contributions, or where the strength of covenant is considered to
be weak.
Note (b) Stabilisation
Stabilisation is a mechanism where employer contribution rate variations from year to year are kept within a predetermined range, thus allowing those employers’ rates to be relatively stable. In the interests of stability and affordability
of employer contributions, the Administering Authority, on the advice of the Fund Actuary, believes that stabilising
contributions can still be viewed as a prudent longer-term approach. However, employers whose contribution rates have
been “stabilised” (and may therefore be paying less than their theoretical contribution rate) should be aware of the risks of
this approach and should consider making additional payments to the Fund if possible.
This stabilisation mechanism allows short term investment market volatility to be managed so as not to cause volatility in
employer contribution rates, on the basis that a long term view can be taken on net cash inflow, investment returns and
strength of employer covenant.
In general, stabilisation will only be considered for employers who are:


Scheduled bodies that have tax raising powers, or are part of a pool



Open to new entrants



Have a long term time horizon in the Fund



Have been assessed as having a strong employer covenant so as to protect the Fund and the other employers in
the Fund against the risk of the employer defaulting in relation to its liabilities.

The current stabilisation mechanism applies if:


the employer satisfies the eligibility criteria set by the Administering Authority, as set out above and;



there are no material events which cause the employer to become ineligible, e.g. significant reductions in active
membership (due to outsourcing or redundancies), or changes in the nature of the employer (perhaps due to
Government restructuring).

On the basis of extensive modelling carried out for the 2016 valuation exercise (see Section 4), the stabilisation
parameters have been set allowing for increases/decreased of 0% to 1.5% of pay.
The stabilisation criteria and limits will be reviewed at the 31 March 2019 valuation, to take effect from 1 April 2020.

Agenda Pack Page 139

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

77

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 2: Funding Strategy Statement 2017
Note (c) Maximum time horizon
The maximum time horizon starts at the commencement of the revised contribution rate (1 April 2018 for the 2017
valuation). The Administering Authority would normally expect the same period to be used at successive triennial
valuations, but would reserve the right to propose alternative time horizons, for example where there were no new
entrants.
Note (d) Secondary rate
For employers where stabilisation is not being applied, the Secondary contribution rate for each employer covering the
three year period until the next valuation will often be set as a percentage of salaries. However, the Administering
Authority reserves the right to amend these rates between valuations and/or to require these payments in monetary terms
instead, for instance where:


the employer is relatively mature, i.e. has a large Secondary contribution rate (e.g. above 15% of payroll), or



there has been a significant reduction in payroll due to outsourcing or redundancy exercises, or



the employer has closed the Fund to new entrants.

Note (e) Probability of achieving funding target
Each employer has their funding target calculated, and a relevant time horizon over which to reach that target.
Contributions are set such that, combined with the employer’s current asset share and anticipated market movements
over the time horizon, the funding target is achieved with a given minimum probability. A higher required probability bar
will give rise to higher required contributions, and vice versa.
The way in which contributions are set using these three steps, and relevant economic projections, is described in further
detail in Appendix D.
Different probabilities are set for different employers depending on their nature and circumstances: in broad terms, a
higher probability will apply due to one or more of the following:


the Fund believes the employer poses a greater funding risk than other employers,



the employer does not have tax-raising powers;



the employer does not have a guarantor or other sufficient security backing its funding position; and/or



the employer is likely to cease participation in the Fund in the short or medium term.

Note (f) Regular Reviews
The Fund reserves the right to review contribution rates and amounts, and the level of security provided, at regular
intervals between Valuations. Such reviews may be triggered by significant events including but not limited to: significant
reductions in payroll, altered employer circumstances, Government restructuring affecting the employer’s business, or
failure to pay contributions or arrange appropriate security as required by the Administering Authority.
The result of a review may be to require increased contributions (by strengthening the actuarial assumptions adopted
and/or moving to monetary levels of deficit recovery contributions), and/or an increased level of security or guarantee.

Agenda Pack Page 140

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

78

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 2: Funding Strategy Statement 2017
Note (g) New Academy conversions
At the time of writing, the Fund’s policies on academies’ funding issues are as follows:
i.

The new academy will be regarded as a separate employer in the scheme in its own right.

ii.

The new academy’s past service liabilities on conversion will be calculated based on its active Fund members on
the day before conversion. For the avoidance of doubt, these liabilities will include all past service of those
members, but will exclude the liabilities relating to any ex-employees of the school who have deferred or pensioner
status;

iii.

The new academy will be allocated an initial asset share from the ceding council’s assets in the Fund. This asset
share will be calculated using the estimated funding position of the ceding council at the date of academy
conversion. The share will be based on the active members’ funding level, having first allocated assets in the
council’s share to fully fund deferred and pensioner members. The asset allocation will be based on market
conditions and the academy’s active Fund membership on the day prior to conversion;

iv.

Schools that convert to Academy status who are already in the Schools & Academies Pool will continue to pay the
prevailing rate of the pool until the next Triennial Valuation, at which they have the opportunity to opt out if they
wish to have an individual employer contribution rate calculated;

The Fund’s policies on academies are subject to change in the light of any amendments to DCLG guidance. Any changes
will be notified to academies, and will be reflected in a subsequent version of this FSS. In particular, policies (iv) and (v)
above will be reconsidered at each valuation.
Note (h) New Admission Bodies
With effect from 1 October 2012, the LGPS 2012 Miscellaneous Regulations introduced mandatory new requirements for
all Admission Bodies brought into the Fund from that date. Under these Regulations, all new Admission Bodies will be
required to provide some form of security, such as a guarantee from the letting employer, an indemnity, or a bond. The
security is required to cover some or all of the following:


the strain cost of any redundancy early retirements resulting from the premature termination of the contract;



allowance for the risk of asset underperformance;



allowance for the risk of a fall in gilt yields;



allowance for the possible non-payment of employer and member contributions to the Fund; and/or



the current deficit.

Any security must be to the satisfaction of the Administering Authority and where applicable to the letting employer, and
will be reassessed at regular intervals. See also Note (i) below
The Fund will only consider requests from “CAB’s” or other similar bodies to join the Fund if they are sponsored by a
scheduled body with tax raising powers who will guarantee the liabilities of the body and supplemented, where
appropriate, by the provision of a form of security as above.
The above approaches reduce the risk, to other employers in the Fund, of potentially having to pick up any shortfall in
respect of Admission Bodies ceasing with an unpaid deficit.
Note (i) New Transferee Admission Bodies
A new TAB usually joins the Fund as a result of the letting/outsourcing of some services from an existing employer
(normally a Scheduled Body such as a council or academy) to another organisation (a “contractor”). This involves the
TUPE transfer of some staff from the letting employer to the contractor. Consequently, for the duration of the contract,
the contractor can seek admitted body status in the Fund so that the transferring employees maintain their eligibility for
LGPS membership. At the end of the contract the employees revert to the letting employer or to a replacement
contractor.
Ordinarily, the TAB would be set up in the Fund as a new employer with responsibility for all the accrued benefits of the
transferring employees; in this case, the contractor would usually be assigned an initial asset allocation equal to the past
service liability value of the employees’ Fund benefits. The quid pro quo is that the contractor is then expected to ensure
that its share of the Fund is also fully funded at the end of the contract: see Note (j).
Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19
79

Agenda Pack Page 141

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 2: Funding Strategy Statement 2017
Employers who “outsource” have flexibility in the way that they can deal with the pension risk potentially taken on by the
contractor. In particular there are three different routes that such employers may wish to adopt. Clearly as the risk
ultimately resides with the employer letting the contract, it is for them to agree the appropriate route with the contractor:


Pooling: Under this option the contractor is pooled with the letting employer. In this case, the contractor pays the
same rate as the letting employer, which may be under a stabilisation approach.



Letting employer retains pre-contract risks: Under this option the letting employer would retain responsibility for
assets and liabilities in respect of service accrued prior to the contract commencement date. The contractor
would be responsible for the future liabilities that accrue in respect of transferred staff. The contractor’s
contribution rate could vary from one valuation to the next. It would be liable for any deficit at the end of the
contract term in respect of assets and liabilities attributable to service accrued during the contract term.



Fixed contribution rate agreed: Under this option the contractor pays a fixed contribution rate and does not pay
any cessation deficit. Any surplus or deficit present at the end of the contract period falls back to the letting
employer.

The Administering Authority is willing to administer any of the above options as long as the approach is documented in
the Admission Agreement as well as the transfer agreement. The Admission Agreement should ensure that some
element of risk transfers to the contractor where it relates to their decisions and it is unfair to burden the letting employer
with that risk. For example the contractor should typically be responsible for pension costs that arise from:


above average pay increases, including the effect in respect of service prior to contract commencement even if the
letting employer takes on responsibility for the latter under (ii) above; and



redundancy and early retirement decisions.

Note (j) Admission Bodies Ceasing
Notwithstanding the provisions of the Admission Agreement, the Administering Authority may consider any of the
following as triggers for the cessation of an admission agreement with any type of body:


Last active member ceasing participation in the Fund (NB recent LGPS Regulation changes mean that the
Administering Authority has the discretion to defer taking action for up to three years, so that if the employer acquires
one or more active Fund members during that period then cessation is not triggered. However, this may or may not
be applied in any given case);



The insolvency, winding up or liquidation of the Admission Body;



Any breach by the Admission Body of any of its obligations under the Agreement that they have failed to remedy to
the satisfaction of the Fund;



A failure by the Admission Body to pay any sums due to the Fund within the period required by the Fund; or



The failure by the Admission Body to renew or adjust the level of the bond or indemnity, or to confirm an appropriate
alternative guarantor, as required by the Fund.

In the case of a transferee admission body, participation is assumed to expire at the end of the contract.
On cessation, the Administering Authority will instruct the Fund actuary to carry out a cessation valuation to determine
whether there is any deficit or surplus. Where there is a deficit, the Admission Body will be liable to pay an exit payment
to the Fund and payment of this amount in full would normally be sought from the Admission Body; where there is a
surplus it should be noted that under current legislation there is no mechanism to refund payment to the Admission Body.
The actuary will adopt an approach which, to the extent reasonably practicable, protects the other employers from the
likelihood of any material loss emerging in the future.
For transferee admission bodies, the cessation valuation will normally be calculated using the ongoing basis, in line with
the basis on which they were admitted to the Fund. The original letting/outsourcing employer will then be liable for future
deficits and contributions arising.
For non-Transferee Admission Bodies whose participation is voluntarily ended either by themselves or the Fund, or where
a cessation event has been triggered, the Administering Authority must look to protect the interests of other ongoing

Agenda Pack Page 142

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

80

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 2: Funding Strategy Statement 2017
employers. The actuary will therefore adopt an approach which, to the extent reasonably practicable, protects the other
employers from the likelihood of any material loss emerging in future:
a)

Where there is a guarantor for future deficits and contributions, the cessation valuation will normally be calculated
using the ongoing basis as described in Appendix C;

b)

Alternatively, it may be possible to simply transfer the former Admission Body’s liabilities and assets to the
guarantor, without needing to crystallise any deficit. This approach may be adopted where the employer cannot pay
the contributions due, and this is within the terms of the guarantee;

c)

Where a guarantor does not exist for future deficits and contributions then, in order to protect other employers in
the Fund, the cessation liabilities and final deficit will normally be calculated using a “gilts cessation basis”, which is
more prudent than the ongoing basis. This has no allowance for potential future investment outperformance above
gilt yields, and has added allowance for future improvements in life expectancy. This could give rise to significant
cessation debts being required.

Any shortfall would usually be levied on the departing Admission Body as a single lump sum payment. If this is not
possible then the Fund would look to any bond, indemnity or guarantee in place for the employer.
In the event that the Fund is not able to recover the required payment in full, then the unpaid amounts will initially fall to
the original letting/outsourcing employer (in the case of a transferee admission body) or in any other case be shared
amongst all of the other employers in the Fund. This may require an immediate revision to the Rates and Adjustments
Certificate affecting other employers in the Fund, or instead be reflected in the contribution rates set at the next formal
valuation following the cessation date.
As an alternative, where the ceasing Admission Body is continuing in business, the Fund at its absolute discretion
reserves the right to enter into an agreement with the ceasing Admission Body. Under this agreement the Fund would
accept an appropriate alternative security to be held against any deficit, and would carry out the cessation valuation on an
ongoing basis: deficit recovery payments would be derived from this cessation debt. This approach would be monitored
as part of each triennial valuation: the Fund reserves the right to revert to a “gilts cessation basis” and seek immediate
payment of any funding shortfall identified. The Administering Authority may need to seek legal advice in such cases, as
the Body would have no contributing members.
3.4

Pooled contributions

From time to time, with the advice of the Actuary, the Administering Authority may set up pools for employers with similar
or complementary characteristics. This will always be in line with its broader funding strategy. The exceptions are
Transferee admission bodies and community admission bodies that are deemed by the Administering Authority to have
closed to new entrants. The current pools in place within the Fund are as follows:


Hertfordshire maintained schools, academies, free schools, university technical colleges and studio schools; and



Parish and Town Councils

Those employers which have been pooled are identified in the Rates and Adjustments Certificate.
Employers who participate in a pool, will be required to comply with the conditions and requirements set out in the pooling
policy applicable to that Pool, which can be found at: http://www.yourpension.org.uk/Hertfordshire/Fundinformation/Policy-statements.aspx.
Employers will be advised of their individual funding positions as well as that of the pool at each Valuation. In paying a
pooled contribution rate, Pool Members must acknowledge that they may be paying a rate that is more or less than the
employer contribution rate that would have been payable if the employer contribution rate had been determined on an
individual employer basis. Pool Members may wish to consider making additional payments to the Pension Fund to
improve their funding/balance sheet position, particularly where their funding level is lower than that of the rest of the
pool.
3.5

Additional flexibility in return for added security

At its discretion, the Administering Authority may permit greater flexibility to the employer’s contributions if the employer
provides added security to the satisfaction of the Administering Authority.
Such flexibility includes a reduced rate of contribution, an extended time horizon, or permission to join a pool with another
body (e.g. the Local Authority).

Agenda Pack Page 143

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

81

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 2: Funding Strategy Statement 2017
Such security may include, but is not limited to, a suitable bond, a legally-binding guarantee from an appropriate third
party, or security over an employer asset of sufficient value.
The degree of flexibility given may take into account factors such as:


the extent of the employer’s deficit;



the amount and quality of the security offered;



the employer’s financial security and business plan; and



whether the admission agreement is likely to be open or closed to new entrants.

3.6

Non ill health early retirement costs

It is assumed that members’ benefits are payable from the earliest age that the employee could retire without incurring a
reduction to their benefit (and without requiring their employer’s consent to retire). Note the relevant age may be different
for different periods of service, following the benefit changes from April 2008 and April 2014. Employers are required to
pay additional contributions (‘strain’) wherever an employee retires before attaining this age. Strain costs are payable in
full in the year of retirement. The actuary’s funding basis makes no allowance for premature retirement except on
grounds of ill-health.
3.7

Ill health early retirement costs

In the event of a member’s early retirement on the grounds of ill-health, a funding strain will usually arise, which can be
very large. Such strains are currently met by each employer, although individual employers may elect to take external
insurance (see 3.8 below).
Employers will usually have an ‘ill health allowance’ as calculated at each Valuation. The Fund monitors each employer’s
ill health experience on an ongoing basis. If the cumulative cost of ill health retirement in any financial year exceeds the
allowance at the previous valuation, the employer will be charged additional contributions on the same basis as apply for
non ill-health cases, as outlined in the Fund’s Administration Strategy and in the case of admission bodies, in each
separate Admission Agreement.
3.8

External Ill health insurance

If an employer provides satisfactory evidence to the Administering Authority of a current external insurance policy
covering ill health early retirement strains, then:
-

the employer’s contribution to the Fund each year is reduced by the amount of that year’s insurance premium, so
that the total contribution is unchanged, and

-

there is no need for monitoring of allowances.

The employer must keep the Administering Authority notified of any changes in the insurance policy’s coverage or
premium terms, or if the policy is ceased.
3.9

Employers with no remaining active members

In general an employer ceasing in the Fund, due to the departure of the last active member, will pay a cessation debt on
an appropriate basis (see 3.3, Note (j)) and consequently have no further obligation to the Fund. Thereafter it is expected
that one of two situations will eventually arise:
a)

The employer’s asset share runs out before all its ex-employees’ benefits have been paid. In this situation the other
Fund employers will be required to contribute to pay all remaining benefits: this will be done by the Fund actuary
apportioning the remaining liabilities on a pro-rata basis at successive formal valuations;

b)

The last ex-employee or dependant dies before the employer’s asset share has been fully utilised. In this situation
the remaining assets would be apportioned pro-rata by the Fund’s actuary to the other Fund.

In exceptional circumstances the Fund may permit an employer with no remaining active members to continue
contributing to the Fund. This would require the provision of a suitable security or guarantee, as well as a written ongoing

Agenda Pack Page 144

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

82

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 2: Funding Strategy Statement 2017
commitment to fund the remainder of the employer’s obligations over an appropriate period. The Fund would reserve the
right to invoke the cessation requirements in the future, however. The Administering Authority may need to seek legal
advice in such cases, as the employer would have no contributing members.
3.10 Policies on bulk transfers
The Fund will consider bulk transfers on a case by case basis, but in general:


The Fund will not pay bulk transfers greater than the lesser of (a) the asset share of the transferring employer in the
Fund, and (b) the value of the past service liabilities of the transferring members;



The Fund will not grant added benefits to members bringing in entitlements from another Fund unless the asset
transfer is sufficient to meet the added liabilities; and



The Fund may permit shortfalls to arise on bulk transfers if the Fund employer has suitable strength of covenant and
commits to meeting that shortfall in an appropriate period. This may require the employer’s Fund contributions to
increase between valuations.

4

Funding strategy and links to investment strategy

4.1

What is the Fund’s investment strategy?

The Fund has built up assets over the years, and continues to receive contributions and other income. All of this must be
invested in a suitable manner, which is the investment strategy.
The Investment strategy is set by the administering authority, and after taking investment advice. The precise mix,
manager make up and target returns are set out in the Investment Strategy Statement, which is accessible from the
Fund’s website: http://www.yourpension.org.uk/Hertfordshire/Fund-information/Policy-statements.aspx
The investment strategy is set for the long-term, but is reviewed from time to time. Normally a full review is carried out as
part of each actuarial valuation, and is kept under review annually between actuarial valuations to ensure that it remains
appropriate to the Fund’s liability profile.
The same investment strategy is currently followed for all employers.
4.2

What is the link between funding strategy and investment strategy?

The Fund must be able to meet all benefit payments as and when they fall due. These payments will be met by
contributions (resulting from the funding strategy) or asset returns and income (resulting from the investment strategy).
To the extent that investment returns or income fall short, then higher cash contributions are required from employers,
and vice versa
Therefore, the funding and investment strategies are inextricably linked.
4.3

How does the funding strategy reflect the Fund’s investment strategy?

In the opinion of the Fund actuary, the current funding policy is consistent with the current investment strategy of the
Fund. The asset outperformance assumption contained in the discount rate (see Appendix C3) is within a range that
would be considered acceptable for funding purposes; it is also considered to be consistent with the requirement to take a
“prudent longer-term view” of the funding of liabilities as required by the UK Government (see Appendix B1).
However, in the short term – such as the three yearly assessments at formal valuations – there is the scope for
considerable volatility and there is a material chance that in the short-term and even medium term, asset returns will fall
short of this target. The stability measures described in Section 3 will damp down, but not remove, the effect on
employers’ contributions.
The Fund does not hold a contingency reserve to protect it against the volatility of equity investments.

Agenda Pack Page 145

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

83

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 2: Funding Strategy Statement 2017
4.4 How does this differ for a large stable employer?
The Actuary has developed four key measures which capture the essence of the Fund’s strategies, both funding and
investment:


Prudence - the Fund should have a reasonable expectation of being fully funded in the long term;



Affordability – how much can employers afford;



Stewardship – the assumptions used should be sustainable in the long term, without having to resort to overly
optimistic assumptions about the future to maintain an apparently healthy funding position; and



Stability – employers should not see significant moves in their contribution rates from one year to the next, to help
provide a more stable budgeting environment.

The problem is that the key objectives often conflict. For example, minimising the long term cost of the scheme (i.e.
keeping employer rates affordable) is best achieved by investing in higher returning assets e.g. equities. However,
equities are also very volatile (i.e. go up and down fairly frequently in fairly large moves), which conflicts with the objective
to have stable contribution rates.
Therefore, a balance needs to be maintained between risk and reward, which has been considered by the use of Asset
Liability Modelling: this is a set of calculation techniques applied by the Fund’s actuary to model the range of potential
future solvency levels and contribution rates.
The Actuary was able to model the impact of these four key areas, for the purpose of setting a stabilisation approach (see
3.3 Note (b)). The modelling demonstrated that retaining the present investment strategy, coupled with constraining
employer contribution rate changes as described in 3.3 Note (b), struck an appropriate balance between the above
objectives. In particular the stabilisation approach currently adopted meets the need for stability of contributions without
jeopardising the Administering Authority’s aims of prudent stewardship of the Fund.
Whilst the current stabilisation mechanism is to remain in place until 2020 and will be reviewed as part of the 2019
valuation.
4.5

Does the Fund monitor its overall funding position?

The Administering Authority monitors the relative funding position, i.e. changes in the relationship between asset values
and the liabilities value, on a quarterly basis and reports this to Pensions Committee and to the LGPS Board.

5

Statutory reporting and comparison to other LGPS Funds

5.1

Purpose

Under Section 13(4)(c) of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 (“Section 13”), the Government Actuary’s Department
must, following each triennial actuarial valuation, report to the Department of Communities & Local Government (DCLG)
on each of the LGPS Funds in England & Wales. This report will cover whether the rate of employer contributions for
each fund are set at an appropriate level to ensure both the solvency and the long term cost efficiency of the Fund.
This additional DCLG oversight may have an impact on the strategy for setting contribution rates at future valuations.
5.2

Solvency

For the purposes of Section 13, the rate of employer contributions shall be deemed to have been set at an appropriate
level to ensure solvency if:
a)

the rate of employer contributions is set to target a funding level for the Fund of 100%, over an appropriate
time period and using appropriate actuarial assumptions (where appropriateness is considered in both
absolute and relative terms in comparison with other funds); and either

b)

employers collectively have the financial capacity to increase employer contributions, and/or the Fund is able
to realise contingent assets should future circumstances require, in order to continue to target a funding level
of 100%; or

c)

there is an appropriate plan in place should there be, or if there is expected in future to be, a material
reduction in the capacity of fund employers to increase contributions as might be needed.

Agenda Pack Page 146

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

84

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 2: Funding Strategy Statement 2017
5.3

Long Term Cost Efficiency

The rate of employer contributions shall be deemed to have been set at an appropriate level to ensure long term cost
efficiency if:
a)

the rate of employer contributions is sufficient to make provision for the cost of current benefit accrual,

b)

with an appropriate adjustment to that rate for any surplus or deficit in the Fund.

In assessing whether the above condition is met, DCLG may have regard to various absolute and relative measures.
DCLG may assess and compare these metrics on a suitable standardised market-related basis, for example where the
local funds’ actuarial bases do not make comparisons straightforward.
 Relative measures are primarily concerned with comparing the Fund with other LGPS Funds and include:


the implied deficit recovery period (the estimated period until the Fund reaches a 100% funding level); and



the investment return required to achieve full funding after 20 years.

Absolute measures are primarily concerned with comparing the Fund with a given objective benchmark and include:


the extent to which the contributions payable are sufficient to cover the cost of current benefit accrual and the
interest cost on any deficit;



how the required investment return under “relative considerations” above compares to the estimated future return
being targeted by the Fund’s current investment strategy;



the extent to which contributions actually paid have been in line with the expected contributions based on the
extant rates and adjustment certificate; and



the extent to which any new deficit recovery plan can be directly reconciled with, and can be demonstrated to be
a continuation of, any previous deficit recovery plan, after allowing for actual Fund experience.

Agenda Pack Page 147

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

85

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 2: Funding Strategy Statement 2017

Appendix A – Responsibilities of key parties
The efficient and effective operation of the Fund needs various parties to each play their part.
A1

The Administering Authority should:-



Operate the Fund in accordance with the LGPS Regulations;



Effectively manage any potential conflicts of interest arising from its dual role as Administering Authority and a
Fund employer;



Collect employer and employee contributions, and investment income and other amounts due to the Fund;



Ensure that cash is available to meet benefit payments as and when they fall due;



Pay from the Fund the relevant benefits and entitlements that are due;



Invest surplus monies (i.e. contributions and other income which are not immediately needed to pay benefits) in
accordance with the Fund’s Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) and LGPS Regulations;



Communicate appropriately with employers so that they fully understand their obligations to the Fund;



Take appropriate measures to safeguard the Fund against the consequences of employer default;



Manage the valuation process in consultation with the Fund’s actuary;



Provide data and information as required by the Government Actuary’s Department to carry out their statutory
obligations (see Section 5);



Prepare and maintain a FSS and an ISS, after consultation;



Notify the Fund’s actuary of material changes which could affect funding (this is covered in a separate agreement
with the actuary); and



Monitor all aspects of the fund’s performance and funding and amend the ISS as necessary and appropriate.

A2

The Individual Employer should:-



Deduct contributions from employees’ pay correctly;



Pay all contributions, including their own as determined by the actuary, promptly by the due date;



Establish and exercise a discretions policy within the regulatory framework;



Make additional contributions in accordance with agreed arrangements in respect of, for example, augmentation of
scheme benefits, early retirement strain; and



Notify the Administering Authority promptly of all changes to its circumstances, prospects or membership, which
could affect future funding.



In the case of admission bodies, ensure completion of admission agreements prior to contract commencement.

A3

The Fund Actuary should:-



Prepare valuations, including the setting of employers’ contribution rates. This will involve agreeing assumptions
with the Administering Authority, having regard to the FSS and LGPS Regulations, and targeting each employer’s
solvency appropriately;



Provide data and information as required by the Government Actuary’s Department to carry out their statutory
obligations (see Section 5);



Provide advice relating to new employers in the Fund, including the level and type of bonds or other forms of
security (and the monitoring of these);



Prepare advice and calculations in connection with bulk transfers and individual benefit-related matters;



Assist the Administering Authority in considering possible changes to employer contributions between formal
valuations, where circumstances suggest this may be necessary;



Advise on the termination of employers’ participation in the Fund; and



Fully reflect actuarial professional guidance and requirements in the advice given to the Administering Authority.

Agenda Pack Page 148

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

86

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 2: Funding Strategy Statement 2017
A4

Other parties:-



Investment advisers (either internal or external) should ensure the Fund’s ISS remains appropriate, and consistent
with this FSS;



Investment managers, custodians and bankers should all play their part in the effective investment (and disinvestment) of Fund assets, in line with the ISS;



Auditors should comply with their auditing standards, ensure Fund compliance with all requirements, monitor and
advise on fraud detection, and sign off annual reports and financial statements as required;



Governance advisers may be appointed to advise the Administering Authority on efficient processes and working
methods in managing the Fund;



Legal advisers (either internal or external) should ensure the Fund’s operation and management remains fully
compliant with all regulations and broader local government requirements, including the Administering Authority’s
own procedures;



The Department for Communities and Local Government (assisted by the Government Actuary’s Department) and
the Scheme Advisory Board, should work with LGPS Funds to meet Section 13 requirements.

Agenda Pack Page 149

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

87

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 2: Funding Strategy Statement 2017

Appendix B – Regulatory framework
B1

Why does the Fund need an FSS?

The Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) has stated that the purpose of the FSS is:


“to establish a clear and transparent fund-specific strategy which will identify how employers’ pension
liabilities are best met going forward;



to support the regulatory framework to maintain as nearly constant employer contribution rates as possible;
and



to take a prudent longer-term view of funding those liabilities.”

These objectives are desirable individually, but may be mutually conflicting.
The requirement to maintain and publish a FSS is contained in LGPS Regulations which are updated from time to time.
In publishing the FSS the Administering Authority has to have regard to any guidance published by Chartered Institute of
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) (most recently in 2016) and to its Investment Strategy Statement.
This is the framework within which the Fund’s actuary carries out triennial valuations to set employers’ contributions and
provides recommendations to the Administering Authority when other funding decisions are required, such as when
employers join or leave the Fund. The FSS applies to all employers participating in the Fund.
B2

Consultation and review

The LGPS Regulations requires the Fund to consult on its FSS. It is covered in more detail by the most recent CIPFA
guidance, which states that the FSS must first be subject to “consultation with such persons as the authority considers
appropriate”, and should include “a meaningful dialogue at officer and elected member level with council tax raising
authorities and with corresponding representatives of other participating employers”.
In practice, for the Fund, the consultation process for this FSS was as follows:
a)

A draft version of the FSS was issued to all participating employers in November 2016 for comment;

b)

Comments were requested within 60 days;

c)

There was an Employers Forum on 30 January 2017 at which questions regarding the FSS could be raised and
answered;

d)

Following the end of the consultation period the FSS was updated where required, approved by the Fund’s
Pensions Committee in February 2017 then published in March 2017.

B3

How is the FSS published?

The FSS is made available through the following routes:

B4



Published on the website, at: http://www.yourpension.org.uk/Hertfordshire/Fund-information/Policystatements.aspx;



A full copy is included in the annual report and accounts of the Fund
http://www.yourpension.org.uk/Hertfordshire/Fund-information/Annual-reports.aspx;
How often is the FSS reviewed?

The FSS is reviewed in detail at least every three years as part of the triennial valuation. This version is expected to
remain unaltered until it is consulted upon as part of the formal process for the next valuation in 2019.
It is possible that (usually slight) amendments may be needed within the three year period. These would be needed to
reflect any regulatory changes, or alterations to the way the Fund operates (e.g. to accommodate a new class of
employer). Any such amendments would be consulted upon as appropriate:

Agenda Pack Page 150

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

88

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 2: Funding Strategy Statement 2017
 trivial amendments would be simply notified at the next round of employer communications,


amendments affecting only one class of employer would be consulted with those employers,



other more significant amendments would be subject to full consultation.

In any event, changes to the FSS would need agreement by the Pensions Committee and would be included in the
relevant Committee Meeting minutes.
B5

How does the FSS fit into other Fund documents?

The FSS is a summary of the Fund’s approach to funding liabilities. It is not an exhaustive statement of policy on all
issues, for example there are a number of separate statements published by the Fund including the Investment Strategy
Statement, Governance Compliance Statement and Communications Strategy Statement. In addition, the Fund
publishes an Annual Report and Accounts with up to date information on the Fund.
These documents can be found on the web at: http://www.yourpension.org.uk/Hertfordshire/Fundinformation/Introduction.aspx

Agenda Pack Page 151

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

89

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 2: Funding Strategy Statement 2017

Appendix C - Actuarial assumptions
C1

What are the actuarial assumptions?

These are expectations of future experience used to place a value on future benefit payments (“the liabilities”).
Assumptions are made about the amount of benefit payable to members (the financial assumptions) and the likelihood or
timing of payments (the demographic assumptions). For example, financial assumptions include investment returns,
salary growth and pension increases; demographic assumptions include life expectancy, probabilities of ill-health early
retirement, and proportions of member deaths giving rise to dependants’ benefits.
Changes in assumptions will affect the measured funding target. However, different assumptions will not of course affect
the actual benefits payable by the Fund in future.
The combination of all assumptions is described as the “basis”. A more optimistic basis might involve higher assumed
investment returns (discount rate), or lower assumed salary growth, pension increases or life expectancy; a more
optimistic basis will give lower funding targets and lower employer costs. A more prudent basis will give higher funding
targets and higher employer costs.
C2

What basis is used by the Fund?

The Fund’s standard funding basis is described as the “ongoing basis”, which applies to most employers in most
circumstances. This is described in more detail below. It anticipates employers remaining in the Fund in the long term.
However, in certain circumstances, typically where the employer is not expected to remain in the Fund long term, a more
prudent basis applies: see Note (a) to 3.3.
C3

What assumptions are made in the ongoing basis?

a)
Investment return / discount rate
The key financial assumption is the anticipated return on the Fund’s investments. This “discount rate” assumption makes
allowance for an anticipated out-performance of Fund returns relative to long term yields on UK Government bonds
(“gilts”). There is, however, no guarantee that Fund returns will out-perform gilts. The risk is greater when measured
over short periods such as the three years between formal actuarial valuations, when the actual returns and assumed
returns can deviate sharply.
Given the very long-term nature of the liabilities, a long term view of prospective asset returns is taken. The long term in
this context would be 20 to 30 years or more.
For the purpose of the triennial funding valuation at 31 March 2017 and setting contribution rates effective from 1 April
2018, the Fund actuary has assumed that future investment returns earned by the Fund over the long term will be 1.8%
per annum greater than gilt yields at the time of the valuation (this is the same as that used at the 2013 valuation). In the
opinion of the Fund actuary, based on the current investment strategy of the Fund, this asset out-performance
assumption is within a range that would be considered acceptable for the purposes of the funding valuation.
b)
Salary growth
Pay for public sector employees is currently subject to restriction by the UK Government until 2020. Although this “pay
freeze” does not officially apply to local government and associated employers, it has been suggested that they are likely
to show similar restraint in respect of pay awards. Based on long term historical analysis of the membership in LGPS
funds, and continued austerity measures, the salary increase assumption at the 2016 valuation has been set to 0.9%
below the retail prices index (RPI) per annum. This is a change from the previous valuation, which assumed 0.5% above
RPI.
c)
Pension increases
Since 2011 the consumer prices index (CPI), rather than RPI, has been the basis for increases to public sector pensions
in deferment and in payment. Note that the basis of such increases is set by the Government, and is not under the
control of the Fund or any employers.
As at the previous valuation, we derive our assumption for RPI from market data as the difference between the yield on
long-dated fixed interest and index-linked government bonds. This is then reduced to arrive at the CPI assumption, to
allow for the “formula effect” of the difference between RPI and CPI. At this valuation, we propose a reduction of 1.0%
per annum. This is a larger reduction than at 2013, when a reduction of 0.8% was applied to the RPI assumption. This
will serve to reduce the funding target (all other things being equal). (Note that the reduction is applied in a geometric, not
arithmetic, basis).

Agenda Pack Page 152

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

90

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 2: Funding Strategy Statement 2017
d)
Life expectancy
The demographic assumptions are intended to be best estimates of future experience in the Fund based on past
experience of LGPS funds which participate in Club Vita, the longevity analytics service used by the Fund, and endorsed
by the actuary.
The longevity assumptions that have been adopted at this valuation are a bespoke set of “VitaCurves”, produced by the
Club Vita’s detailed analysis, which are specifically tailored to fit the membership profile of the Fund and at an employer
level, the characteristics of each individual employer’s membership. These curves are based on the data provided by the
Fund for the purposes of this valuation.
It is acknowledged that future life expectancy and, in particular, the allowance for future improvements in life expectancy,
is uncertain. There is a consensus amongst actuaries, demographers and medical experts that life expectancy is likely to
improve in the future. Allowance has been made in the ongoing valuation basis for future improvements in line with the
2013 version of the Continuous Mortality Investigation model published by the Actuarial Profession and a 1.25% per
annum minimum underpin to future reductions in mortality rates. This is the same methodology as was adopted for the
2013 Valuation, but with updates to the underlying mortality tables.
e)
General
The same financial assumptions are adopted for most employers, in deriving the funding target underpinning the Primary
and Secondary rates: as described in (3.3), these calculated figures are translated in different ways into employer
contributions, depending on the employer’s circumstances.
The demographic assumptions, in particular the life expectancy assumption, in effect vary by type of member and so
reflect the different membership profiles of employers.

Agenda Pack Page 153

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

91

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 2: Funding Strategy Statement 2017

Appendix D - The calculation of Employer contributions
In Section 2 a broad description of the way in which contribution rates are calculated was provided. This Appendix
considers these calculations in much more detail. The calculations involve actuarial assumptions about future
experience, and these are described in detail in Appendix C.
D1

What is the difference between calculations across the whole Fund and calculations for an individual
employer?

Employer contributions are normally made up of two elements:
a)

the estimated cost of ongoing benefits being accrued, referred to as the “Primary contribution rate” (see C2 below);
plus

b)

an adjustment for the difference between the Primary rate above, and the actual contribution the employer needs to
pay, referred to as the “Secondary contribution rate” (see C3 below).

The contribution rate for each employer is measured as above, appropriate for each employer’s funding position and
membership. The whole Fund position, including that used in reporting to DCLG (see section 5), is calculated in effect as
the weighted sum of all the individual employer rates. DCLG currently only regulates at whole Fund level, without
monitoring individual employer positions.
D2
How is the Primary contribution rate calculated?
The Primary element of the employer contribution rate is calculated with the aim that these contributions will meet the
cost of current employees’ future benefit payments as they accrue. This is based upon the cost (in excess of members’
contributions) of the benefits which employee members earn from their service each year.
The Primary rate is calculated separately for all the employers, although employers within a pool will pay the contribution
rate applicable to the pool as a whole. The Primary rate is calculated such that it is projected to:
1.

meet the required funding target for all future years’ accrual of benefits*, excluding any accrued assets,

2.

within the determined time horizon (see note 3.3 Note (c) for further details),

3.

with a sufficiently high probability, as set by the Fund’s strategy for the category of employer (see 3.3 Note (e) for
further details).

* The projection is for the current active membership where the employer no longer admits new entrants, or additionally
allows for new entrants where this is appropriate.
The projections are carried out using an economic modeller developed by the Fund’s actuary Hymans Robertson: this
allows for a wide range of outcomes as regards key factors such as asset returns (based on the Fund’s investment
strategy), inflation, and bond yields. The measured contributions are calculated such that the proportion of outcomes
meeting the employer’s funding target (by the end of the time horizon) is equal to the required probability.
The approach includes expenses of administration to the extent that they are borne by the Fund, and includes allowances
for benefits payable on death in service and on ill health retirement.
D3

How is the Secondary contribution rate calculated?

The Fund operates the same ultimate target funding level for all employers of 100% of its accrued liabilities valued on the
ongoing basis, unless otherwise determined (see Section 3). The Secondary rate is calculated as the balance over and
above the Primary rate, such that the total is projected to:


meet the required funding target relating to past and future service benefit accrual



within the determined time horizon (see 3.3 Note (c) for further details)



with a sufficiently high probability, as set by the Fund’s strategy for the category of employer (see 3.3 Note (e) for
further details).

The funding position at 31 March 2018 is a snapshot as at that date, and will be different thereafter depending on what
has happened in the financial markets. The secondary contribution rate therefore reflects not only deficit contributions but
also a “market adjustment” factor which takes account of how the liabilities and assets may evolve over time. The

Agenda Pack Page 154

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

92

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 2: Funding Strategy Statement 2017
secondary rate therefore seeks to ensure, via the employer paying a certain level of contributions, that the past service
liabilities are fully funded (on the funding target) within, and by the end of, the time horizon for a minimum number of
outcomes (“the likelihood”). The secondary rate contributions are therefore set to achieve full funding allowing for the
projection of assets and liabilities over an appropriate time horizon, for a given proportion of possible economic outcomes
which allows for the inherent liability and asset volatility over time and seeks to avoid funding plans being driven by short
term market movements. The secondary rate may be expressed as a percentage of pay or as a monetary amount per
annum.
D4

What affects a given employer’s valuation results?

The results of these calculations for a given individual employer will be affected by:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
D5

past contributions relative to the cost of accruals of benefits;
different liability profiles of employers (e.g. mix of members by age, gender, service vs. salary);
the effect of any differences in the funding target, i.e. the valuation basis used to value the employer’s liabilities;
any different time horizons;
the difference between actual and assumed rises in pensionable pay;
the difference between actual and assumed increases to pensions in payment and deferred pensions;
the difference between actual and assumed retirements on grounds of ill-health from active status;
the difference between actual and assumed amounts of pension ceasing on death;
the additional costs of any non ill-health retirements relative to any extra payments made; and/or
differences in the required probability of achieving the funding target.
How is each employer’s asset share calculated?

The Administering Authority does not account for each employer’s assets separately. Instead, the Fund’s actuary is
required to apportion the assets of the whole Fund between the employers, at each triennial valuation.
This apportionment uses the income and expenditure figures provided for certain cash flows for each employer. This
process adjusts for transfers of liabilities between employers participating in the Fund, but does make a number of
simplifying assumptions. The split is calculated using an actuarial technique known as “analysis of surplus”.
Actual investment returns achieved on the Fund between each valuation are applied proportionately across all employers,
to the extent that employers in effect share the same investment strategy. Transfers of liabilities between employers
within the Fund occur automatically within this process, with a sum broadly equivalent to the reserve required on the
ongoing basis being exchanged between the two employers.
The Fund actuary does not allow for certain relatively minor events, including but not limited to:


the actual timing of employer contributions within any financial year;



the effect of the premature payment of any deferred pensions on grounds of incapacity.

These effects are swept up within a miscellaneous item in the analysis of surplus, which is split between employers in
proportion to their liabilities.
The methodology adopted means that there will inevitably be some difference between the asset shares calculated for
individual employers and those that would have resulted had they participated in their own ring-fenced section of the
Fund. The asset apportionment is capable of verification but not to audit standard. The Administering Authority
recognises the limitations in the process, but it considers that the Fund actuary’s approach addresses the risks of
employer cross-subsidisation to an acceptable degree.

Agenda Pack Page 155

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

93

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 2: Funding Strategy Statement 2017

Appendix E – Key risks and controls
The Fund has an active risk management programme in place. Key risks are incorporated in the Fund’s risk register
which is monitored on an ongoing basis and reported to the Pensions Committee and LGPS Board on a quarterly basis.
Risk

Summary of Control Mechanisms

The Pension Fund
Investment Strategy does
not deliver the long term
projected investments
returns and does not
comply with legislation

Ensure the investment strategy complies with the Local Government
Pension Scheme regulations, Investment Strategy Statement and
Investment Management Agreements.
Set the Investment Strategy in light of the Fund’s solvency target and
risk and return objectives and review at regular intervals to ensure the
Strategy is still appropriate
Diversify investment across asset classes and markets to reduce the
impact of financial market volatility including setting a limit for the
proportion of the Pension Fund’s assets held in illiquid asset classes
such as private equity and property and and keep the Fund’s
diversification policy under review.
Establish limits for the maximum percentage of the total value of all
investments in particular investments or classes of investment, within a
prudential framework and after taking proper advice.
Monitor and provide a quarterly report to the Pensions Committee on
Investment Managers’ performance against benchmark.
Regularly review any assets that the Fund has previously determined
should be held outside of the ACCESS pool, ensuring this continues to
demonstrate value for money
Monitor Investment Managers’ compliance with the investment
restrictions and limits laid out in the Pension Fund's Investment Strategy
Statement and Investment Managers’ Agreements and report any cases
of non- compliance

Risk

Summary of Control Mechanisms

The funding level of the
Pension Fund
deteriorates

Set investment out-performance targets at the triennial valuation with
reference to the Pension Fund's current Investment Strategy and on a
relatively prudent basis to reduce the risk of under-performance against
anticipated returns. At the same time, review and agree the other
actuarial assumptions such as salary increases, discount rates, longevity
etc.
Provide the Pensions Committee with quarterly actuarial reports that
monitor the funding position of the Pension Fund and the sensitivity of
this to changes in general market conditions.
Monitor and ensure scheme employers pay the extra capital/strain cost
of non ill-health retirements following each individual decision and in the
year the decision is made.
Monitor each scheme employer’s ill-health experience on an ongoing
basis against the "ill health budget" set for each employer at the triennial
valuation and require them to make additional contributions to the
Pension Fund where budgets are exceeded.
Monitor cash flows at a whole Pension Fund level and an individual
scheme employer level and certify secondary contributions as a
monetary amount for those with reducing payrolls as identified at the
triennial valuation.
At each triennial valuation, assign any liabilities relating to ceased
transferee admission bodies to the original ceding scheme employer.
Monitor the 'characteristics' and individual funding position of pool
members to ensure pooling is still appropriate. Require members of the
Schools or Parish and Town Councils Pools to sign a pooling agreement
which sets certain conditions and requirements for scheme employers’
participation in the pool.

Agenda Pack Page 156

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

94

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 2: Funding Strategy Statement 2017
Set maximum time horizons after taking into account the particular
characteristics of each type of scheme employer and the future working
lifetime of its employees. Use shorter deficit recovery periods for
organisations with a limited “life” in the Pension Fund or without statutory
tax raising powers.
Monitor the covenant of scheme employers and use a risk based
approach for setting contribution strategies for employers.
Risk
Scheme employers
default on meeting their
obligations to the
Pension Fund and LGPS

Summary of Control Mechanisms
Develop data quality controls with the Pension Fund’s third party
pension’s administration service to monitor membership data submitted
by scheme employers to ensure it is accurate and up to date.
Develop a risk evaluation approach to identify covenant risk,
categorising scheme employers as low, medium or high. Establish a set
of risk criteria and monitor scheme employers against this. Engage with
scheme employers at an early stage to address funding issues.
Monitor contributions to ensure that scheme employers are paying the
correct employer contribution rate to agreed deadlines.
Do not allow unsupported employers to be admitted to the Pension
Fund. Require all community admission bodies and transferee
admission bodies to obtain a bond or guarantor from a scheme
employer. Revalue bonds every three years to ensure the risk cover is
still appropriate.
Carry out regular financial checks on participating scheme employers,
especially non-tax raising bodies.
Carry out an annual employer survey to identify any changes in funding
stream for scheme employers.
Pool the contributions for scheme employers with similar characteristics
to allow sharing of risk amongst scheme employers.
Carry out cessation valuations on a more prudent gilts basis to ensure
the payment calculated when a scheme employer’s liabilities are
crystallised is sufficient to meet the future payment of benefits made by
the Pension Fund.

Risk

Summary of Control Mechanisms

The Pension Fund and its
third party providers do
not comply with
regulations, statute or
procedure

Review the Custodian’s and Investment Managers’ internal control
reports to identify any concerns over controls and processes in place
Ensure the Custodian undertakes monthly reconciliations with the
Pension Fund's Investment Managers to ensure all assets are correctly
accounted for and holdings are agreed.
Require all large employers in the Pension Fund to provide an Annual
Assurance Certification that payroll systems are compliant and have
been tested by the scheme employers' internal auditors
Take advice from Fund Actuary on position of Fund as at prior valuation,
and consideration of proposed valuation approach relative to anticipated
Section 13 analysis.
Engage data matching service to receive earlier notifications of
entitlement changes.
Take proper advice to ensure a regulatory compliant asset pool in
operation by statutory deadlines.
Work in conjunction with the Strategic Procurement Group to ensure all
procurements are carried out in accordance with HCC contract and EU
regulations.
Review the Pension Fund SORP in preparing the Statement of Accounts
to ensure compliance and engage external audit to review the Pension
Fund accounts each year.
Manage performance of the Pension Fund’s third party pension’s
administration service through a service level agreement and monitor
against Key Performance Indicators.

Agenda Pack Page 157

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

95

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 2: Funding Strategy Statement 2017
Work closely with the Pension Fund’s third party pension’s
administration service to ensure it complies with current regulations and
is alert to and can implement any changes to scheme benefits.
Ensure the Pension Fund’s third party pension’s administration service
has a robust programme in place to test controls on the membership
benefit system and that they are fully compliant and up to date.
Engage internal and external audit reports to regularly test that
appropriate controls are in place over the payment of benefits and
expenses and collection of contributions and that they are working
effectively. Implement any recommendations resulting from both these
audits.

Agenda Pack Page 158

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

96

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 2: Funding Strategy Statement 2017

Appendix F – Glossary
Actuarial
assumptions/basis

Administering
Authority
Admission Bodies
Covenant

Designating
Employer
Discount rate

Employer
Funding target

Gilt

Guarantee /
guarantor
Letting employer

LGPS

Maturity

Members

The combined set of assumptions made by the actuary, regarding the future, to
calculate the value of the funding target. The main assumptions will relate to the
discount rate, salary growth, pension increases and longevity. More prudent
assumptions will give a higher target value, whereas more optimistic assumptions
will give a lower value.
The council with statutory responsibility for running the Fund, in effect the Fund’s
“trustees”.
Employers where there is an Admission Agreement setting out the employer’s
obligations. These can be Community Admission Bodies or Transferee Admission
Bodies. For more details (see 2.3).
The assessed financial strength of the employer. A strong covenant indicates a
greater ability (and willingness) to pay for pension obligations in the long run. A
weaker covenant means that it appears that the employer may have difficulties
meeting its pension obligations in full over the longer term.
Employers such as town and parish councils that are able to participate in the LGPS
via resolution. These employers can designate which of their employees are
eligible to join the Fund.
The annual rate at which future assumed cashflows (in and out of the Fund) are
discounted to the present day. This is necessary to provide a funding target which
is consistent with the present day value of the assets. A lower discount rate gives a
higher target value, and vice versa. It is used in the calculation of the Primary and
Secondary rates.
An individual participating body in the Fund, which employs (or used to employ)
members of the Fund. Normally the assets and funding target values for each
employer are individually tracked, together with its Primary rate at each valuation.
The actuarially calculated present value of all pension entitlements of all members
of the Fund, built up to date. This is compared with the present market value of
Fund assets to derive the deficit. It is calculated on a chosen set of actuarial
assumptions.
A UK Government bond, ie a promise by the Government to pay interest and capital
as per the terms of that particular gilt, in return for an initial payment of capital by
the purchaser. Gilts can be “fixed interest”, where the interest payments are level
throughout the gilt’s term, or “index-linked” where the interest payments vary each
year in line with a specified index (usually RPI). Gilts can be bought as assets by
the Fund, but their main use in funding is as an objective measure of solvency.
A formal promise by a third party (the guarantor) that it will meet any pension
obligations not met by a specified employer. The presence of a guarantor will mean,
for instance, that the Fund can consider the employer’s covenant to be as strong as
its guarantor’s.
An employer which outsources or transfers a part of its services and workforce to
another employer (usually a contractor). The contractor will pay towards the LGPS
benefits accrued by the transferring members, but ultimately the obligation to pay
for these benefits will revert to the letting employer. A letting employer will usually
be a local authority, but can sometimes be another type of employer such as an
Academy.
The Local Government Pension Scheme, a public sector pension arrangement put
in place via Government Regulations, for workers in local government. These
Regulations also dictate eligibility (particularly for Scheduled Bodies), members’
contribution rates, benefit calculations and certain governance requirements. The
LGPS is divided into 101 Funds which map the UK. Each LGPS Fund is
autonomous to the extent not dictated by Regulations, e.g. regarding investment
strategy, employer contributions and choice of advisers.
A general term to describe a Fund (or an employer’s position within a Fund) where
the members are closer to retirement (or more of them already retired) and the
investment time horizon is shorter. This has implications for investment strategy
and, consequently, funding strategy.
The individuals who have built up (and may still be building up) entitlement in the
Fund. They are divided into actives (current employee members), deferreds (exemployees who have not yet retired) and pensioners (ex-employees who have now
retired, and dependants of deceased ex-employees).

Agenda Pack Page 159

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

97

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 2: Funding Strategy Statement 2017
Primary
The employer contribution rate required to pay for ongoing accrual of active
contribution rate
members’ benefits (including an allowance for administrative expenses). See
Appendix D for further details.
Profile
The profile of an employer’s membership or liability reflects various measurements
of that employer’s members, ie current and former employees. This includes: the
proportions which are active, deferred or pensioner; the average ages of each
category; the varying salary or pension levels; the lengths of service of active
members vs their salary levels, etc. A membership (or liability) profile might be
measured for its maturity also.
Rates and
A formal document required by the LGPS Regulations, which must be updated at
Adjustments
least every three years at the conclusion of the formal valuation. This is completed
Certificate
by the actuary and confirms the contributions to be paid by each employer (or pool
of employers) in the Fund for the three year period until the next valuation is
completed.
Scheduled Bodies
Types of employer explicitly defined in the LGPS Regulations, whose employers
must be offered membership of their local LGPS Fund. These include Councils,
colleges, universities, academies, police and fire authorities etc, other than
employees who have entitlement to a different public sector pension scheme (e.g.
teachers, police and fire officers, university lecturers).
Secondary
The difference between the employer’s actual and Primary contribution rates. In
contribution rate
broad terms, this relates to the shortfall of its asset share to its funding target.
Stabilisation
Any method used to smooth out changes in employer contributions from one year to
the next. This is very broadly required by the LGPS Regulations, but in practice is
particularly employed for large stable employers in the Fund. Different methods
may involve: probability-based modelling of future market movements; longer deficit
recovery periods; higher discount rates; or some combination of these.
Valuation
An actuarial investigation to calculate the liabilities, future service contribution rate
and common contribution rate for a Fund, and usually individual employers too.
This is normally carried out in full every three years (last done as at 31 March
2016), but can be approximately updated at other times. The assets value is based
on market values at the valuation date, and the liabilities value and contribution
rates are based on long term bond market yields at that date also.

Agenda Pack Page 160

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

98

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 3: ACCESS Annual Report

ACCESS Annual Report
As Chairman of the ACCESS Joint Committee I am pleased to be introducing the first
Annual Report for the ACCESS Pool. The Pool has made excellent progress during the
year with just under £20 billion of assets pooled. £8.176 billion is invested directly in the
Pool through Link Fund Solutions and the passive investments of £11.431 billion are
invested on a pool governance basis.
I am grateful for the dedication and support from the fellow Chairmen on the Joint
Committee, the officers from the Pension Funds and the staff of the Support Unit whose
hard work and collaborative spirit has made such progress possible.
The pace of development for the Pool will continue during 2019/20, with further sub-fund
launches planned throughout the year.
Background
ACCESS (A Collaboration of Central, Eastern and Southern Shires) is made up of 11 Local Government Pension
Schemes (LGPS) Administering Authorities: Cambridgeshire County Council; East Sussex County Council; Essex County
Council; Hampshire County Council; Hertfordshire County Council; Isle of Wight Council; Kent County Council; Norfolk
County Council; Northamptonshire County Council; Suffolk County Council and West Sussex County Council in response
to the Governments pooling agenda across the LGPS.
The ACCESS Administering Authorities are committed to working together to optimise benefits and efficiencies on behalf
of their individual and collective stakeholders, operating within a clear set of objectives and principles that drives the
decision making process.
Collectively as at 31 March 2019, the pool has assets of £46 billion serving 3,000 employers with over 1 million members
including 290,000 pensioners.
Governance
The ACCESS Pool is not a legal entity in itself but is governed by an Inter Authority Agreement signed by each
Administering Authority. The Inter Authority Agreement sets out the terms of reference and constitution of ACCESS.
The formal decision-making body within the ACCESS Pool is the Joint Committee. The Joint Committee has been
appointed by the 11 Administering Authorities under s102 of the Local Government Act 1972, with delegated authority
from the Full Council of each Administering Authority to exercise specific functions in relation to the Pooling of Pension
Fund assets.
The Joint Committee is responsible for ongoing contract management and budget management for the Pool and is
supported by the Officer Working Group and the ACCESS Support Unit (ASU).
The Officer Working Group are officers identified by the Administering Authorities whose role is to provide a central
resource for advice, assistance, guidance and support for the Joint Committee.
The ACCESS Support Unit (ASU) provides the day-to-day support for running the ACCESS Pool and has responsibility
for programme management, contract management, administration and technical support services. The permanent staff
roles within the ASU are employed by the Host Authority (Essex) with additional technical support from Officers within the
ACCESS Pension Funds.
The Section 151 Officer of each Pension Fund provide advice to the Joint Committee and in response to decisions made
by the Joint Committee ensure appropriate resourcing and support is available to implement the decisions and to run the
ACCESS Pool.
Strategic oversight and scrutiny responsibilities remain with the Administering Authorities as does all decision making on
their individual Funds asset allocation and the timing of transfers of assets from each Fund into the arrangements
developed by the ACCESS Pool.

Agenda Pack Page 161

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

78

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 3: ACCESS Annual Report
The Operator
Link Fund Solutions Ltd are appointed to provide a pooled operator service. Link are responsible for establishing and
operating an authorised contractual scheme along with the creation of a range of investment sub-funds to meet the needs
of the investing authorities enabling them to execute their asset allocation strategies and the appointment of the
investment managers to those sub-funds.
Progress
ACCESS submitted its pooling proposal to Government in July 2016 with detailed plans for establishing and moving
assets into the pool and has regularly submitted progress reports to Government. These are all published on the Pool’s
website (www.accesspool.org).
Included in the proposal is an indicative timeline of when assets will be pooled and ACCESS has made excellent
progress against the principal milestone of having £27.2 billion assets pooled and estimated savings of £13.6 million by
March 2021.
Pooled Assets
As at 31 March 2019 ACCESS has pooled the following assets:
Pooled Investments
Passive investments
UK Equity Funds
Global Equity Funds
Total Pooled Investments

£ billion
11.431
2.323
5.853
19.607

The passive investment funds are held on a pool governance basis under one investment manager as these assets are
held in life fund policies, which cannot be held within an authorised contractual scheme.
Key milestones achieved in 2018/19






Establishment of the ACCESS Support Unit and recruitment of a contract manager and support officer to provide day
to day support for the Pool. The unit was further strengthened by the appointment of technical leads from existing
officers to lead and progress specific areas of work.
Development of a Governance Manual to reflect decision making principles, communications strategy, policies and
procedures.
Approval and launch of the first two tranches of sub-funds.
Establishment and implementation of the Stock Lending programme.
Providing updates of progress to Government and responding to consultations.

Objectives for 2019/20
Following the launch of a number of sub-funds, progress will continue a pace with significant rationalisation of the existing
range of mandates. The Operator will be developing and launching a further series of sub-funds which will collectively
reflect the strategic asset allocation needs of the Funds and facilitate a significant move of the assets to be pooled.
Whilst establishing and developing the ACCESS Pool, the initial focus has been on pooling the most liquid assets, mainly
equities and fixed income bonds. The next step is to formulate an approach to pooling and managing illiquid assets such
as private equity and infrastructure. This will involve reviewing various structures and platforms and assessing these to
identify the best fit to meet with the Funds current and future requirements.

Agenda Pack Page 162

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

79

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 3: ACCESS Annual Report
Financial Management
Pool Set-Up Costs
The set-up costs incurred by the pool includes professional and legal advice received in relation to establishing the pool
and procuring the operator, and advice and support in the development of good governance. A breakdown of the total
costs from inception are as below. The costs are split equally amongst the 11 Funds.
2015 – 2016
£’000
Strategic & Technical Advice
Legal
Project Management
ACCESS Support Unit
Other
Total Set Up Costs

2016 – 2017
£’000

38
1
20

295
95
379

1
60

108
877

2017 – 2018
£’000
281
313
189
3
101
887

Fee Savings
The ACCESS pool has sought out fee savings based on economies of scale with investment mandates in common and
by consolidating its passive investments with one investment manager. The management fee savings received by the
pool are as below:

Set Up Costs
Fee Savings
Transaction Costs
Net Savings Realised

2015 – 2016
£’000
60
-

2016 – 2017
£’000
877
-

2017 – 2018
£’000
887
(635)

60

877

252

2018 – 2019
£’000
(4,996)
434
(4,562)

Expected v Actual Costs and Savings
Table comparing actual costs and savings compared to Business case submission to MHCLG:
2017 – 2018
Actual
Budget
In Year
In Year
£’000
Set Up Costs
Fee Savings
Transaction Costs
Net Savings Realised

£’000

887
(635)
252

800
(950)
(150)

2018 – 2019
Actual
Budget
In Year
In Year
£’000
Set Up Costs
Fee Savings
Transaction Costs
Net Savings Realised

£’000

(4,996)
674
(4,322)

(3,800)
2,499
(1,301)

2017 – 2018
Actual
Budget
Cumulative to Cumulative to
date
date
£’000
£’000
1,824
1,400
(635)
(950)
1,189
450

2018 – 2019
Actual
Budget
Cumulative to Cumulative to
date
date
£’000
£’000
1,824
1,400
(5,631)
(4,750)
674
2,499
(3,133)
(851)

Agenda Pack Page 163

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

80

Appendices to the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Appendix 3: ACCESS Annual Report
The original budget for setting up the ACCESS Pool was £1 million which was 0.3 bps based on the value of the Funds of
£33.5 billion as at 31 March 2015. The Fund value has risen in the intervening years and 0.3 bps on the current value is
£1.4 million. The additional expense has been incurred in securing technical and legal advice in setting up the Pool and
procuring the Operator.
Environmental, Social and Governance
The Pension Funds in ACCESS believe in making long term sustainable investments whilst integrating environment and
social risk considerations, promoting good governance and stewardship.
Whilst the participating authorities have an overriding fiduciary and public law duty to act in the best long term interests of
their LGPS stakeholders to achieve the best possible financial returns, with an appropriate level of risk they also
recognise the importance of committing to responsible investment alongside financial factors in the investment decision
making process.
ACCESS acknowledges its responsibilities as an investor and has considered how environmental, social and governance
issues can be taken into account when managing investment portfolios. It believes that the pursuit of standards of best
practice aligns the interest of Fund members with those of fellow shareholders and with society as a whole and, therefore,
will not actively disinvest from companies solely or principally because of social, ethical or environmental reasons.
The ACCESS pool has a single voting policy for pooled assets and seeks to protect and enhance the value of its
shareholdings by promoting good practice in the corporate governance and management of those companies. The voting
policy sets out the principles of good corporate governance and the means by which ACCESS will seek to exercise its
influence on companies.

Andrew Reid
Cllr Andrew Reid - Chairman, ACCESS Joint Committee

Agenda Pack Page 164

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

81

Glossary to the Annual Report and Accounts
Actuary

Administering Authority
Admission agreement
Augmentation
Benchmark
Bonds
Career Average Revalued
Earnings (CARE) scheme

Chief Finance Officer
Communication Policy
Statement
Custody/Custodian

Deferred members
Defined benefit final salary
scheme
Equities
Ex-officio
Final pensionable pay

Fixed interest securities
Forward foreign exchange
contract
Funded scheme
Funding Strategy
Statement
Futures
Governance Policy and
Compliance Statement
Hertfordshire Local
Government Association

An independent qualified consultant who advises on the financial position of the Pension
Fund. Every three years the Actuary reviews the assets and liabilities of the Pension
Fund and produces the actuarial valuation which recommends the employer contribution
rates.
A local authority required to maintain a pension fund under the Local Government
Pension Scheme regulations. Within the geographical boundary of Hertfordshire, the
Administering Authority is Hertfordshire County Council.
A contract between an administering authority, admitted body and if applicable, the
outsourcing Scheme employer.
Additional membership awarded to a member by their employer, to a maximum of ten
years.
A notional fund which is developed to provide a standard against which an Investment
Manager’s performance is measured.
A certificate of debt issued by a company, government or other institution. A bondholder
is a creditor of the issuer and usually receives interest at a fixed rate. Also referred to as
fixed interest securities.
A scheme that are a type of defined benefit pension scheme where the benefits at
retirement are based on average pensionable earnings and the length of membership of
the scheme.
From 1 April 2014, the Scheme moved from a final salary scheme to a career average
revalued earnings (CARE) scheme details of which are accessible from the Pension
Fund website at https://www.yourpension.org.uk/Hertfordshire/Pensions-Home.aspx.
An officer of that has delegated responsibility to manage the financial arrangements for
an organisation. Hertfordshire County Council delegates these responsibilities to the
post of the Director of Resources.
A statement of policy on communications with members and employers including the
provision of information about the Scheme, the format, frequency and method of
distributing such information and the promotion of the Scheme to prospective members.
The safe-keeping of securities by a financial institution. The Custodian is responsible for
maintaining investment records, the settlement of transactions, income collection, tax
reclamation and other administrative actions in relation to the Pension Fund’s
investments.
Members who leave their employment or opt out of the Scheme and have their benefits
deferred until retirement or until they request a transfer to another pension scheme.
A pension scheme where the scheme rules define the benefits independently of the
contributions paid by the members and employer. Members’ benefits are a specified
fraction of a scheme member’s final pay.
Shares in UK and overseas companies.
A member of a body (a board, committee, council, etc.) who is part of it by virtue of
holding another office.
The figure used to calculate a member’s pension benefits and is normally a members
pay in the last year before they retire. A member’s benefits could also be calculated on
one of the previous two years pay if that amount is higher, or the average of any three
consecutive years in the last ten years if the member has had a downgrade in the last ten
years or pay has been restricted in that period.
Investments which guarantee a fixed rate of interest. The securities represent loans
which are repayable at a future date but which can be traded on a recognised stock
exchange until this time. Also known as bonds.
An agreement between two parties to exchange one currency for another at a forward or
future date.
A pension scheme that has available assets to cover all liabilities, including the obligation
of future payments to retirees.
A statement of the Pension Fund’s strategy for meeting employers’ pension liabilities.
Contracts to buy or sell specific quantities of a commodity or financial instrument at a
specified price with delivery set at a specified time in the future.
A statement of the governance arrangements of the Pension Fund including the
delegation of responsibility, terms of reference, representation and compliance with
statutory guidelines.
A voluntary organisation, acting on behalf of the local government sector in Hertfordshire.

Agenda Pack Page 165

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

82

Glossary to the Annual Report and Accounts
Index linked
Bonds on which the interest and ultimate capital repayment are recalculated on the basis
of changes in inflation.
Investment Consultant
A professionally qualified individual or company who provides objective, impartial
investment advice to the Pension Fund.
Investment Manager
An organisation that specialises in the investment of a portfolio of securities on behalf of
an organisation subject to the guidelines and directions of the investor.
Lien
A form of security interest granted over an asset to secure the payment of a debt or
performance of some other obligation.
Mandate
A set of instructions given to an investment manager as to how a fund is to be managed.
Targets for performance against a benchmark or limits on investing in certain stocks or
sectors may be set. This is formalised within an investment manager agreement
between a pension fund and investment manager.
Pooled investment vehicles An investment which allows investors’ money to be pooled and used by investment
managers to buy a variety of securities, thereby giving investors a stake in a diversified
portfolio of securities.
Private equity
An asset class consisting of equity securities in operating companies that are not publicly
traded on a stock exchange.
Quoted securities
Shares with prices quoted on a recognised stock exchange.
Rates and Adjustments
A certificate issued by the Pension Fund Actuary setting out the contribution rates
Certificate
payable by participating employers
Scheme
The Local Government Pension Scheme, a public sector pension arrangement put in
place via Government Regulations, for workers in local government. The LGPS
Regulations also dictate eligibility (particularly for scheduled bodies), members’
contribution rates, benefit calculations and certain governance requirements. The
Scheme is divided into 101 Pension Funds throughout the UK. Each pension fund is
autonomous to the extent not dictated by the LGPS Regulations, e.g. regarding
investment strategy, employer contributions and choice of advisers.
Scheme Administrator
An organisation responsible for the administration of the benefits of the Pension Fund,
including the payment of benefits and maintenance of membership records. This is
contracted to The London Pensions Fund Authority.
Spot market exchange rate A spot exchange rate refers to the current exchange rate.
Investment Strategy
A formal policy on how a pension fund will invest its assets including the types in
Statement
investments to be held, the balance between different types of investments and risk.
Transfer values
A capital value transferred to or from a pension scheme in respect of a contributor’s
previous periods of pensionable employment.
Transferee admission
An external body contracted to provide services or assets in connection with the exercise
bodies
of a function of the local authority.
Unit Trust
A pooled fund in which investors can buy or sell units on an ongoing basis.
Unquoted securities
Shares which are dealt in the investment market but which are not listed on a recognised
stock exchange.
VitaCurves
Bespoke analysis of the longevity of the Pension Fund’s members.
Whole time equivalent
The pay a part-time member would receive if they worked full time.
salary

Agenda Pack Page 166

Hertfordshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

83

ITEM 4 APPENDIX B

GOVERNANCE AND
COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

July 2019
Hertfordshire Pension Fund
Local Government Pension Scheme
Agenda Pack Page 167

LGPS GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT
This statement is prepared in accordance with regulation 55 of the Local Government Pension
Scheme Regulations 2013, which require administering authorities to maintain and publish a
governance compliance statement. It has been prepared by the Administering Authority in
consultation with appropriate interested persons.
This Statement is due to be approved by the Pensions Committee on 12 July 2019.
Delegation of Functions
The Administering Authority for the Local Government Pension Scheme in Hertfordshire is
Hertfordshire County Council (the “County Council”). Management of the Local Government Pension
Scheme is a non-executive function.
The Local Authority (Functions & Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 (as amended), state
that the functions relating to the Local Government Pension Scheme are the responsibility of the full
Council. The County Council has delegated these functions to the Pensions Committee, whose
members can make decisions without reference to the full Council.
The Pensions Committee are responsible for the functions set out in the following regulations:




Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013
Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings & Amendment) Regulations
2014
Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016.

In parallel to this, the County Council has delegated functions relating to the Pension Fund to the
County Council’s Chief Finance Officer, the Director for Resources, as specified in Annex 3 of the
County Council’s Constitution.
The Pension Committee is supported by a cross-party working group consisting of four members (in
proportion to the political representation of the full Council) from the Pension Committee, supported
by officers and external advisors – such as the investment consultant. The remit of this group going
forwards will be to support Officers with decisions required when transitioning to the new Investment
Strategy, as well as support with other pension related matters where appropriate.
The County Council has established a Pension Board in accordance with Section 5 of the Public
Service Pensions Act 2013. In accordance with Sections 5(1) and (2) of the Act and section 106 of the
Local Government Pension Scheme regulations 2013, the role of the Board is to:
 Secure compliance with:
The Local Government Pensions Scheme regulations;
Other legislation relating to the governance and administration of the Local Government
Pension Scheme; and
The requirements imposed by the Pension Regulator in relation to the Local Government
Pension Scheme;
and to
 Ensure the effective and efficient governance and administration of the Local Government Pension
Scheme.
Terms of Reference
The functions relating to the management and governance of the Pension Fund have been delegated
as follows.
The Pensions Committee is responsible for policy matters including:
 Setting and monitoring performance objectives for the Pension Fund
 Approval and review of the overall investment strategy of the Pension Fund
 Approval and review of asset allocation decisions

Agenda Pack Page 168








Performance monitoring Investment Managers and investments
Appointing (and, when necessary, dismissing) Investment Managers*
Appointing (and, when necessary, dismissing) Investment Consultants
Appointing (and, when necessary, dismissing) the Pension Fund Actuary
Appointing (and, when necessary, dismissing) the Pension Fund Custodian
Setting and approving Administering Authority discretions for the Local Government Pension
Scheme
 Approval of key policies and statements:
- Investment Strategy Statement
- Funding Strategy Statement
- Governance Compliance Statement
- Communications Strategy Statement
 Agreeing and monitoring actions to address findings from any review of Pension Fund activities
* Following the requirement of LGPS to pool investments announced in the 2015 Summer Budget, the
UK Equity and Global Equity mandates with Baillie Gifford have transferred to the operator of the
ACCESS pool (A Collaboration of Central, Eastern and Southern Shires) - of which Hertfordshire is a
member. The responsibility for appointing (and, when necessary, dismissing) Investment Managers
within ACCESS sits with the Operator. For all other assets held outside of the pool, this responsibility
remains with the Pension Committee
The primary governance function of the ACCESS pool is the Joint Governance Committee (JGC),
which is made up of the chairs of each of the eleven funds within the ACCESS pool.
The ACCESS Joint Governance Committee is responsible for:










Specifying the Operator services to be procured;
Procuring the Operator;
Appointing the Operator;
Reviewing the performance of the Operator;
Managing the Operator;
Appointment of advisers;
Functions in relation to management of pool assets;
Functions concerning pool aligned assets; and
Functions concerning business planning and budget.

The Pension Board is responsible for:
 Scrutinising the progress of actions to meet the performance objectives of the Pension Fund
 Reviewing and monitoring the training plan of the Pensions Board and elected members and
officers with delegated responsibilities for the management and administration of the Pension Fund
 Reviewing and monitoring the performance of external business partners, including the pensions
administration service, the actuary, the custodian and the investment consultant
 Reviewing and monitoring the Risk Register and risk monitoring of scheme employers
 Reviewing the implementation of revised policies and procedures, including the Administering
Authority discretions
 Reviewing the compliance of projects commissioned by the Pensions Committee, including the
Triennial Valuation of the Pension Fund
 Ensuring pension rules and regulations are being complied with, when officers are making
decisions on pension matters
 Scrutinising data quality
 Reviewing internal audit reports
 Assisting in the development of improved customer services
 Reviewing compliance of Investment Managers with Investment Management Agreements
 Reviewing progress of agreed actions to address findings from any review of the Pension Fund
activities.

Agenda Pack Page 169

All other operational decisions in the administration and management of the Pension Fund including
exercising the Administering Authority’s Discretions are delegated to the County Council’s Chief
Finance Officer, the Director of Resources.
Membership, Voting and Meetings
The membership, voting rights and frequency of meetings of the Pensions Committee and Pensions
Board are set out in the table below:

Membership

Chairman

Pensions Committee

Pensions Board

Ten County Council members (in
proportion to the political
representation of the full Council) and
three (non-voting) District Council
representatives elected by the
Hertfordshire Leaders’ Group as
outlined in Annex 3 (section 2.4) of
the Hertfordshire County Council
Constitution.
Elected by full Council

Four employer representatives and
four member representatives

Elected by the Pension Board and
rotated annually between member
and employer representatives

Observers

Staff representative, nominated by
UNISON
Voting
County Council Members, as elected All employer and member
Members of the Administering
representatives have voting rights
Authority, have voting rights in
accordance with the Local
Government (Committee and Political
Groups) Regulations 1990 SI No
1553 5 (1)(d).
Meetings per annum Six
Four
Further information on the constitution of the Pension Board, including the appointment of employer
and member representatives, standards and conflicts of interest can be found in Annex 23 of the
County Council’s Constitution.
Training
The Pensions Committee agreed a training policy for the Pensions Committee and Board at their
meeting on 13 November 2015. This sets out the training principles and objectives of the Pension
Fund, the application of the policy and details of how training will be delivered. This policy will be
reviewed as part of the forward business plan for both the Pension Committee and Pension Board.
The Pension Board agreed a training programme for its members on 5th September 2018 within its
Annual Report, which set out a schedule of modules based on CiPFA guidelines in order to meet the
requirements for knowledge and understanding required by the Pensions Regulator.
Compliance with Statutory Guidance
The following table provides a summary of how the Pension Fund complies with the statutory
guidance issued by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government.

Agenda Pack Page 170

Pension Fund Compliance Statement
Principle

Compliance and Comments

A.

Structure

a)

The management of the administration of benefits and
strategic management of fund assets clearly rests with the
main committee established by the appointment Council.

b)

That representatives of participating LGPS employers,
admitted bodies and scheme members (including pensioner
and deferred members) are members of either the main or
secondary committee established to underpin the work of
the main committee.

Full

That where a secondary committee or panel has been
established, the structure ensures effective communication
across both levels.

Not applicable

c)

d)

That where a secondary committee or panel has been
established, at least one seat on the main committee is
allocated for a member from the secondary committee or
panel.

B.

Representation

a)

That all key stakeholders are afforded the opportunity to be
represented within the main or secondary committee
structure. These include:
i)

employing authorities (including non-scheme
employers, e.g. admitted bodies):

Full

Not applicable

Full
The County and District Councils, whose
employees make up 63% of the active
membership, are represented on the
Pensions Committee.
The Pensions Board is made up of four
employer representatives and four scheme
member representatives

ii)

scheme members (including deferred and pensioner
scheme members);

iii)

independent professional observers, and

iv)

expert advisors (on an ad-hoc basis)

Full
UNISON has an observer place on the
Pensions Committee to represent all
Scheme members.
No – the Committee takes regular input
from external professional advisors (see
below). It is considered that an additional
independent professional advisor would
come at a cost, but not add significant
value.
Full
The Pension Fund’s Investment Adviser,
Actuary and Administrator attend the
Pensions Committee when appropriate.

Agenda Pack Page 171

Pension Fund Compliance Statement
Principle
b)

That where lay members sit on a main or secondary
committee, they are treated equally in terms of access to
papers and meetings, training and are given full opportunity
to contribute to the decision making process, with or without
voting rights

Compliance and Comments

Full

C.

Selection and Role of Lay Members

a)

That committee or panel members are made fully aware of
the status, role and function they are required to perform on
either a main or secondary committee.

b)

That at the start of any meeting, committee members are
invited to declare any financial or pecuniary interest related
to specific matters on the agenda.

Full

D.

Voting

Full

a)

The policy of individual administering authorities on voting
rights is clear and transparent, including the justification for
not extending voting rights to each body or group
represented on main LGPS committees.

E.

Training/Facility Time/Expenses

a)

That in relation to the way in which statutory and related
decisions are taken by the administering authority, there is a
clear policy on training, facility time and reimbursement of
expenses in respect of members involved in the decisionmaking process.

b)

That where such a policy exists, it applies equally to all
members of committees, sub-committees, advisory panels or
any other form of secondary forum.

c)

That the administering authority considers the adoption of
annual training plans for committee members and maintains
a log of all such training undertaken.

F.

Meetings (frequency/quorum)

a)

That an administering authority’s main committee or
committees meet at least quarterly.

b)

That an administering authority’s secondary committee or
panel meet at least twice a year and is synchronised with the
dates when the main committee sits.

c)

That administering authorities who do not include lay
members in their formal governance arrangements, provide
a forum outside of those arrangements by which the interests
of key stakeholders can be represented.

Agenda Pack Page 172

Full

The policy is clear that only County
Council members can vote. The Pensions
Committee believes that the voting
arrangements are justified, because in
practice the vast majority of decisions are
reached by consensus.
Full
Training is provided internally and
externally and offered to all Pensions
Committee and Board members.
Reimbursement of expenses is covered by
the members’ allowance schemes in their
authority.
Full

Full

Full

Not applicable
Full
An annual employers’ forum is held to
update employers on Pension Fund
matters.

Pension Fund Compliance Statement
Principle

Compliance and Comments

G.

Access

a)

That subject to any rules in the council’s constitution, all
members of main and secondary committees or panels have
equal access to committee papers, documents and advice
that falls to be considered at meetings of the main
committee.

H.

Scope

a)

That administering authorities have taken steps to bring
wider scheme issues within the scope of their governance
arrangements.

I.

Publicity

a)

That administering authorities have published details of their
governance arrangements in such a way that stakeholders
with an interest in the way in which the scheme is governed,
can express an interest in wanting to be part of those
arrangements.

Agenda Pack Page 173

Full

Full

Full

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item No:
HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
PENSIONS COMMITTEE
FRIDAY 12 JULY 2019 AT 10:00AM

5

REPORT ON VOLUNTARY SCHEME PAYS POLICY FOR FIREFIGHTERS
PENSION SCHEME
Report of the Director of Resources
Author: Rachel Wilson, Senior HR Officer, Strategy & Reward (Tel: 01992 588142)
1.

Purpose of report

1.1

To update the committee of the option to allow the use of Voluntary
Scheme Pays (VSP) for the Firefighters Pension Schemes (FPS).

1.2

For the committee to consider allowing a policy on VSP in the firefighters’
pension schemes.

2.

Recommendations

2.1

That the committee agrees the VSP policy attached to the report as
Appendix A to apply from 1 August 2019.

3.

Background

3.1

A report which provided information on ‘voluntary scheme pays’ (VSP) in
the firefighters’ pension schemes was presented to the Hertfordshire Fire
Pension Board on 19 July 2018.

3.2

The report outlined that in some circumstances a member of the
Firefighters’ pension schemes could not use Mandatory Scheme Pays
(MSP) to pay a tax charge, and that it was possible for a Fire Authority
(including County Councils) to operate VSP to pay the tax bill where a
member could not use MSP. VSP is not a fire scheme discretion; the Fire
Authority has the power under the scheme rules to adjust the member’s
benefit to recover the charge.

3.3

The Hertfordshire Fire Pension Board requested further information before
a proposal could be presented to Pensions Committee for agreement.

3.4

A further report was presented to the Hertfordshire Fire Pension Board on
28 March 2019.

3.5

The report provided a detailed explanation of VSP and noted the three
likely categories that could trigger it. Only members in the 1992 scheme
could ask for the tax to be paid from the pension scheme and have the
money recovered from their pensions in the future (MSP), or could settle
directly over the remainder of their service.

Agenda Pack Page 175

1

3.6

In view of the fact that HMRC would not allow MSP to apply to more than
one scheme, LPP asked whether Hertfordshire Fire Authority would
consider payment to HMRC by VSP at the first available date to avoid
interest accrual. Prompt confirmation of this option would enable
firefighters to be advised that they could manage their tax bill by VSP
when Annual Allowance letters are sent in Autumn 2019.

3.7

The Hertfordshire Fire Pension Board requested that Officers develop a
policy on VSP in the firefighters’ pension schemes for consideration by
Pensions Committee on 12 July 2019 and then the Firefighters Pension
Board will be notified of the outcome and the policy shared on 25 July
2019.

4.

Firefighter Pension Schemes Voluntary Scheme Pays Policy

4.1

The policy on VSP in the firefighters’ pension scheme is attached to the
report.

4.2

The policy sets out that Hertfordshire Fire and Rescue Service (HFRS) will
only accept requests for VSP if the member of the firefighters pension
scheme does not meet the MSP criteria, but the member still wishes to
pay their tax charge by Scheme Pays.

4.3

The policy sets out that The Local Pension Partnership (LPP) will contact
any member who has a pension growth in excess of £40,000 in all fire
schemes. This will ensure that all members affected by either MSP or VSP
are given all options to make arrangements to make the necessary
payments to HMRC. If once notified the scheme member choses to use
MSP or VSP the LPP will liaise with Hertfordshire to make payment to
HMRC and the necessary deduction to the member’s pension benefits.

5.

Financial Implications

5.1

VSP does not impact the Council’s finances however if one of the affected
firefighter’s dies before paying off their VSP the Fire Pension Fund itself
would bear the impact.

6.

Equalities Implications

6.1

There are no equality implications of the issue to the pension schemes.

Background reports:
Hertfordshire Fire Pension Board – 19 July 2018
https://democracy.hertfordshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=154&MId=270
&Ver=4
Hertfordshire Fire Pension Board – 28 March 2019

Agenda Pack Page 176

2

https://democracy.hertfordshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=154&MId=273
&Ver=4

Agenda Pack Page 177

3

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 5 Appendix A
Firefighter Pension Schemes Voluntary Scheme Pays
Policy
1. Introduction
If you exceed the Annual Allowance and a tax charge is due you can ask the pension
scheme to pay the charge on your behalf in exchange for a reduction in your pension
benefits. This is called ‘Scheme Pays’.
There are two types of Scheme Pays: Mandatory and Voluntary. This policy covers
Voluntary Scheme Pays.

2. Scope
This policy applies to all uniformed staff in any of the Firefighter Pension Schemes.
• Firefighters’ Pension Scheme 1992 (FPS 1992)
• Firefighters’ Pension Scheme 2006 (FPS 2006)
• Modified Firefighters’ Pension Scheme 2006 (MOD 2006)
• Firefighters’ Pension Scheme 2015 (FPS 2015).
This policy applies from 1st August 2019.

3. Mandatory Scheme Pays
Mandatory Scheme Pays will be used if all three of these apply to you:




your Pension input amount within any single Firefighter Pension Scheme is in
excess of £40,000; and
the tax charge resulting from the excess within that scheme is over £2,000;
and
your Scheme Pays deduction is applied to the benefits within that scheme
only.

Members with a tapered (reduced) Annual Allowance must have a Pension Input
Amount in excess of £40,000 in one particular scheme (for example, FPS 1992, FPS
2006 or FPS 2015) to use Mandatory Scheme Pays.
For members with current benefits in both FPS 1992 or FPS 2006 and FPS 2015, if
your Pension Input Amount in each scheme exceeds £40,000 then you may be able
to use Mandatory Scheme Pays to pay the tax charge for one scheme; the remaining
scheme would be paid on a voluntary basis. This facility would not be available for
those with tapered Annual Allowance wishing to use Scheme Pays for their entire tax
charge.

Agenda Pack Page 179

1

4. Voluntary Scheme Pays
Hertfordshire Fire and Rescue Service (HFRS) will only accept requests for
Voluntary Scheme Pays if you don’t meet the Mandatory Scheme Pays criteria, but
you still wish to pay your tax charge by Scheme Pays. For example;
 If you have moved from the 1992 scheme into the 2015 scheme and have a
significant salary increase
 If you are on a salary in excess of £150,000
 If you have a tax charge of less than £2,000

5. Process
The Local Pension Partnership (LPP) will contact any member who has a pension
growth in excess of £40,000 in all fire schemes. This will ensure that all members
affected by either mandatory or voluntary scheme pays are given all options to make
arrangements to make the necessary payments to HMRC. If once notified the
scheme member choses to use mandatory or voluntary scheme pays the LPP will
liaise with Hertfordshire to make payment to HMRC and the necessary deduction to
the member’s pension benefits.

6. Further Information and Advice
HR AskUs – 01992 555000
FPS, NFPS and NFS2015 details –
http://www.yourpension.org.uk/HCCFire/Pensions-Home.aspx
LPP Pensions – Helpline 01992 555466
All employees considering any of the above options outlined in this policy are
advised to take expert independent financial advice in order to plan and
confirm pension implications.
Annual Allowance
There’s information about Annual Allowance and Scheme Pays on the HMRC
website at: www.gov.uk/tax-on-your-private-pension/annual-allowance
Tapered Annual Allowance
Individuals with adjusted income over £150,000 may be subject to a tapered
(reduced) Annual Allowance.
Adjusted income is not based on your salary alone, if you have other sources of
income you may need to include this when calculating your adjusted income.
Further information on how to calculate adjusted income and tapered Annual
Allowance can be found at: www.gov.uk/guidance/pension-schemes-work-out-yourtapered-annual-allowance

Agenda Pack Page 180

2

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Agenda Item No:

PENSIONS COMMITTEE
FRIDAY 12 JULY 2019 AT 10:00AM

6

ADMISSION AGREEMENTS POLICY
Report of the Director of Resources
Author: Patrick Towey Head of Finance (Pensions & Treasury) (Telephone: 01992
555148)
1.

Purpose of the Report

1.1 To provide the Pensions Committee with a report on the outcome of the work
undertaken by the cross party member working group in the development of a
Fund policy for the admission new bodies to the Hertfordshire County Council
Pension Fund and to ask the Pensions Committee to approve the policy.
2.

Summary

2.1 The Pensions Committee and Board receive quarterly risk and performance
reports within which Fund officers report on the number of outstanding
admission agreements to the Fund. Both the Board and Committee have
expressed concern at the number of outstanding agreements and asked
officers to explore options to reduce this backlog and identify the risks that the
Fund is exposed to if there is no admission agreement in place between the
Fund, the ceding authority and the contractor.
2.2 Officers from the Fund commissioned legal advice from the Fund’s external
lawyers Squire Patton Boggs (SPB) to understand the options available to the
Fund to address issues with the timely completion of admission agreements
with the view to developing a clear policy that clarifies the entitlement of
transferring employees, protects the Fund from financial loss and encourages
(or incentivises) new employers to sign their admission agreement. This
advice set out two options that were available to the Fund:
1. Follow the strict application of the regulations, where the Fund treats
transferring employees as deferred members from the point of transfer
until an admission agreement is signed; or
2. Proceed as if the admission agreement is in place, and continue to
treat transferring employees as active members after the transfer
date.
2.3 Following a discussion at Pensions Committee in February, it was agreed that
the Committee working group would work through the advice in detail with

Agenda Pack Page 181

1

Fund officers, SPB and the actuary to help develop a policy that the Fund
could adopt. This meeting took place on 7 May 2019.
2.4 The working group, SPB and the actuary debated the advantages and
disadvantages of the two options and agreed that transferring employees
should not be impacted by an impasse between the ceding employer and the
new employer on the resolution of the admission to the Pension Fund. In
practical terms this would mean that the transferring employees would
continue to accrue Local Government Pensions Scheme (LGPS) benefits
during the period where no admission agreement was in place. It was
discussed that where there were currently no admission agreements in place,
transferring employees were effectively deferred members, although this
wouldn’t have been communicated with them.
2.5 SPB were then instructed by the working group to draft a policy, with input
from the Fund’s internal lawyer, scheme actuary and Fund officers.
2.6 SPB presented this policy to the Committee working group on 20 June 2019.
In summary, the policy outlines:




If the Fund is satisfied that an outsourced employer has a clear
intention to participate in the Fund, then the transferred employees will
be treated as active members in the Fund even though the admission
agreement has not yet been signed.
If the Fund is not satisfied with the above, then the transferred
employees will be treated as deferred members from the point of
transfer.

2.7 The working group agreed for the policy to be recommended to Committee for
approval on 12 July 2019, however with the understanding that there were
some remaining practical and operational aspects still to be addressed
between the Fund and LPP. Examples of identified issues include the system
recording of deferred member status and subsequent backdating of active
status of transferred employees, and the process of collecting employer and
employee contributions before an admission agreement has been signed. At
the time of writing this report these discussions were ongoing and a verbal
update will be taken to 12 July 2019 Committee on the progress of these
discussions.
2.8 Although the policy will apply for future outsourcing agreements, the working
group were keen to ensure that a separate plan is put in place to consider how
the policy will be retrospectively applied to address the historic outstanding
admission agreements. A communications plan will be developed, looking at
how we will communicate with ceding employers and new employers about
the policy, and how we will communicate with affected transferred employees
about their deferred member status. The Fund may also need to consider any
exceptions to the policy in relation to historic and future outstanding admission
agreements, where discretion may need to be exercised. Exceptions to this
policy, where discretion is exercised, will be reported to this Committee at the
next meeting.

Agenda Pack Page 182

2

3.

Recommendations

3.1 That the Pension Committee notes the content of this report and approve the
Fund policy (Appendix A) for admission of bodies to the Hertfordshire Pension
Fund.

Agenda Pack Page 183

3

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 6 Appendix A

Hertfordshire County Council
Policy relating to Admission Agreement Delays
Background
This policy has been adopted by Hertfordshire County Council, in its capacity as administering
authority of the Hertfordshire County Council Pension Fund (the "Pension Fund"). It applies
where an admission agreement is not signed prior to the effective date on which employees
transfer under an outsourcing agreement or contract for services (otherwise known as the
TUPE transfer date).
A number of employers ("New Employers") enter into outsourcing arrangements or services
contracts with Hertfordshire County Council (or with another entity participating in the Pension
Fund) ("Ceding Employers") but do not execute the required admission agreement, in order
to be included in the Pension Fund as an admission body, within normal timescales. This
poses risks to all of the parties involved, in addition to placing those members of the Pension
Fund whose employment has transferred from a Ceding Employer to a New Employer
("Transferred Employees") at a possible financial disadvantage; these risks include:


a lack of certainty about the status of Transferred Employees (i.e. whether they should
be treated as active or deferred members on and after the effective date of transfer of
employment to the New Employer ("Transfer Date") and the impact on their
entitlement to death in service benefits and enhanced retirement benefits on
redundancy and ill health);



the New Employer may not be able to fund a potentially significant lump sum in respect
of the retrospective contributions;



difficulty in seeking retrospective employee contributions from Transferred Employees;



the New Employer may be in breach of its statutory obligation to pay contributions to
an appropriate pension arrangement1;



no obvious mechanism for the Pension Fund to receive additional contributions from
the New Employer to satisfy a Transferred Employees’ entitlement to receive
enhanced benefits from the Pension Fund before the admission agreement is signed
(for example, on redundancy);



the Pension Fund may not receive any outstanding contributions if a New Employer
became insolvent prior to signing the admission agreement and no bond or guarantee
will be in place in order to protect the financial exposure to the Pension Fund caused
by such insolvency.

Application of Policy
This document details Hertfordshire County Council's policy, in its capacity as administering
authority of the Pension Fund, in relation to the admission of New Employers to the Pension
Fund.

1

As set out in section 3(2) of the Pensions Act 2008.

Admission Agreement Delays Policy [DATE]

Agenda Pack Page 185

Page 1 of 6
014-4605-6662/1/EUROPE

This policy will be applied to[:


]all New Employers where the Transfer Date is [on or after the date that this policy is
adopted][; and



those New Employers who currently employ Transferred Employees but have not yet
signed an admission agreement on the date that this policy is adopted].

Policy Intention
The Pension Fund should be exposed to a minimum amount of increased risk because of the
formalities and timing of entering into admission agreements. Any increased risk to the
Pension Fund as a result of delays by New Employers entering into admission agreements
should fall on the Ceding Employer and not the Pension Fund employers generally.
Admission Agreement Delays
Entering into the admission agreement at the same time as (or prior to) the outsourcing or
services contract provides Hertfordshire County Council, as administering authority of the
Pension Fund, with a clear obligation to admit the New Employer to the Pension Fund on and
from the Transfer Date to the New Employer and, as such, the Transferred Employees would
see no interruption in their pensionable service in the LGPS.
The Ceding Employer and the New Employer should ensure that the necessary admission
formalities are completed before the Transfer Date; these include signing an admission
agreement and putting in place any bond or guarantee Hertfordshire County Council may
require in its capacity as administering authority of the Pension Fund.
However, Hertfordshire County Council recognises that it is not always possible for the
admission formalities to be completed in advance of the Transfer Date and therefore has
adopted the following policy regarding admission agreements, in order to minimise risk to the
Pension Fund whilst being mindful of the Transferred Employees' interests with respect to
pension provision.


2

Where Hertfordshire County Council is satisfied that the New Employer has a clear
intention to participate in the Pension Fund, Hertfordshire County Council will rely on the
prospect of a retrospective admission agreement being signed (as allowed for in the Local
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 20132 ("LGPS Regulations")) and will
continue to treat Transferred Employees as active members of the LGPS after the Transfer
Date. In order to be satisfied that the New Employer has a "clear intention" to participate
in the Pension Fund, Hertfordshire County Council requires all of the following:
o

written confirmation from the Ceding Employer that the outsourcing or services
contract obliges the New Employer to participate in the Pension Fund; and

o

written confirmation from the New Employer that it will make adequate arrangements
for the deduction of employee contributions and for payment of employer and
employee contributions to the Pension Fund from the Transfer Date; and

Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013, Schedule 2, Part 3, Paragraph 14.

Admission Agreement Delays Policy [DATE]

Agenda Pack Page 186

Page 2 of 6
014-4605-6662/1/EUROPE

o

adequate written assurance that the Ceding Employer will accept liability for all
Transferred Employees' benefits.



Hertfordshire County Council would be willing to accept confirmations, undertakings and
warranties from the Ceding Employer and New Employer as set out in the Appendix.



Where Hertfordshire County Council is not satisfied that the New Employer has a clear
intention to participate in the Pension Fund and/or it has not received the required
confirmations and assurances as outlined above, Hertfordshire County Council will treat
the Transferred Employees as deferred members from the point of transfer to the New
Employer, unless and until the admission agreement is signed by the New Employer; the
consequences of such treatment include the following:
o

Hertfordshire County Council will not accept any employer or employee contributions
from the New Employer in respect of the Transferred Employees;

o

Hertfordshire County Council will issue the Transferred Employees with leaving
service statements;

o

the New Employer may be in breach of its automatic enrolment obligations[;

o

the effective date of any admission agreement which is subsequently signed by the
New Employer will only be backdated (and the Transferred Employees be treated as
having continuous pensionable service in the LGPS) if both the employee and
employer contributions are paid by the New Employer to the Pension Fund from the
effective date of transfer of the Transferred Employees to the New Employer].

Review
This policy will be reviewed by the Pensions Committee at least annually.
Dated: [Insert date adopted]
Review Date: [Insert date the policy is to be reviewed]

Admission Agreement Delays Policy [DATE]

Agenda Pack Page 187

Page 3 of 6
014-4605-6662/1/EUROPE

APPENDIX
CONFIRMATIONS AND ASSURANCES FROM THE NEW EMPLOYER AND THE
CEDING EMPLOYER
The text set out below is to be populated by the New Employer and the Ceding Employer, duly
signed for and on their behalf (respectively) and returned to Hertfordshire County Council in
advance of the Transfer Date.
1

[NAME OF CEDING EMPLOYER] will be entering into an [[outsourcing
contract][services contract]] (the "Contract") with the [NAME OF NEW EMPLOYER].
The Contract will result in the transfer of employees from [NAME OF CEDING
EMPLOYER] to [NAME OF NEW EMPLOYER] as listed in the Schedule
(the "Transferred
Employees")
with
effect
on
and
from
[DATE]
(the "Transfer Date").

2

In consideration of Hertfordshire County Council, in its capacity as administering
authority of the Hertfordshire County Council Pension Fund, agreeing to treat the
Transferred Employees as remaining in active service in the Hertfordshire County
Council Pension Fund:

2.1

[NAME OF CEDING EMPLOYER] confirms, undertakes and warrants to Hertfordshire
County Council, in its capacity as administering authority of the Hertfordshire County
Council Pension Fund, that:

2.2

(a)

the Contract obliges [NAME OF NEW EMPLOYER] to participate in the Local
Government Pension Fund as an admission body; and

(b)

[NAME OF CEDING EMPLOYER] will be fully liable for all costs associated
with the accrual and payment of the Transferred Employees' pension benefits
in the Local Government Pension Fund up to the effective date on which the
New Employer signs an admission agreement with Hertfordshire County
Council.

[NAME OF NEW EMPLOYER] confirms, undertakes and warrants to Hertfordshire
County Council, in its capacity as administering authority of the Hertfordshire County
Council Pension Fund, that [NAME OF NEW EMPLOYER] will make adequate
arrangements for:
(a)

the deduction of employee contributions from the Transferred Employees; and

(b)

the payment of employer and employee contributions to the Hertfordshire
County Council Pension Fund at such rate as Hertfordshire County Council, in
its capacity as administering authority of the Hertfordshire County Council
Pension Fund, may specify from time to time;

with effect on and from the Transfer Date.

Signed for and on behalf of [CEDING EMPLOYER]:
Dated:
Admission Agreement Delays Policy [DATE]

Agenda Pack Page 188

Page 4 of 6
014-4605-6662/1/EUROPE

Signed for and on behalf of [NEW EMPLOYER]:
Dated:

Signed for and on behalf of [HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL]:
Dated:

Admission Agreement Delays Policy [DATE]

Agenda Pack Page 189

Page 5 of 6
014-4605-6662/1/EUROPE

SCHEDULE
LIST OF TRANSFERRED EMPLOYEES
The following employees will transfer from [NAME OF CEDING EMPLOYER] to [NAME OF
NEW EMPLOYER] with effect on and from the Transfer Date.

Admission Agreement Delays Policy [DATE]

Agenda Pack Page 190

Page 6 of 6
014-4605-6662/1/EUROPE

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Agenda Item No:

PENSIONS COMMITTEE
FRIDAY 12 JULY 2019 AT 10:00AM

7

ACCESS UPDATE
Report of the Director of Resources
Author:

1.

Patrick Towey Head of Finance (Pensions & Treasury)
(Telephone: 01992 555148)

Purpose of the Report

1.1 To provide the Pensions Committee with an update on the work undertaken by
ACCESS since the last report to this Committee in February 2019.
2.

Summary

2.1 In the ACCESS asset pooling proposal submitted to the Department of
Communities and Local Government (DCLG) in July 2016 it was proposed that
the ACCESS pool would procure an Operator to manage the pooled assets of
the pool. The decision to rent as opposed to building an operator was
influenced by the fact that the ACCESS Funds do not have any internal
investment management function and all assets are managed by external
investment managers. Other pools who have internal management functions
have elected to build their own in-house operator.
2.2 Under the terms of reference of the Inter authority Agreement for ACCESS,
approved by Council on 21 March 2017, the ACCESS Joint Governance
Committee (JC) made a recommendation to the Councils to appoint Link Fund
Solutions Ltd as Operator and the terms upon which the Operator is
appointed.
2.3 Squire Patton Boggs are providing legal advice to the ACCESS Pool and
Hymans Robertson are providing project management support. Muse Advisory
Ltd, specialist governance consultants, is supporting ACCESS officers in the
development of governance arrangements for the Fund as well.
2.4 Link submitted the application for the establishment of the ACCESS
Authorised Contractual Scheme (ACS) to the Financial Conduct Authority
(FCA) in July 2018 and this application was approved by the FCA on 9 August
2018. Hertfordshire assets totalling £1,316m have now been transitioned to
the ACCESS pool into sub-funds established by Link as follows:



Link – Baillie Gifford Long Term Global Growth Fund - £284m;
Link – Baillie Gifford UK Equity Fund - £365m; and

Agenda Pack Page 191

1



Link – Royal London UK Core Bond Fund - £648m

2.5 The value of Hertfordshire Fund assets in the ACS is now £1,316m. An
additional £1,900m passively managed assets fall under the governance of the
ACCESS Pool making a total of £3,216m
2.6 A total of ten sub funds have been launched in the ACCESS pool with assets
under management (AUM) of £9.9bn. A further seven sub-funds are planned
to be launched by Link over the next 6 months subject to completion of
appropriate due diligence and successful fee negotiations with the investment
managers.
2.7 The roles in the ACCESS Support Unit (ASU), hosted by Essex CC, are
beginning to be filled. A contract manager is in place and a number of
ACCESS funds have provided officer support for the technical roles.
Unfortunately the campaign to recruit to the ACCESS Director role was not
successful and the role will now be recruited by inviting applications from
officers of the ACCESS Funds.
2.8 ACCESS Fund officers have produced a governance manual which in
essence will be an operational manual as to how activities and decisions are
made within the ACCESS pool. Alongside this work a review of the Inter
Authority Agreement (IAA), the legal document governing the relationship
between the ACCESS Pool’s participating Funds, has been commissioned to
establish if any amendments need to be made now that the pool is
operational. Monitoring officers from the 11 member funds of the ACCESS
pool will be consulted about proposed changes to the IAA. If there are any
proposed changes to the IAA, following this review, then they will need to
come back to each individual Fund for approval through their local constitution.
2.9 The ACCESS pool budget for 2019/20 was approved by the ACCESS Joint
Committee (JC) at its meeting on the 18 March 2019. The determination of the
budget by the JC is set out in the IAA. Section 151 officers reviewed the
proposed budget before it was approved by the JC.
3.

Recommendation

3.1 That the Pensions Committee notes the content of this report.
4.

Background

4.1 The Hertfordshire Local Government Pensions Scheme (LGPS), is a member
of the ACCESS pool which is made up of eleven Shire Counties from East,
South East, and South of England. In its July 2016 submission to Government,
ACCESS set out its plan to pool investments through a Collective Investment
Vehicle (CIV) that would be administered and maintained by a third party
operator. The operator would be collectively appointed and managed by the
Fund members of ACCESS through a Joint Governance Committee
established by the Authorities through an Inter-Authority Agreement (IAA) and

Agenda Pack Page 192

2

made up of one member from each authority. Functions in relation to the
operator such as specifying the services to be procured and the procurement
approach are delegated to the JC as part of the IAA signed by the eleven
members of ACCESS.
4.2 The role of the operator is to manage collectively the assets of the ACCESS
pool. The operator does this by setting up a collective investment scheme
(CIS) which is a regulated vehicle under the Financial Securities and Markets
Act 2000 (FSMA). Establishing or operating a CIS is a regulated activity
requiring authorisation from the Financial Conduct Authority (“FCA”). The
participants in the scheme i.e. the ACCESS Funds will share the profits or
income in the sub-funds in which they are invested in through the CIS. The
ACCESS Funds will not have day-today control over the management of the
assets; this will be the responsibility of the Operator as this is a regulated
activity.
4.3 The Inter-Authority agreement also allows the ACCESS Joint Committee to
make recommendations to the Councils about pool aligned assets (including
proposals concerning the migration of assets such as passive investments).
5.

Establishment of initial sub-funds.

5.1

Officers from ACCESS and Link have established a detailed project plan to
establish the Authorised Contractual Scheme (ACS), the asset pool, and the
seeding of the sub-funds within the ACS by investment managers who
currently hold contracts with ACCESS Funds. As a reminder to members of
this Committee the criteria for determining the managers that will populate the
initial sub-funds within the ACS are set out below:

.
Table 1: Criteria

1

1.

Current Investment Manager

2.
3.

Scale
Commitment

4.

Value for Money

The mandate must be being utilised by
at least one of the ACCESS funds
A minimum combined AUM1 of £500m
The fund (s) currently invested must
be satisfied with the current
investment performance and its
allocation to the manager/asset
allocation/strategy and has the full
expectation of holding the investment
through the transition to the Operator
(suggested to be in excess of 12
months)
An acceptable fee scale can be
negotiated by the Operator with the
investment manager that reflects the
potential greater scale of investment
from pooling.

AUM – assets under management

Agenda Pack Page 193

3

5.2 Officers using the criteria in table 1 identified a number of investment
managers that met this criteria and this list of managers was agreed by the
ACCESS Joint Committee as the initial managers to seed sub-funds of the
ACCESS ACS.
5.3 Now that the ACS has been established by Link, ten sub-funds have been
approved by the FCA and assets migrated from Funds to the ACS. At the 22
May 2019 a total of £9.9bn assets had been transitioned to the Pool of this
total £1.3bn were assets from Hertfordshire mandates with Baillie Gifford and
Royal London Asset Management.
5.4 A further seven sub-funds will be launched by the end of October 2019
bringing the total number of sub-funds established by Link to seventeen and a
further £2.9bn of assets in the ACCESS ACS. Total AUM in the ACCESS ACS
will be £12.8bn. The sub-funds established to date by Link are comprised of
equities, both global and UK, and a fixed income mandate. Further fixed
income mandates as well as diversified growth funds will be established in the
next launch of sub-funds.
5.5 To date ACCESS Fund officers have worked on the migration of liquid assets
such as equities and fixed income to the ACCESS pool. Initial work has now
started to look at the establishment of illiquid structures for the pooling of
illiquid assets such as private equity, property, and infrastructure investments,
these structures will be created for the pooling of new Fund commitments.
Legal advice has been commissioned to look at the type of structures that can
be implemented to pool illiquid assets as well as specialist consultancy
support.
5.6 In the assessment of the overall savings derived from the movement of
mandates from the current arrangements to Link, there is an additional
operator fee cost for the management by Link of these assets as well as a
depository fee that needs to be factored in to the overall savings achieved by
each Fund. The overall estimated savings presented in this report include
these additional fees.
5.7 Once tranche three of phase one has been completed the total value of assets
under the management of Link will be around £12.8bn, of which £1.3bn or just
over 10% will be Hertfordshire Fund assets. In addition, the Hertfordshire Fund
has achieved savings of just under £900k through the joint procurement of a
passive manager UBS through ACCESS. The Hertfordshire Fund has £1.9bn
of assets with UBS. As a reminder to this Committee, table 2 below illustrates
the accumulated saving that the Hertfordshire Fund will achieve following the
completion of tranche three.

Agenda Pack Page 194

4

Table2: Hertfordshire pool savings
Manager

Mandate

Value (AUM)
£

Baillie Gifford
Baillie Gifford
RLAM
UBS

UK equities
Global equities
Fixed income
Global
equities/fixed
income

£ 365m
£ 284m
£648m
£1,905m

Total Savings

Annual
Savings/Cost2
£
- £ 276k cost
+ £1543k saving
- £ 60k cost
+ £ 900k saving
+ £2,107k saving

5.8 Table 2 illustrates that as well as savings certain mandates will incur a cost by
transitioning into the pool. The ACCESS report to this Committee in November
2018 contained legal advice from Squire Patton Boggs that set out value for
money considerations and the fiduciary duty of s.151 officers when making
decisions about pooling assets. In the context of the Fund’s decision to pool
the Baillie Gifford UK equity mandate and the RLAM fixed income mandates
where there are increased costs, the overall savings set out in table 2 are
predicated on the pooling of these mandates particularly in the context of the
Baillie Gifford mandates where the fee offering was based on all ACCESS
fund mandates with Baillie Gifford, the RLAM mandate will become a saving
once AUM with Link passes £10bn.
6.

Governance

6.1 Alongside the Inter Authority Agreement (IAA), the legal agreement that
established and governs the relationship between the ACCESS Pool’s
participating Authorities, ACCESS officers have developed a governance
manual that will act as a day to day operational manual.
6.2 The governance manual is not a legal document but instead is a practical
guide to show how activities will be carried out within ACCESS and how
decisions are made and by whom. It will be a working reference document for
the ASU and describes the operational detail behind the IAA.
6.3 The governance manual will capture the terms of reference for both the s151
officers and the ACCESS JC; both these groups are being consulted in its
development and will sign off the final document.
6.4 The Inter Authority Agreement is also being reviewed by the Monitoring
Officers of all the ACCESS Funds now that the ACCESS pool has been
operational for a few years and any changes will be brought back to this
Committee for review and recommendation to Council.

2

Based on operator/depository fees for AUM <£10bn.

Agenda Pack Page 195

5

7.

ACCESS Budget

7.1 The terms of reference for the ACCESS Joint Committee (JC) set out in the
Inter Authority Agreement sets out the functions concerning business planning
and the Pool budget. The ACCESS JC will determine the budget necessary to
implement the annual business plan. The budget for 2019/20, prepared by
ACCESS officers, and reviewed by s.151 officers was approved by the
ACCESS Joint Committee at its meeting on the 18 March 2019.
7.2 Table 3 below sets outs the expenditure incurred by the ACCESS pool against
the 2018/19 budget up to the end of March 2019 and the budget for 2019/20:
Table 3: ACCESS Budget 2018/19
ACCESS 2018/19 outturn and Estimated Budget 2019/20
Sept

Estimated

Original budget

Revised Budget

Actual

Budget

Notes

2018/2019

2018/2019

2018/2019

2019/2020

2019/20

£

£

£

£

ASU
Interim ASU Support

360,000

451,773

328,734

-

21,000

21,000

20,018

8,000

31,649

295,000

53,375

20,500

7,830

42,000

Internal Costs
Internal Professional Costs
ASU Salaries (incl. on cost)
ASU Operational

1,000

21,000

ASU Host Authority Recharge
ASU JC Secretariat Support

16,800

Technical Lead Recharge Costs
Internal Costs Total
Interim ASU / ASU Total

(1)

9,599

93,000

22,000

42,000

122,472

475,300

382,000

493,773

451,206

475,300

194,115

189,000

92,000

175,000

341,680

207,250

External Professional Costs
Strategic & Technical

330,000

395,595

Advice re new structures
Legal & Governance

215,000

Agenda Pack Page 196

290,647

(2)

6

Project Management
Professional Costs Total
Total Costs
Cost Per Authority

230,000

247,205

168,500

156,000

775,000

933,447

796,295

727,250

1,157,000

1,427,220

1,247,501

1,202,550

105,000

130,000

113,409

109,000

(1)

Includes Kent costs to September incl those related to the handover. From July JC support will be captured within
ASU Essex Support

(2)

Separate advice for Illiquids and assumes 2 absolute manager selections @ £25k and potential illiquid search(es)
@ £50k

8.

The ACCESS Support Unit (ASU)

8.1 Interim arrangements made up of ACCESS officers and third party support
from Hymans (project management and investment advice), Squire Patton
Boggs (legal advice), and Muse (governance advice) have supported the
implementation of the contract with Link and development of the sub-fund plan
as well as the governance model for the ACCESS pool.
8.2 Essex County Council will be the host authority for ACCESS and the structure
of the ASU is be comprised of three permanent roles and technical roles that
will be filled by officers from the ACCESS funds on a part time basis with their
roles back filled and paid for by the other ACCESS funds. In summary the
ASU roles would be:
 Director, ACCESS – to manage and oversee the implementation of a
set of related projects and activities in order to deliver ACCESS’
strategic objectives business plan and budget, ensuring that key
milestones are achieved and that the required outcomes are met and
to manage the ASU. Managing relationships both within the pool and
externally.
 Contract manager - responsibility for the successful day to day
performance and management of the multi-million pound contract with
Link (on behalf of the participating ACCESS authorities) and other
third party suppliers, including taking a lead in understanding
problems, finding solutions and driving to agreement.
 ACCESS support administrator - supporting the smooth operation and
development of the ASU through the provision of effective programme
support and administrative activities, and the provision of
administrative and secretarial support to the Joint Committee and
Officer Working Groups arrangements.
 Technical lead officers – to support the ACCESS Joint Committee and
Officer Working Group in business planning and budgeting,
compliance with its own internal governance and procedures, and the
construction of sub-funds and monitoring and reporting investment

Agenda Pack Page 197

7

performance.
8.3 As reported to this Committee in February 2019, a contract manger has been
appointed and started their role, the technical roles for the ASU have also
been filled by officers from some of the Funds in the ACCESS pool.
Unfortunately, the most recent campaign to recruit a Director to the ACCESS
pool was not successful after the preferred candidate withdrew their
acceptance offer. After further consideration and discussion with both s.151
officers and the ACCESS Joint Committee it has been agreed that applications
will be invited from officers of the ACCESS Funds, an update on the outcome
of this recruitment will be provided to this Committee at its next meeting.
9.

Hertfordshire pooled assets

9.1 Once tranche three of phase one has been completed, referred to in section 5
of this report, the value of assets that the Hertfordshire Fund will have under
pool governance will be 66.1% of overall assets. The following table illustrates
the assets and fund managers that will be pooled and those assets that will sit
outside the pool until either a pool solution is found or because they can’t be
pooled because of the illiquid nature of the asset and legal agreements
entered into that prevent initial pooling,
Table 4: Hertfordshire Fund: pooled and un-pooled assets

3

Manager

Asset class

In
Pool
(£m)
365

Baillie
Gifford
Allianz

UK Equity

Baillie
Gifford
UBS

Global equity 284

284

Passive
equity

976

976

UBS

Passive
bonds

923

923

RLAM

Bonds

648

648

CBRE

Property

Global equity

Outside Total
pool
Value
(£m)
(£m)3
365
490

359

In Pool
ACCESS
sub-fund

490

359

Outside
pool

Will
transition
into the
pool,
manager
tbc.
ACCESS
sub-fund
ACCESS
pool
governance
ACCESS
pool
governance
ACCESS
sub-fund
Initially
outside

Value as at 31 March 2019

Agenda Pack Page 198

8

LGT

Alternatives

508

508

Various
private
equity
managers
Macquarie
and
Allianz
Residual
assets i.e.
cash
Total / %

Private
Equity

184

184

Infrastructure
debt

60

60

Residual
assets such
as cash

37

37

3,196 1,638

4,834

pool
Outside
pool
Outside
pool

Outside
pool
66.11%

33.88%

9.2 The Hertfordshire Fund will have just under 70% of its overall Fund assets
either in ACCESS sub-funds with Link, the operator, or under the pooled
governance of the ACCESS Joint Committee once tranche three of phase one
has been completed within the next 12 months. The global equity mandate
currently under Allianz management will migrate into the ACCESS pool once
the investment strategy review has concluded and alternative solutions in the
ACCESS pool have been reviewed. This will bring the total assets under
ACCESS pool governance to around 76%.The CBRE mandate (8%) will sit
outside the pool until a solution has been developed.
9.3 The remaining assets will sit outside the pool, totalling 16%, due to the illiquid
nature of these assets and the legal structure of the partnership arrangements
entered into, particularly for the Fund’s private equity investments which would
result in significant exit costs, The LGT alternatives mandate will also sit
outside the pool due to the complexity of the illiquid and liquid assets that
make up this mandate and no other ACCESS Funds having a requirement for
this type of strategy at present.
10. Background papers
10.1 ACCESS pooling submission to DCLG – Pension Committee 12 July 2016
http://cmis.hertfordshire.gov.uk/hertfordshire/Calendarofcouncilmeetings/tabid/
70/ctl/ViewMeetingPublic/mid/397/Meeting/617/Committee/11/Default.aspx
10.2 LGPS ACCESS pooling paper - Council 21 March 2017
http://cmis.hertfordshire.gov.uk/hertfordshire/Calendarofcouncilmeetings/tabid/
70/ctl/ViewMeetingPublic/mid/397/Meeting/513/Committee/4/Default.aspx
10.3 Pensions Committee – 28 February 2019
https://democracy.hertfordshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=151&MId=
1245&Ver=4

Agenda Pack Page 199

9

10.4 ACCESS Committee -18 February 2019
https://democracy.hertfordshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=257&MId=
1436&Ver=4
10.5 List of acronyms
Baillie Gifford:
https://www.bailliegifford.com/
Allianz:
https://www.allianz.co.uk/
UBS (Union Bank of Switzerland):
https://www.ubs.com/uk/en/wealth-management/aboutus.html?ef_id=EAIaIQobChMIhKXTh_eE4wIViLbtCh1uvAyTEAAYASAAEgImNPD_
BwE:G:s&s_kwcid=AL!410!3!216905725903!e!!g!!ubs
RLAM (Royal London Asset Management):
https://www.rlam.co.uk/
CBRE:
https://www.cbre.co.uk/
LGT (Liechtenstein Global Trust):
https://www.lgt.com/en/
Macquarie & Allianz:
https://www.macquarie.com/us/about/newsroom/2017/allianz-mira-and-valtionelakerahasto-to-acquire-elenia

Agenda Pack Page 200

10

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Agenda Item No:

PENSIONS COMMITTEE
FRIDAY 12 JULY 2019 AT 10:00AM

8

RISK AND PERFORMANCE
Report of the Director of Resources
Author:

1.

James Kidd- Senior Accountant (Telephone: 01992 555706) and Ann
Namubiru – Senior Pensions Governance Officer (Telephone: 01992
588625)

Purpose of the Report

1.1 To provide the quarterly update on Risk and Performance for the Pension Fund
for the period 1 January to 31 March 2019.
2.

Summary

2.1 The report provides an update on the following matters:

3.



summary of reports to be presented to the July meeting of the Pension
Board;



current status of risk and governance matters that are monitored as part of
the Risk Register;



current status of risk monitoring of Scheme Employers; and



performance of the Administering Authority measured against performance
indicators set out in the Administration Strategy.

PENSION BOARD REPORTS

3.1 The Pension Committee are invited to note the following reports related to risk
and performance that the Local Government Pensions Scheme (LGPS) and
Fire Pension Boards will receive at their July meetings:
LGPS Board
 Risk and Governance Report:
o Providing a detailed quarterly update on the governance and
management of the Pension Fund.
 Local Pensions Partnership Administration Report:
o Providing a quarterly update on the performance of the administration
service for the Local Government Pension Scheme.

Agenda Pack Page 201

1



ACCESS Update:
o Providing an update on the current status of asset pooling.



Funding and Investment:
o Providing an update on the investment performance of the Fund and
the funding level of the Fund.
Admission Agreements
o Providing an update on legal advice commissioned to address delays in
getting admission agreements finalised.



Fire Board
 Local Pensions Partnership Administration Report providing a quarterly
update on the performance of the administration service for the Firefighters’
Pension Scheme
4.

RISK REGISTER

4.1 The Risk Register sets out risk control mechanisms that aim to either avoid or
reduce the probability and/or impact of any risk event in relation to the Pension
Fund. Risks are classified using the following criteria.
Risk Level
Severe
Significant
Material
Manageable

Description
The consequences will have a severe impact on the delivery of a key priority
and comprehensive management action is required immediately.
The consequences of the risk materialising would be significant, but not
severe. Some immediate action is required plus the development of an
action plan.
Consequences of the risk are not significant and can be managed through
contingency plans. Action plans can be developed later to address the risk.
Consequences of the risk are considered relatively unimportant. The status
of the risk should be reviewed periodically.

4.2 Table 1 provides the current risk status of the four key risks and a summary of
activities undertaken during the quarter to March 2019. The risk status key is
shown in the following chart.




An increase in risk status since the previous quarter
Risk status has remained unchanged since the previous quarter
A decrease in risk status since the previous quarter

Table 1: Risk Register – Current Status and Activity Summary
Risk
Level

Risk

A

The Pension Fund
Investment Strategy
does not deliver the
long term projected
investments returns and
does not comply with
legislation.

Amber

Change
in Risk
Status



Quarterly Activity Summary
The Fund’s UK equity mandate with
Baillie Gifford transitioned into the
ACCESS pool in January 2019,
joining the global mandate which
transitioned in Q3. The transition was
carried out smoothly. The next
transition to take place will be the
Fund’s Bond mandate with Royal
London, which will take place in Q1.

Agenda Pack Page 202

2

A detailed update on ACCESS is
provided in a separate paper to this
Committee.
The legal agreements relating to the
allocation to High Lease Value fund
manager are being finalised.

B

The funding level of the
Pension Fund
deteriorates.

Amber



C

Scheme employers
default on meeting their
obligations to the
Pension Fund and
LGPS.

Amber



A quarterly update on funding is being
presented to this committee which
shows the funding position has
increased to 95% as at 31 March
2019, which is 3.6% above the
funding level at the last valuation. The
deficit at 31 March 2019 stands at
£256m.
Following feedback from employers
around their difficulties around various
returns required by the Fund, training
events were offered to employers in
March 2019 to support them in
completing the online forms for the
year end returns. 30 employers
attended this training and feedback
was good.
2018/19 Annual Benefits Statement
(ABS) exercise will be carried out in
Q1 and Q2. We have a statutory
deadline to deliver ABS by 31st
August. Contact with employers who
fail to provide their end of year returns
by the deadline will be maintained.
Fines will be raised against employers
who are late.
Separate reports are being presented
to the committee to update on the
current status of asset pooling.

D

The Pension Fund and
its third party providers
do not comply with
regulations, statute or
procedure.

Green



Ahead of the 2019 valuation, the
Administering Authority have been
reviewing policies and processes to
make sure that they are compliant
with regulations and are relevant to
the Fund’s employers.
The recommendation included in the
admission agreements report from
February’s Pension Committee
Meeting has been considered by the
committee working group and a new

Agenda Pack Page 203

3

policy will be presented to this
meeting.

5.

SCHEME EMPLOYERS RISK MONITORING

5.1 Scheme Employers are monitored on a monthly basis to measure the trend and
current status of risk where scheme employers’ covenants may have a
detrimental impact on the Pension Fund.
5.2 Scheme employers are rated as:


RED - high risk: This indicates that action is required to mitigate the risks
to the Pension Fund where there is a high risk of a scheme employer
defaulting on its obligations to the Pension Fund.



AMBER - medium risk: This indicates that scheme employers require
review or ongoing monitoring to determine whether any actions need to be
taken to mitigate the risks identified.



GREEN - low risk: This indicates that there are no immediate issues or
actions to be taken.

5.3 Table 2 provides a summary of the current position, with comparative data for
previous quarters to create a rolling-year illustration.
Table 2: Employer Risk Monitor – Current Trend and Status

Jan-Mar
19

11.3%

11.0%

77.7%

Action
Required

Oct-Dec
18

12.0%

11.0%

77.0%

Monitor
No Issues

Jul-Sep
18

11.3%

11.1%

77.6%

Apr-Jun
18

11.3%

10.8%

77.9%

0.0%

20.0%

40.0%

60.0%

80.0%

100.0%

5.4 Table 3 provides an analysis of the number of scheme employers in each risk
category together with the value of net liabilities for each risk category.

Agenda Pack Page 204

4

Table 3: Analysis of Scheme Employers by Risk Category
October - December 2018
Scheme
Net Assets/
Risk
Employers
(Liabilities)
Score
No.
%
£m
%

Risk Category
/ Risk Score

January – March 2019
Scheme
Net Assets/
Employers
(Liabilities)
No.

%

£m

Risk
Score

%

48

12.5

3.5

(1.1)

12.2

Red (9+)

45

11.3

3.5

(1.1)

12.2

44

11.0

(65.0)

19.3

4.4

Amber (4-8)

44

11.0

(65.0)

19.3

4.4

308

76.5

(275.0)

81.7

0.6

Green (0-3)

310

77.7

(275.0)

81.7

0.6

400

100.0

(336.5)

100.0

2.4

Total

399

100.0

(336.5)

100.0

2.3

5.5 Since the last quarter, the number of employers monitored in the ‘red’ risk
category has decreased from 48 to 45. This movement has been detailed
below:
-5

Scheme employers no longer requiring Admission Agreements; and

+2
-3

Scheme employers with outstanding Admission Agreements.

5.6 Of the 45 scheme employers in the ‘red’ risk category, as at 31 March 2019, 21
related to scheme employers with Admission Agreements in progress following
the TUPE transfer of staff from existing scheme employers.
5.7 A further analysis detailing employers with outstanding Admission Agreements
has been discussed with the committee working group. Potential risks were
identified in respect of implementing the new policy, such as the impact on
individuals involved in transfers with outstanding Admission Agreements and
the potential reputational impact on the administering authority. Squire Patton
Boggs and the Fund’s internal solicitor will continue to work together with the
Pension Fund to ensure potential risks identified are addressed appropriately in
order to minimise impact to the Pension Fund and members of the LGPS.
5.8 Table 4 below summarises the movements in number and age of outstanding
Admission Agreements. The full details of these are outlined in the Part II
report.
Table 4: Outstanding Admission Agreements
Time period
since transfer
0-6 months
6-12 months

Q1 Apr-Jun
2018
8
1

Q2 Jul-Sept
2018
7
3

Q3 Oct-Dec
2018
5
7

Q4 Jan - Mar
2019
6
5

Agenda Pack Page 205

5

11
20

Over a year
Total

6.

11
21

12
24

10
21

ADMINISTERING AUTHORITY PERFORMANCE MONITORING

6.1 The performance of the Administering Authority and scheme employers in
managing and administering the Pension Fund is measured against
performance indicators set out in the Administration Strategy. This section also
includes information about treasury management performance against the
annual Treasury Management Strategy.
6.2 Table 5 provides the current status and commentary on the performance
indicators. The performance status key is shown in the following chart.




An improvement in performance since the previous quarter
Performance has remained unchanged since the previous quarter
A deterioration in performance since the previous quarter

Table 5: Administering Authority Performance Monitor
Indicator

Change in
Performance
Status

Commentary
The annual internal audit on the systems and process
of the pension administration function was completed
in Q4, in which ‘Satisfactory’ assurance was provided.
Two areas of risks were identified relating to;
 Authorisation and timely processing of death
grant, and
 Timely processing of new pensioners records.

Audit Reviews



Management have provided a response to these risks,
implementing improvements which will be revisited
during the next year.
Interim external audit work was carried out with
positive results ahead of the year-end audit. This will
aid with the early requirements to sign off the
accounts by 31 July 2019.

Complaints and
Internal Disputes



During the quarter, there were 19 new Local Pensions
Partnership (LPP) service complaints and 1 Internal
Dispute Resolution Procedure (IDRP); details of these
have been included in Appendix A of this paper.

Agenda Pack Page 206

6

In the quarter to 31 March 2019 there were;

Scheme
Employer Late
Payments and
Penalty Charges






5 incidents of late payment
3 incidents of late return of monthly
contribution forms.

4 penalty charges were raised against 4 scheme
employers as a result of these incidents.
Details of these late payments are reported in the
LPP’s quarterly Administration Report which is
presented to the Pensions Board.
The improved level of performance seen last quarter
has continued, with overall performance against the
Service Level Agreement (SLA) for Q4 2018 being
99.4% (target of 95%).

LPP
Administration
Service
Performance
Indicators



Contact centre performance has continued to improve,
with average call wait times reducing from 00:02:23 to
00:01:27 and email wait times also reducing.
LPP introduced a contact centre feedback mechanism
in January 2019 to record member satisfaction. 81%
of responses rated their experience as 5 (highest).
The average size of the portfolio at 31 March 2019
was £22.3m increasing from £17.0m in the previous
quarter. This is below the cap of £45m.
Interest earned in the quarter to 31 March 2019 was
£41.2k increasing from £30.0k in the previous quarter.

Treasury
Management



The rate of return was 0.74% increasing from 0.71%
in the previous quarter. This was 0.17% above the
benchmark of the average 7 day London Interbank Bid
(LIBID) rate of 0.57%.

Agenda Pack Page 207

7

APPENDIX A

DETAILS OF LPP SERVICE COMPLAINTS AND IDRPs

Service Complaints
Between January-March 2019 there were 19 new LPP service complaints. Details of these,
as well as trend analysis over the previous four quarters is shown below:

Complaints

Mar – Jun
2018

Jul – Sept
2018

Oct – Dec
2018

Jan –
Mar 2019

LPP Service
Complaints
IDRPs

29

29

26

19

1

4

2

1



A complaint has been received from a member regarding delays processing a
retirement. A full investigation has been carried out and a full response and apology
has been issued to the member.



A complaint has been received from a member regarding the delays processing a
redundancy retirement. This is due to challenges regarding signing admission
agreements. The Council have agreed that LPP can proceed.



A complaint has been received from a member with regarding not being
automatically enrolled into the LGPS in 1992. The regulations at this point did not
allow for members working less than 30 hours per week to be automatically enrolled
and the member would have needed to make a positive election to join. A letter
explaining this has been sent to the member.



A member made a verbal complaint due to not receiving a call back from LPP
regarding their flexible retirements and Additional Voluntary Contribution (AVC’s).
LPP responded to the member apologising and explaining that we are waiting
confirmation from their employer and the member has not contributed to AVC’s.



A verbal complaint has been made by a member who received another member’s
retirement options. LPP reported this to the administering authority and it was
investigated as a data breach. Correct paperwork along with an apology to both
members has been issued.



A complaint has been received from a member regarding delays with a retirement
estimate. The estimate has now been issued and an apology has been sent.



A member has complained as they are unable to commute their pensions as they
total more than £30k. An explanation has been sent to the member.



A complaint has been received regarding a pension that was not put into payment in
2016 when the member was made redundant. LPP had sent the appropriate letters
to the member in 2016 but did not receive a response. A letter of apology has been
sent to the member apologising for not chasing a response sooner.



A complaint has been received from a member regarding where a member’s pension
entitlement is held. This has been referred to the Council for some clarity and to
decide whether any compensation should be paid for stress and inconvenience.
Serco, who administered the pension scheme at the time followed instructions from
the employer.

Agenda Pack Page 208

8



A verbal complaint has been received from a member regarding delays in pension
being paid. This is due to a miscommunication whereby the member ticked on the
election form that payment should commence from July 2019, however, the covering
letter stated July 2018. LPP should have queried this at the time and an email has
been sent to the member explaining what has happened and apologising.



A complaint has been received regarding the delay in processing spouse’s benefits.
The case has been progressed and a letter of apology has been issued.



A verbal complaint has been made by a member regarding opting out of the pension
scheme. The member opted out in October 2018 and was re-enrolled as part of
auto- enrolment in January 2019.



A complaint has been received from a member regarding where a member’s pension
entitlement is held. This has been referred to the Council for some clarity and to
decide whether any compensation should be paid for stress and inconvenience.
Serco, who administered the pension scheme at the time followed instructions from
the employer.



A complaint has been received with regard to delays in processing a refund which
was due to the member not returning the correct documentation. Once this was
received the refund was processed and paid within contractual timescales. A letter of
apology was sent to the member for any miscommunication.



A verbal compliant has been received with regards to delays processing a members
aggregation case. The case was prioritised and completed.



A complaint has been received with regards to delays paying a retirement lump sum.
The payment has been made by CHAPS and an apology sent.



A verbal complaint has been received regarding member self-service being unable to
calculate cash equivalent transfer values for divorce purposes. The member
believed that they would have to wait three months to receive the calculation,
however, following a telephone conversation the member went away happy in the
knowledge that the required information will be treated as a priority and calculated
the same day.



A complaint has been received from a members next of kin regarding delays in
paying a death grant. An explanation and a letter of apology has been sent and the
death grant has now been paid.



A complaint has been received with regards to an ARC contract not being ceased in
time which amounted to an over collection of contributions approx. £14k. This case
has since been resolved by arranging an additional contract to pay Additional
Pensions Contributuions (APC’s) into the pension fund. Final queries surrounding
tax implications are being worked on.

Internal Dispute Resolution Procedures (IDRPs)
Between January-March 2019, there was 1 new IDRP, as detailed below;


A stage 2 IDRP has been received with regards to the application of Hertfordshire
County Councils’ LGPS discretions policy in the case of a redundancy. LPP are
supporting the Council when required.

Agenda Pack Page 209

9

Agenda Pack Page 210

10

APPENDIX B

SCHEME EMPLOYER RISK MONITORING

Table 3 provides details about all of the risk criteria being monitored and the total number of scheme employers that fall into each
criterion. These criteria have been allocated a risk level of ‘red’, ‘amber’ or ‘green’ depending on their potential impact and whether
immediate action is required.
Scheme employers are assessed and allocated a score against each risk criteria. Their total score is then used to determine an
overall classification of ‘red’ (high risk), ‘amber’ (medium risk) or ‘green’ (low risk).
Scheme employers will therefore be classified as high risk either by falling into at least one of the ‘red’ risk criteria outlined below, or
by having multiple risk criteria at the ‘amber’ level which overall raises concern over the scheme employer’s ability to meet their
obligations to the Pension Fund.

Agenda Pack Page 211

Table 3: Summary of Risk Criteria Monitored
Risk
No.
1

2

Risk Criteria
Contract end
date within 12
months

No active
members

Risk Level
(Score)
Amber (4)

Amber (4)

Description
REVIEWED QUARTERLY
These risks relate to scheme employers who provide service contracts to scheduled bodies
(normally Councils or Schools) where the service contract is due to cease within twelve
months. When the contract ends, the employer will cease membership in the Fund and the
Actuary will be instructed to undertake a cessation valuation to determine if there is any
outstanding deficit due for payment.
At 31 March 2019, there were 24 scheme employers that had been contacted to determine
their future participation in the Scheme.
Where a scheme employer does not have any active members they are contacted to clarify
their future membership in the Fund.
At 31 March 2019, there was 1 scheme employer that had been contacted to determine their
future participation in the Scheme.

11

Risk
No.
3

Risk Criteria
Non-payment of
contributions
and lump sums

Risk Level
(Score)
Red (9)

Description
Scheme employers are monitored for non-payment of contributions and deficit lump sums.
Where incidences are identified, action will be taken in accordance with the Fund’s
Administration Strategy and, where significant, reported to The Pensions Regulator in
accordance with the Fund’s policy on reporting breaches of the law.

Agenda Pack Page 212

At 31 March 2019, no employers were being monitored for non-payments.
4

Bond expiring
within 12
months

Amber (4)

Any scheme employers with a bond expiry falling within the next twelve months are monitored
under this risk.
At 31 March 2019, there were 5 scheme employers that had been contacted to confirm bond
renewals were being sought.

5

Deficit recovery
period

Red (9)

This risk relates to scheme employers who either have no active members contributing to the
Fund (where work is in progress to agree lump sum payments in lieu of contributions,
cessation repayment plans) or active scheme employers where repayment plans have been
agreed but which are outside of the standard deficit recovery periods set out in the Fund’s
Funding Strategy Statement. These plans have been negotiated with scheme employers in
the interests of affordability but there is an increased risk that the Fund will not recover all
outstanding liabilities.
At 31 March 2019, 10 employers are in this risk category.

6

Outstanding
Admission
Agreement

Red (9)

Employers marked against this risk are yet to sign their Admission Agreement. The Admission
Agreement is a contract between the scheme employer, ceding employer (if any) and
Administering Authority which details the scheme employers’ legal responsibilities, financial
liabilities, indemnity arrangements and staff eligible to join the Scheme.
At 31 March 2019, 21 Admission Agreements were in progress.

12

Risk
No.
7

Risk Criteria
No indemnity

Risk Level
(Score)
Red (9)

Description
Employers without a current and adequate indemnity arrangement will be marked against this
risk. There is a requirement in the LGPS regulations for all employers to have an indemnity in
place (such as a guarantor or bond). Where the employer has no indemnity their unmatched
liabilities would fall to the ceding employer initially and in instances where there is no ceding
employer they would fall to the Fund.
At 31 March 2019, 20 employers were identified as having no form of indemnity.

8

Payroll -10% or
more

Amber (4)

REVIEWED ANNUALLY
Monitoring of changes in payroll may identify scheme employers at risk of worsening their
funding level or increasing their pension liabilities during inter-valuation periods.

Agenda Pack Page 213

At 31 March 2019, 25 scheme employers were identified as having had a material change in
payroll since the last Valuation.
9

Ill Health
(cumulative
annual budget
inter-Valuation
exceeded)

Amber (4)

At each Valuation, scheme employers are allocated an annual Ill Health budget which is
reflected in the contribution rate for that employer. Where a scheme employer’s ill health
retirement ‘strain’ cost exceeds their budget, they will be required to make additional
contributions to cover this.
At 31 March 2019, 7 scheme employers had exceeded their cumulative Ill Health budgets for
financial years 2017/18, 2018/19 and 2019/20.
Scheme employer’s ill health experience over the inter-valuation period was reviewed as part
of the last Valuation and reflected in scheme employers’ individual funding positions,
contribution rate and ‘strain’ costs for ill health retirements.

13

Risk
No.
10

Risk Criteria
Funding Level
(<80%)

Risk Level
(Score)
Amber (4)

Description
REVIEWED TRIENNIALLY
This is the funding level the Fund has determined to be suitable to identify employers at risk
as at the last Valuation. 11 scheme employers had a funding level of less than 80% as at the
last Valuation with net pension liabilities of £10m.

Agenda Pack Page 214

A further 82 scheme employers had funding levels of less than 80% but are considered to be
long-term secure employers and under regulation are required to provide access to the LGPS
for their employees, for example the County Council and Academies. These employers have
been assessed as having a strong employer covenant and therefore their overall risk score
has been adjusted to reflect this and consequently this group has moved to a ‘green’ risk
rating.
11

Active Member
Age Profile

Amber (4)

This indicator suggests that an employer (assuming ‘closed’ membership status in the Fund)
may be approaching cessation at the point its last active member retires.
At 31 March 2019, 6 scheme employers were being monitored under this risk.

14

Agenda Pack Page 215

15

This page is intentionally left blank

